# COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

# **BETWEEN**

# KANE COUNTY (HEALTH DEPARTMENT)

# **AND**

THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, (AFSCME), AFL-CIO, COUNCIL 31, ON BEHALF OF AND WITH LOCAL 3966

**EFFECTIVE DATES** 

**DECEMBER 1, 2021 - NOVEMBER 30, 2024** 



# TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE
ARTICLE 1. RECOGNITION
ARTICLE 2. PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES
ARTICLE 3. SAVINGS CLAUSE
ARTICLE 4. UNION SECURITY
ARTICLE 5. NON-DISCRIMINATION
ARTICLE 6. NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT7
ARTICLE 7. SENIORITY7
ARTICLE 8. LAYOFF AND RECALL9
ARTICLE 9. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 11
ARTICLE 10. DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 15
ARTICLE 11. PERSONNEL FILES
ARTICLE 12. EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING 17
ARTICLE 13. LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE21
ARTICLE 14. HOLIDAYS22
ARTICLE 15. VACATIONS23
ARTICLE 16. SICK LEAVE25
ARTICLE 17. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS28
ARTICLE 18. LEAVES OF ABSENCE29
ARTICLE 19. UNION RIGHTS
ARTICLE 20. WAGES
ARTICLE 21. TEMPORARYASSIGNMENT 40
ARTICLE 22. INSURANCE

ARTICLE 23. VACANCIES	43
ARTICLE 24. HOURS OF WORK	44
ARTICLE 25. SUBCONTRACTING	47
ARTICLE 26. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	48
ARTICLE 27. COMPLETE AGREEMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS	49
ARTICLE 28. HEALTH AND SAFETY	49
ARTICLE 29. EMPLOYEE BLOOD DONATION	50
ARTICLE 30. TERMINATION	50
APPENDIX A	52
APPENDIX B ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE	53
APPENDIX C CHANGES IN HEALTH PLAN FEATURES	54

# **PREAMBLE**

This Agreement is entered into by Kane County (Health Department), hereinafter referred to as the "Employer", and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Council 31, AFL-CIO on behalf of and with Local 3966, hereinafter referred to as the "Union".

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide an orderly collective bargaining relationship between the Employer and the Union representing the employees in the bargaining unit and to make clear the basic terms upon which such relationship depends. It is the intent of both the Employer and the Union to work together to provide and maintain satisfactory terms and conditions of employment, and to prevent as well as to adjust misunderstandings and grievances relating to some of the employees working conditions.

To the extent that provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement are in conflict with provisions of the Kane County Code or the Policies and Procedures of the Health Department, the provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement shall apply.

In consideration of mutual promises, covenants and Agreement contained herein, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized representative and/or agents, do mutually covenant and agree as follows:

# ARTICLE 1. RECOGNITION

### Section 1 Unit Description

The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative for the purpose of collective bargaining on matters relating to wages, hours, working conditions and other terms and conditions of employment of the following unit.

Included: Full time/ Part Time employees in the classification of Community Health Specialist I — Public Health Associate, Community Health Specialist I — Administrative Assistant, Community Health Specialist II — Public Health Nurse, Community Health Specialist II — Surveillance Specialist, Community Health Specialist II — Community Health Practitioner, Community Health Specialist II — Environmental Health Practitioner, Community Health Specialist III — Epidemiologist Communicable Diseases, Community Health Specialist III — Epidemiologist Generalist, Community Health Specialist III — Data and Quality Coordinator, Community Health Specialist III — Emergency Response Coordinator, Community Health Specialist III — Communications Coordinator, Community Health Specialist III — Health Initiative Coordinator employed by the County of Kane.

Excluded: Executive Director, Assistant Director for Administration, Assistant Director for Community Health Resources, Assistant Director for Communicable Disease, Assistant Director for Public Health Nursing, Assistant Director for Environmental Health, Assistant Director for Community Health, Clinical Supervisor, Environmental Supervisor and Administrative Assistant as defined in the IPLRA and all other persons excluded from coverage under the Act such recognition is pursuant to S-RC-97-85.

Where the Employer finds it necessary to create a new job classification, the work of which falls within the scope of the bargaining unit, the Employer and Union agree to jointly petition the State Labor Board to seek the necessary unit clarification.

# Section 2 New Classifications

If a new position classification is created by the Employer, the Employer shall set the proper pay grade for the classification.

The Employer shall determine the proposed salary grade in relationship to:

- (A) The job content and responsibilities attached thereto in comparison with the job content and responsibilities of other position classifications in the Employer's work force;
- (B) Like positions with similar job content and responsibilities within the Kane County Government System if available otherwise to the Kane County Labor Market generally;
- (C) Significant differences in working conditions to comparable position classifications.

If the Union does not agree with the determination of the proposed salary grade the Employer establishes under this paragraph, then the Union shall within ten (10) days request a meeting with the Employer to discuss the Employer's action. The Employer shall thereafter meet with the Union and render a decision within twenty (20) calendar days. If the Union still disagrees with the decision of the Employer, they may submit the matter to Step IV of the Grievance Procedure with ten (10) days from the receipt of the Employer's decision.

# Section 3 Non-Bargaining Unit Personnel

Non-Bargaining Unit Personnel may continue to perform bargaining unit work which is incidental to their jobs. They may also perform bargaining unit work in emergency situations and where such work is necessary to train a bargaining unit employee. Such work by said personnel shall not cause any layoffs of the bargaining unit employees. Nothing in this paragraph is intended to alter or reduce the Employer's Management Rights.

# Section 4 Abolition, Merger or Change of Job Classification

If the Employer determines to abolish, merge or change existing classifications the Employer shall negotiate with the Union over the impact of such. Such negotiations shall include good faith impact bargaining as required under the Illinois Public Labor. Relations Act. The Parties agree that a change in job title in the bargaining unit shall not remove the job position from the bargaining unit as long as the type of work performed by the position remains essentially the same.

# Section 5 Job Audit

An employee who believes that she is performing work outside her job description shall be granted a job audit on the work being performed. A written request for a job audit or reclassification will be submitted through the Union and a written decision returned by the Program Manager within sixty (60) days. For a job audit, the employee will present for examination by the Program Manager, the following documents: the employee's current job description, grant or code requirements regarding performance standards (if pertinent), historical statistical tracking (if available), written documentation from the employee that shows how the employee spent her time for the thirty (30) work days: immediately, preceding the job audit request. If the employee does not have this information, they can request it from the Program manager who will provide it if it is available. If the job audit creates a reclassification for that employee, the affected employee will receive any retroactive increase in pay that was created by the reclassification.

# ARTICLE 2. PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES

Employees shall be "probationary employees" for his/her first four (4.) months of employment. However, on a case- by- case basis, the Employer will identify those individuals requiring an extension of 2 months. The Union and the Employer will mutually determine if the extension will be granted. No matter concerning the discipline, layoff, transfer or termination of a probationary employee shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedures. A probationary employee shall have no seniority except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, until he/she has completed his/her probationary period. Upon completion of his/her probationary period, he/she will acquire seniority from his/her date of hire. Employees shall be evaluated in writing by their supervisor's midway and near the completion of their probationary period. The employee will be given a copy of the evaluation at the time it is presented.

# ARTICLE 3. SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement or any application thereof should be rendered or declared unlawful, invalid or unenforceable by virtue of any judicial action, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. In such event, upon the request of either party, the parties shall meet promptly and negotiate with respect to substitute provisions for those provisions rendered or declared unlawful, invalid or unenforceable.

# ARTICLE 4. UNION SECURITY

#### **Section 1**

The Employer agrees to deduct from the pay of those employees who individually and voluntarily authorized it any or all of the following:

(A) Union membership dues, assessments, or fees:

- (B) Union sponsored credit union contribution or other union sponsored programs;
- (C) P.E.O.P.L.E. contributions.

Requests submitted by the Union for any of the above deductions shall be made in accordance with the terms of the affected employee's written authorization form and shall be consistent with all applicable laws and this Article 4. The Union shall advise the Employer in writing of the deduction rate and any increase in dues or other approved deductions in writing at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to its effective date. Such lawful and authorized deductions shall be remitted to AFSCME each payday by regular U.S. Mail sent to: AFSCME Council 31 at P.O. Box 2328, Springfield, IL 62705 2328.

There is nothing in this Section that is to be construed as an impediment to an employee's right to resign from union membership at any time. The Parties agree that any written authorization that is irrevocable for one year (or longer) must contain at least an annual ten (10) day period of time during which the employee may revoke the authorization.

Dues deduction authorization forms shall remain in effect until: (a) the Employer receives notice that the employee has revoked their authorization in writing in accordance with the terms of the authorization form; or (b) the affected employee is no longer employed by the Employer in a bargaining unit position represented by AFSCME, provided that if the affected employee is, within a period of one year, employed by the same Employer in a position represented by AFSCME, the right to dues deduction shall be automatically reinstated. Should the affected employee who signed a dues deduction authorization card either be removed from the Employer's payroll or otherwise placed on any type of involuntary or voluntary leave of absence, whether paid or unpaid, the employee's dues deduction shall be continued upon the employee's return to the payroll in a bargaining unit position represented by AFSCME or restoration to active duty from such a leave of absence. Upon receipt by AFSCME of an appropriate written authorization from an employee, written notice of authorization shall be provided to the Employer, and any authorized deductions shall be made in accordance with the law. AFSCME shall indemnify the Employer for any damages and reasonable costs incurred for any claims made by employees for deductions made in good faith reliance on AFSCME's notification pursuant to this Article 4.

# Section 2 Notice and Appeal

The Union agrees to provide notices and appeal procedures to employees in accordance with applicable law.

#### Section 3 Indemnification

The Union shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Employer harmless against any claim, demand, suit or liability arising from any action taken by the Employer in complying with this Article.

# ARTICLE 5. NON-DISCRIMINATION

# Section 1 Prohibition Against Discrimination

Both the Employer and the Union agree not to illegally discriminate against any employee on the basis of race, sex, creed, religion, color, marital or parental status, age, national origin, sexual orientation, disability or political affiliation, provided however that all personnel of the Department must at all times support and defend the Constitution and laws of the Unites States, State of Illinois and laws promulgated there from.

### Section 2 Union Membership of Activity

Neither the Employer nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this Agreement to become or not become members of the Union, and there shall be no discrimination against any such employees because of lawful Union membership or non membership activity or status.

### Section 3 Equal Employment/Affirmative Action

The parties recognize the Employer's obligation to comply with federal and state Equal Employment and sex discrimination laws applicable to the Employer.

# ARTICLE 6. NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT

The Union agrees that there will be no participation or support in any sympathy strike, work stoppage, slow down or other interruption of the Employer's business by the Union or its members during the term of this Agreement. The Union agrees that it will use its best efforts to prevent any acts forbidden in this Article and that, in the event any such acts (or inaction) takes place and/or are engaged in by any employee or group or group of employees. The Union further agrees it will use its best efforts to cause an immediate cessation thereof within twenty-four (24) hours. The Employer agrees that there shall be no lockout during the term of this Agreement

Both parties shall be entitled to all remedies available at law based on any violation of this Article.

# ARTICLE 7. SENIORITY

# Section 1 <u>Definition</u>

For the purpose of this agreement the following definitions shall apply:

(A) County-wide Seniority means an employee's uninterrupted employment with the County since his/her last date of hire.

- (B) Classification Seniority means the length of uninterrupted employment as an employee has in his/her current classification.
- (C) Departmental Seniority means the length of uninterrupted employment an employee has in the Health Department.
- (D) Bargaining Unit Seniority means the length of uninterrupted employment in a bargaining unit position in the Health Department

A probationary employee shall have no seniority except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, until he/she has completed his/her probationary period. Upon completion of his/her probationary period he/she will acquire seniority from his/her date of hire.

(Part-time employees shall receive seniority on a prorated basis.)

To break a tie between employees with the same seniority, the employees shall draw lots.

# Section 2 Loss of Seniority

An employee shall lose his/her applicable seniority in accordance with Section 1 and no longer be an employee if:

- (A) He/she resigns or quits by giving an official letter of resignation.
- (B) He/she is discharged for just cause unless reversed through the Grievance or Arbitration Procedure.
- (C) He/she retires.
- (D) He/she does not return to work from layoff or authorized leave of absence within ten (10) calendar days after being notified by certified mail to return.
- (E) He/she has been on layoff for a period of time equal to his/her county wide seniority at the time of his/her layoff or 18 months, whichever is greater.
- (F) He/she accepts "gainful employment" that is inconsistent with the purpose of the authorized leave while/on an approved leave of absence from the Employer.

### Section 3 Seniority List

The Employer and Union have agreed upon the initial seniority list setting forth the present seniority dates for all employees covered by this Agreement. Such lists shall resolve all the questions of seniority affecting employees covered under this Agreement or employed at the time the Agreement becomes effective. Disputes as to seniority listing shall be resolved through the grievance procedure starting at Step 3: The initial list is attached hereto as Appendix B and made a part hereof.

# Section 4 Seniority While on Leave

Employees will continue to accrue seniority credit for all time spent on authorized leave of absence up to three (3) months: Employees on military leave will continue to accrue seniority, in accordance with Article 19 regarding military leave of absence.

# ARTICLE 8. LAYOFF AND RECALL

### Section 1 Procedure for Layoff

- (A) When employees are removed from any classification within a division for the purpose of reducing the work force of any classification within a division, the employee with the least bargaining unit seniority in the affected classification within the division shall be removed first. Probationary employees shall be laid off first.
- (B) A removed employee shall bump, conditioned upon being qualified to perform the work available as determined by the Employer, in the following order:
  - 1. To a vacancy, if any, in the same classification, in the same pay grade.
  - 2. To replace an employee with less seniority, if any, in the same classification and the same pay grade.
  - 3. To a vacancy, if any, in another classification, in the same pay grade.
  - 4. To replace an employee with less seniority, if any, in another classification in the same pay grade.
  - 5. To a vacancy, if any, in any classification assigned to the next lower pay grade.
  - 6. To replace an employee with less seniority, **if** any, in a classification assigned to the next lower pay grade.

A salary reduction may or may not accompany the employee's transfer depending upon the salary the employee makes and the salary the position carries.

- (C) A removed employee shall have the procedures applied as set forth in subsection (B) above, until the employee is transferred or laid off.
- (D) In applying the procedures set forth in (B) and (C) above, a removed full-time employee shall be transferred to another full-time position for which there is a vacancy and for which that employee is qualified. A removed part-

- time employee may be transferred to either a full-time or part-time position for which there is a vacancy and for which that employee is qualified
- (E) If more than one vacancy exists, or if there is more than one probationary employee at the time of removal, the Employer shall have the discretion to transfer the removed employee to the position the Employer deems appropriate:
- (F) Layoff of probationary employees shall be by date of hire (i.e., start date).
- (G) If the employee who is removed requests assignment to a temporary position and is qualified to perform that job, the Employer may transfer that individual to that position.
- (H) If the removed employee is transferred to a position pursuant to this Section and the employee refuses to accept that position, provided the position the employee is being transferred to involves generally the same job duties and conditions of employment, or if the employee is unable to assume the responsibilities of the position due to circumstances beyond the control of the employee, the employee shall be placed at the bottom of the recall list.

# Section 2 Procedure for Recall

An employee with seniority who has been laid off or transferred as a result of a layoff shall be recalled to work, conditioned upon ability to perform the work available in accordance with the reverse application of the procedure for layoff. Recall rights shall continue for eighteen months after an employee has been laid off.

In the event of recall, eligible employees shall receive notice of recall by certified mail, return receipt requested. It is the responsibility of all employees eligible for recall to notify the Employer of their current address. Upon receipt of the notice of recall, employees shall have five (5) business days thereafter to report to work. If the employee fails to report to work within five (5) business days or longer by mutual agreement, that employee shall be terminated and will no longer be subject to this section.

If an employee returns to work within thirty (30) calendar days of a layoff, the employee will be reinstated with no break in service and with all previous seniority rights. For benefit purposes, an employee's length of service will be reduced by the length of time the employee was laid off.

Probationary employees who have been laid off have no recall privileges.

#### Section 3 Notice

The Employer shall notify the Union thirty (30) calendar days prior to the intended effective date of a planned layoff. The Employer and the Union will discuss alternatives to the layoff if put forth by the Union.

Any employee to be laid off will be notified thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date.

# Section 4 Benefits

Benefits at layoff are those applicable to terminations. Health insurance coverage will be continued for up to six months as long as the employee portion of the monthly premium is paid by the 15th of the month. After six months, COBRA coverage applies.

# ARTICLE 9. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

# Section 1 Grievance

A Grievance is defined as a dispute or disagreement as to the interpretation and application of any provision of this Agreement. Grievances may be processed by the Union on behalf of an employee or on behalf of a group of employees or itself setting forth name(s) or group(s) of the employee(s). Either party may have the grievant or one grievant representing a group of grievants present at any step of the grievance procedure. The resolution of a grievance filed on behalf of a group of employees shall be made applicable to the appropriate employees within that group.

Business days shall include the weekdays of Monday through Friday, excluding holidays or other days the Employer's office is closed.

# Section 2 Grievance Steps

At no point will an Employer representative render a response to a grievance at more than one (1) step. In the event a grievance is filed by or on behalf of an employee in the Finance Division, the grievance will begin at Step 2 of the Grievance Procedure. If a program does not have a Program Manager because the position is vacant, the grievance may be submitted at Step 2.

# STEP 1. Immediate Supervisor

The employees and/or the Union shall raise the grievance with the employee's immediate supervisor who is outside the bargaining unit by submitting a written Grievance Form. The written grievance shall contain a statement of the grievant's complaint, the section(s) of the Agreement allegedly violated, if applicable, the date of the alleged violation, if applicable, and the relief sought. The form shall be signed and dated by the grievant. Improper grievance form, date or section citation shall not be ground for denial of the grievance.

All grievances must be presented not later than fifteen (15) business days from the date the grievant(s) become aware of the occurrence giving rise to the complaint and shall be handed in person to the grievant's immediate supervisor who shall immediately acknowledge receipt. The immediate supervisor (and/or designee) shall meet with the steward and grievants) to discuss the grievance within fifteen (15) business days and render a written response to the grievance within seven (7) business days after the grievance is presented. If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the grievant shall indicate her intent to proceed to Step 2 of the Grievance Form and the employee's immediate supervisor shall acknowledge this by initialing and dating the statement of intent to proceed. In those circumstances where securing the signature of the immediate supervisor who is physically not available to sign would have adversely affected a timely submittal to the second level, the grievance will be submitted to the second level without such signature. A copy of the grievance shall subsequently be provided to the immediate supervisor for such signature. The Union is entitled to be present at any grievance meeting and any grievance settlement should not conflict with this Contract.

#### STEP 2. Division Director

In the event the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, it shall be presented in writing by the Union to the Division Director or his/her designee within ten (10) business days from the receipt of the answer or the date the answer was due, whichever is earlier.

Upon receipt of the written grievance at Step 2, the Division Director (and/or designee) shall meet with the steward and grievant(s) to discuss the grievance within fifteen (15) business days and render a written response to the grievance within seven (7) business days after the grievance is presented at this Step.

# STEP 3. Executive Director

If the grievance is still unresolved, it shall be presented by the Union to the Executive Director, or designee, in writing within ten (10) business days after receipt of the Step 2 response or after the Step 2 response is due, whichever is earlier.

Within seven (7) business days after the receipt of the written grievance the parties shall meet, or hold other discussions in an attempt to solve the grievance unless the parties mutually agree otherwise: The Executive Director or designee shall give his/her written response within seven (7) business days following the meeting.

If no meeting is held, the Executive Director or his/her designee shall respond in writing to the grievance within seven (7) days of receipt of the grievance at this level of the grievance procedure.

#### STEP 4. Arbitration

If the grievance is still unsettled it may be presented to arbitration within fifteen (15) business days after receipt of the Step 3 response or the date the response was due, whichever is earlier. Upon request of either party, the parties may meet within fifteen (15) business days after receipt of request for arbitration for the purpose of conducting a pre-arbitration conference, to attempt to resolve the grievance prior to arbitration. If the grievance remains unresolved or a pre-arbitration conference is not requested, representatives of the Employer and the Union shall attempt to agree upon an arbitrator. If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator within the five (5) business days, the parties shall request the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a list of seven (7) arbitrators. The parties shall alternately strike the names of three (3) arbitrators, taking turns as to the first strike. The person whose name remains shall be the arbitrator, provided that either party, before striking any names, shall have the right to reject one (1) panel of arbitrators. The arbitrator shall be notified of his/her selection by a joint letter from the Employer and the Union requesting that he/she set a time and place for the hearing, subject to the availability of the Employer and Union representatives and shall be notified of the issue where mutually agreed by the parties.

#### **Section 3** Arbitration Procedures

Both the parties agree to attempt to arrive at a joint stipulation of the facts and issues as outlined to be submitted to the arbitrator.

The Employer or Union shall have the right to request the arbitrator to require the presence of witnesses and /or documents. Each party shall bear the expense of its own witnesses who are not employees of the Employer.

Questions of arbitrability shall be decided by the arbitrator. The arbitrator shall make a preliminary determination on the question of arbitrability. Once a determination is made that the matter is arbitrable or is such preliminary determination cannot be reasonably made, the arbitrator shall then proceed to determine the merits of that dispute. The arbitrator shall neither amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add nor subtract from the provisions of the Agreement.

The expenses and fees of the arbitrator and the cost of the hearing room shall be shared equally by the parties. Nothing in this Article shall preclude the parties from agreeing to use expedited arbitration procedures.

The decision and award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding for the Employer, the Union, and the employee or employees involved.

If either party desires a verbatim record of the proceeding, it may cause such a record to be made, providing it pays for the record and makes a copy available without charge to the arbitrator. If the other party desires a copy it shall pay for the cost of its copy.

### Section 4 Advanced Grievance Step Filing

Certain issues which by nature are not capable of being settled at a preliminary step of the grievance procedure or which would become moot due to the length of time necessary to exhaust the grievance steps, may by mutual agreement be filed at the appropriate advance step where the action giving rise to the grievance was initiated. Mutual agreement shall take place between the appropriate Union representative and the appropriate Employer representative at the step where it is desired to initiate the grievance.

# Section 5 Time Limits

- (A) Grievances may be withdrawn at any step of the Grievance Procedure. Such withdrawal shall not constitute a decision on the merits of the Grievance. Grievances not raised or appealed within the designated time limits will be barred.
- (B) The time limits at any step or for any hearing may be extended by mutual agreement of the parties involved at that particular step.
- (C) Failure to respond within the time limits by the designated person shall automatically advance the grievance to the next step.

# Section 6 Time Off, Meeting Space and Telephone Use

- (A) Time Off: The grievant(s) and/or Union grievance representative will be permitted reasonable time without loss of pay during their working hours to investigate and process grievances. Witnesses whose testimony is pertinent to the Union's presentation or argument will be permitted reasonable time without loss of pay to attend grievance meetings and/or respond to the Union's investigation. No employee or Union representative shall leave his/her work to investigate, file or process grievances without first notifying and receiving permission from his/her supervisor or designee as well as the supervisor of any unit to be visited, and such permission shall not be denied unreasonably. Employees attending grievance meetings shall normally be those having direct involvement in the grievance.
- (B) Meeting Space and Telephone Use: Upon request, the employee and Union representative shall be allowed the use of an available appropriate room as long as one is available while investigating or processing a grievance and upon prior general approval, shall be permitted the reasonable use of telephone facilities for the purpose of investigating or processing grievances. Such use shall not include any long distance or toll calls at the expense of the Employer.

### Section 7 Pertinent Witnesses and Information

Either Party may request the production of specific documents, books, papers of witnesses reasonably available from the other party and substantially pertinent to the grievance under

consideration. Such documents shall be deemed pertinent if they support or refute the issue(s) set forth in the grievance. Such request shall not be unreasonably denied, and if granted shall be in conformance with applicable laws, and rules issued pursuant thereto, governing the dissemination of such materials. This paragraph is applicable to arbitration proceedings only.

# ARTICLE 10. DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

# Section 1 Discipline and Discharge

The parties recognize the principles of progressive and corrective discipline when appropriate.

- (A) Disciplinary action or measures should include the following:
  - 1. Oral reprimand (notice to be given in writing)
  - 2. Two (2) written reprimands (notice to be given in writing)
  - 3. Suspension (notice to be given in writing)
  - 4. Discharge (notice to be given in writing)
- (B) Disciplinary action may be imposed upon an employee only for just cause.
- (C) If the Employer has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass the employee before other employees or the public. Employees must sign for receipt of oral reprimands, written reprimands and/or suspensions but such signature does not indicate that employees are in agreement with the discipline. The Employer will inform AFSCME and the affected employee(s) of any contemplated disciplinary action as soon as practicable after the Employer's completion of its investigation.

# Section 2 <u>Limitation</u>

The Employer's agreement to recognize the principles of progressive and corrective disciplinary action does not prohibit the Employer in any case from imposing discipline which is commensurate with the severity of the offense. For oral and written reprimands, the Employer shall provide the Union with a copy of the reprimand. For all other disciplinary action, the Employer shall notify the Union by submitting a copy of the disciplinary action to the employee and the Union steward and shall reflect the specific nature of the offense.

#### Section 3 Pre-Disciplinary Meeting

For discipline other than oral and written reprimands, prior to imposing the contemplated discipline on the employee, the Employer shall meet with the employee involved and inform the employee of the contemplated discipline and the reason thereof. The Union will be notified by the

Employer that it wishes to hold a pre-disciplinary meeting. The employee shall be informed of her contract rights to union representation and it shall be provided, if requested by the employee. The employee and Union representative shall be given the opportunity to rebut or clarify the reasons for such discipline and further provided that a Union representative shall be available within twenty-four (24) hours of notification. If the employee does not request Union representative, a Union representative shall nevertheless be entitled to be present as a non-active participant to any and all such meetings, provided that said Union representative must be available when the meetings take place within 24 hours after notice.

If the Employer determines that there is evidence or reasonable suspicion that an employee has committed a serious or flagrant offense or one which could have detrimental impact on the morale of the office or to the integrity of its operations, at Employer's discretion, an employee may be placed on administrative leave and will notify the Union in writing within two (2) business days. If the employee desires to contest being placed on administrative leave, she or a Union representative shall give written notice thereof to the Employer within (7) business days of the commencement of the leave. In such event, the dispute shall be submitted and processed under the grievance procedure set forth in Article 10 of the Agreement commencing at Step 3.

# Section 4 Investigative Interviews

Where the Employer desires to conduct an investigatory interview of an employee where the results of the interview might result in discipline, the Employer agrees to first inform the employee that the employee has the right to Union representation at such interview. If the employee desires such Union representation, no interview shall take place without the presence of a Union representative. The role of the Union representative is limited to assisting the employee, clarifying the facts and suggesting other employees who may have knowledge of the facts. If the employee does not request Union representation, a Union representative shall nevertheless be entitled to be present as a non-active participant at any and all such meetings provided that a Union representative is available within 24 hours' notice from Employer to the Union.

### Section 5 Removal of Discipline

Records of discipline other than suspensions shall be removed from the employee's personnel file, if one year passes from the date of the offense without the employee receiving discipline for the same offense. However, if the employee finds an error in their file, then the Employer has ten (10) days to rectify the situation and send the original to the employee.

# ARTICLE 11. PERSONNEL FILES

# Section 1 Personnel Files and Right to Inspection by Employee

As part of the scheduling of the annual evaluation meeting, the Employer will notify employee of his/her right to inspect his/her personnel file pursuant to Article 11 of the CBA, subject to the following:

- (A) The employee shall not be permitted to remove any part of the personnel file from the premises but may obtain copies of any information contained therein following the inspection.
- (B) Upon written authorization by the requesting employee (as reflected on the form provided for this purpose), that employee may have a representative of the Union present during such inspection.

Pre-employment information, such as reference reports or other information that is exempt from disclosure pursuant to the Illinois Personnel Record Review Act will not be subject to inspection by Employee (or the union) and shall be retained in a confidential manner by the Employer when appropriate.

### Section 2 Notification

Employees shall be given notice by the Employer when any materials are placed in their personnel file except those of a routine, clerical nature.

# Section 3 Limitation on Use of File Material

It is agreed than any material not available for inspection, such as provided in Section 1 and 2 above shall not be used in any manner or any forum adverse to the employee's interest.

# Section 4 Personnel Record Correction

If the employee disagrees with any information contained in the personnel record, a removal or correction of that information may be mutually agreed upon by the employee and the Employer. The employee may submit a written statement explaining the employee's position, which shall be attached to the personnel record.

# ARTICLE 12. EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

# Section 1 Orientation

The Employer and the Union recognize the need for training and development of employees in order that services are efficiently and effectively provided and employees are afforded the opportunity to develop their skills and potential. In recognition of such principle the Employer shall endeavor to provide employees with reasonable orientation with respect to current procedures, forms, methods, techniques, materials, and equipment normally used in such employees' work assignments and periodic changes therein, including, where available and relevant to such work, procedural manuals.

The Employer will post in all relevant program areas, opportunities for training and career development in order to allow all employees to communicate to the Employer their desire to participate in such training in a timely manner. However, the opportunity for training and career development must be program specific and is subject to final approval by the appropriate Supervisor who will communicate to the employee a confirmation or denial of such training.

# Section 2 Tuition Reimbursement and Career Development

The Employer will also pay for the cost of a work-related license that an employee is required to have for the position the employee occupies. Such amount shall not be subtracted from the amount specified in the above paragraph.

Employees will be paid in accordance with the County's travel and reimbursement policy.

### **TUITION REIMBURSEMENT**

- (A) Each eligible and approved course may be reimbursed up to a maximum of fifty percent (50%) of the cost of tuition for the course.
- (B) The maximum reimbursable amount for each employee shall not exceed \$2,400 in any fiscal year.
- (C) If an employee receives total reimbursements in a calendar year that exceeds \$5,250 (or the amount then in effect as specified by Section 127 of the Internal Revenue Service Code) the amount that exceeds \$5,250 will be included in the taxable gross income of the employee.
- (D) The lifetime maximum reimbursable to any individual employee may not exceed \$9,600.
- (E) Part-time employees, seasonal employees, County Board members, elected officials, appointed officials and employees of the Forest Preserve are not eligible to participate in the program.
- (F) The amount of any reimbursement shall be reduced by the amount received from any other source, i.e., grants, fellowships, and scholarships.
- (G) The County will not pay reimbursement to any employee who resigns or is terminated for any reason (except involuntary separation). Involuntary separation occurs when the County takes action to end the employment relationship.
- (H) An employee participating in this program will be expected to remain a fulltime employee of the County for a period of one (1) year from the date of the last reimbursement. An employee who terminates employment prior to the expiration of said one (1) year shall repay the County according to this prorated schedule:
  - 100% of any tuition reimbursed for courses completed within the one (1) year period if the employee leaves within six (6) months of receiving the last course reimbursement.

• 75% of any tuition reimbursed for courses completed within the one (1) year period if the employee leaves six (6) months after but before twelve (12) months of receiving the last course reimbursement.

It is the employee's responsibility to arrange a class schedule that does not conflict with his/her regular work hours. It is expected that time needed to take classes will be limited to the employee's paid time off or after work hours. If a course is available only during regular work hours, the department head or elected official has discretion to permit an employee's absence from work if the operational needs of the office or department will not be negatively affected. Any work time missed for class and travel time must be made up.

# Section 3 <u>Certifications</u>

The Health Department will provide eligible employees a three percent (3%) increase in base pay after attaining their initial license from the State of Illinois and/or the following certifications: English/Spanish Medical Interpreter, Licensed Environmental Health Practitioner, Clinical Nurse Specialist and Certified Lactation Consultants. Any other certifications will be determined per the Task Force on certifications as per past practice and the language in this contract agreement.

#### **COMPENSATION:**

(A) Compensation will be provided to Health Department employees who show proof of successfully completing a certificate program for the above listed certifications along with all those that will be mutually agreed upon by the Task Force. All eligible employees who successfully attain certification will be given a three percent (3%) wage increase effective the date of certification attainment. Employees receiving certificate compensation will be required to provide that specialized service at the directive of the Supervisor.

#### PROOF OF ELIGIBILITY:

(A) Employees eligible for any of the certification programs must provide the Employer a copy of a certification letter or other documentation as proof that confirms the employee has successfully completed the certificate program from a third party (i.e., Community College, University, or a mutually agreed upon certification program). This documentation will be placed in the employee's personnel file.

#### ENGLISH/SPANISH MEDICAL INTERPRETER CERTIFICATION:

(A) Employees in the Public Health Associates (PHA), Administrative Assistants of Kane Kares classifications will be required to have a certification for medical interpretation of English/Spanish. Current Health Department employees in the PHA classification will be mandated to acquire the interpreter certification within one year of this signed agreement. The Employer will provide the training opportunity during the regular work day and the funding to the current PHA employees within the time period

specified. The Employer will develop an individualized action plan to assist employees in achieving the needed certification. This will include up to two (2) opportunities within the year to pass the competency exam required for the certification. The Employer will review all employees who are not successful in attaining the certificate within the one year time frame with the Labor Management Committee and explore alternatives for these employees.

- (B) All new hires in the PHA classification will be required to show proof of the interpreter certification from a third party as identified above. The job description of the PHA will be revised to reflect the interpreter certification requirement.
- (C) Other classifications eligible for medical bi-lingual interpreter compensation are: case managers, case monitors, and nurses. Receptionists and sanitarians are eligible for bi-lingual interpretation certification. All classifications must provide proof of certificate. The Employer reserves the right to limit the number of interpreters for compensation outside of the PHA classification. If the Employer limits the number of eligible applicants for certification, seniority per classification will determine selection.
- (D) Clinical Nurse Specialist Certification:
- (E) The employee must show proof of a Clinical Nurse Specialist certification in Community Health/Public Health Nursing from the American Nurses Association (board affiliated with ANA).

### **ELIGIBILITY:**

(A) Classifications considered for the Clinical Nurse Specialist are: Registered Nurses (RNs). The Employer will reimburse eligible employees for the cost of the certification exam. The Employer reserves the right to limit the number of clinical nurse specialist. If the Employer limits the number of eligible applicants for certification, seniority per classification will determine selection.

### **CERTIFIED LACTATION CONSULTANTS:**

- (A) The Employer agrees to compensate up to 3 Certified Lactation Consultants (certification from the International Le Leche League, Illinois Department of Human Services and other mutually agreed upon certificate programs may apply.)
- (B) Eligibility: Classifications considered for the Certified Lactation Consultants are: Nutritionists and Registered Nurses (RNs). The eligible employee must have an overall annual evaluation rating of 3.0 or higher on their last performance evaluation. The Employer will reimburse eligible employees for the cost of the training and the exam upon certification

attainment. If there are more than 3 qualified applicants, seniority will determine selection.

# ARTICLE 13. LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

# Section 1 Labor Management Conferences

The Union and the Employer mutually agree that in the interest of efficient management and harmonious employee relations, it is desirable that meetings be held between the Union representatives and responsible administrative representatives of the Employer. Such meetings may be requested at least seven (7) days in advance by either party by placing in writing a request to the other for a labor-management conference and expressly providing the agenda for such meeting. If there is no agenda prepared and submitted by the requesting party, there shall be no meeting. Either party may add to the agenda no later than three (3) days prior to the scheduled meeting date, unless otherwise mutually agreed. In no event shall an employee be entitled to overtime compensation for participation in a Labor-Management Conference meeting. Such meetings and locations shall be limited to:

- (A) Discussion of the implementation and general administration of this Agreement.
- (B) A sharing of general information of interest to the parties, including salary survey information.
- (C) Notifying the Union of charges in non-bargaining conditions of employment contemplated by the Employer which may affect employees:
- (D) Discussing any work-related problems of mutual concern and for the advancement of better relations and efficient operations.
- (E) Discussing improvements in the work environment in order to ensure the safety and health of all employees.

The Employer and the Union agree to cooperate with each other in matters of the administration of this Agreement.

To effectuate the purposes and intent of the parties, both parties agree to meet every two (2) months, unless mutually agreed otherwise. Meeting shall be held at the Employer's office and shall be limited to two (2) hours.

### Section 2 Integrity of Grievance Procedure

It is expressly understood and agreed that such meetings shall be exclusive of the grievance procedure. Such meeting shall not be used to address personnel issues which are pertinent only to one member of the collective bargaining unit. Employees may address personnel issues which are pertinent only to one member of the collective bargaining unit, which are not grievances or disciplinary matters, with the Program Manager. The employee may be accompanied by a Union

Representative at such meeting. Such discussion may take place during the employee's regular working hours, but in no event may the employee or the Union Representative be paid overtime.

# Section 3 Union Representative Attendance

When absence from work is required to attend labor-management conferences, employees shall, before leaving their work station, give at least one week advance notice to and receive approval from, their Program Manager to remain in pay status. The Division Director shall approve the absence in emergency situations. The Union shall designate up to four individuals, one from each division, to attend the meeting.

# ARTICLE 14. HOLIDAYS

#### Section 1

Employees shall receive holidays approved annually by the County Board Executive Committee.

#### Section 2

Regular full-time employees shall receive a full day's pay. However, when an employee takes an unscheduled/unexcused day off for any reason before or after a holiday, the employee will not be paid for the holiday, except if the employee provides a doctor's note. If an employee comes to work either the day before or day after a holiday and it is apparent to the Employer that the employee needs to leave work due to illness, the employee will not have to provide a doctor's note.

#### Section 3

Regular part-time employees shall receive pay proportional to be average number of hours normally worked for the scheduled holiday (i.e., normally work four (4) hours a day, shall receive four (4) hours pay).

#### Section 4

When a scheduled holiday occurs during a scheduled vacation, an alternate day of vacation will be allowed.

#### Section 5

Normally, employees shall not be scheduled or called in to work on holidays. In the event they are scheduled or called in to work on a holiday, employees shall be paid at their regular rate of pay and receive an alternate paid day off to be taken at a later date, subject to the approval of the Employer based upon the operational needs of the department.

At the discretion of the employee who worked on a holiday, the employee may either: (a) receive compensation only for the hours actually worked on the holiday and take a full alternate

paid day off at a later date, or (b) receive compensation for the hours actually worked on the holiday as well as holiday pay for the portion of the holiday that was not worked, and take a partial alternate paid day off at a later date equal to the number of hours that the employee worked on the holiday; provided, however, that the alternate paid holiday hours must be take prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the hours were earned or within 90 days from the date of the holiday, whichever is later.

#### Section 6

Employees will be limited to two (2) extended holiday weekends in a calendar year. An extended holiday weekend will result when the employee requests either the day(s) before or the day(s) after a holiday and those days encompass a weekend as described in the examples below. Additional requests for holiday weekends will be permitted if operational needs allow. Subject to the operational needs of the program, the request will be granted on a first-come, first granted basis.

- (A) Example #1: the holiday falls on Friday and the employee requests the following Monday off;
- (B) Example #2: the holiday falls on Monday and the employee requests the preceding Friday off;
- (C) Example #3: the holiday falls on Thursday and the employee requests the following Friday off;
- (D) Example #4: the holiday falls on Tuesday and the employee requests the preceding Monday off;
- (E) Example #5: the holiday falls on Wednesday and the employee requests the preceding Monday and Tuesday off;
- (F) Example #6: the holiday falls on Wednesday and the employee requests the following Thursday and Friday off.

# ARTICLE 15. VACATIONS

#### Section 1 Accrual

Vacation time is calculated from the first of the month in which the last date of hire occurred. All employees shall earn vacation time in accordance with the schedule below. Part-time employees shall receive vacation time proportionate to the average number of hours worked. Employees shall accumulate vacation based on countywide seniority. During the first year of employment only, an employee may borrow up to five (5) days of vacation. If an employee elects to borrow up to five (5) days of vacation during the first year of employment, only five (5) days of vacation remain to be taken during the employee's second year of employment.

(A) At completion of 1 year -- 10 days

- (B) At completion of 5 years -- 15 days
- (C) At completion of 15 years -- 20 days

Purchase of Military Service Credit — Notwithstanding the earning schedule set above, County employees who present proof of having purchased military service credit from the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund pursuant to a duly approved resolution by the Kane County Board, will earn vacation time at a rate that equals their County employment plus the number of months of military service credits that were purchased. Proof must be presented to the Human Resources Department so that the employee's vacation accrual schedule is properly adjusted.

### Section 2 Use

Vacation time may be taken in increments of not less than one-half (1/2) hour at a time and any time after it is earned. Vacation must be taken prior to the employee's anniversary date or it will be forfeited unless carryover is specifically approved by the Executive Director. The allowance of carryover will be subject to the operational needs of the Health Department, and the time must be taken within 60 (sixty) days of carryover. The Employer shall not unreasonably deny use of vacation. If an employee is not able to utilize their vacation prior to it being forfeited due to Employer's denial, vacation leave shall be extended for sixty (60) days provided the employee has requested the Employer's approval at least one (1) week prior to expiration.

#### Section 3 Vacation Scheduling Conflicts

From October 15 to November 15 inclusive, of each fiscal year, employees may submit in writing to the Employer their vacation preferences for the following calendar year. Employees who file their vacation requests by November 15 shall receive responses by the last day of November. Vacations will be granted by departmental seniority.

Vacation requests made after November 15 shall be granted on a first come, first serve basis; multiple requests made on the same day shall be determined by departmental seniority. The Employer shall respond to requests within 10 business days.

Vacations will be scheduled with prime consideration given to the efficient operation of the division and the department. While employee requests will be honored whenever possible, final approval must be given by the Executive Director to provide continuity of operations.

### Section 4 Separation Pay

Employees, or in case of death, their estate, shall be compensated for unused vacation earned upon separation.

#### Section 5 Holidays

When a scheduled holiday occurs during a scheduled vacation, an alternate day of vacation will be allowed.

# Section 6 <u>Vacation Pay</u>

All vacation leave will be paid at the regular rate based on the length of the employee's normal workday.

### Section 7 <u>Vacation Checks</u>

Employees who will be on vacation on a payday may have their paycheck deposited by mail in their checking or savings account. A written request for this service must be made to the payroll clerk of the Finance Department, along with a deposit slip, at least two (2) work days before the payday.

# ARTICLE 16. SICK LEAVE

# Section 1 Accrual and Use

It is the policy of Kane County to provide protection for eligible employees against loss of income because of illness. To ensure that protection, the County has made provisions for both short-term and extended sick leave reserves. All regular full-time and part-time employees are eligible. Part-time employees earn sick leave proportionate to the average number of hours worked. Sick leave pay is based on the employee's regular straight-time rate in effect when the sick leave is taken. Employees must first use short-term sick leave and sick or funeral pay earned and accumulated prior to December 1, 1989, before they can use extended sick leave.

# Section 2 Short-Term Sick Leave/Personal Day Accumulation

"Sick leave year" is defined as the twelve (12) month period beginning December 1 of each year. Eligible employees, who have completed twelve (12) months of continuous service as of December 1 of the applicable sick leave year, will be credited with five (5) days. Employees who have completed less than twelve (12) months of continuous service as of December 1 of the applicable sick leave year, will be credited with short-term sick leave at the rate of one and one-quarter (1<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub>) days for each remaining quarter within that year once they have completed six (6) months of County employ.

# Section 3 Short-Term Sick Leave/Personal Day Utilization

An employee's short-term sick leave credit can be used for personal injury, disability or illness of the employee or appointments with a physician or dentist.

Short-term sick leave may also be used in the event of illness, disability or injury of a member of an employee's "immediate family or household" on days the employee is scheduled to work. For purposes of this Section, the "immediate family" shall be the employee's (step or adopted included): children, father, mother, current spouse, brother, sister, father in law, mother in law, brother in law, sister in law, son in law, daughter in law, grandparents, grandchildren or spouse's grandchildren. For purposes of this Section, the term "household" means a family member or individual who resides permanently in the employee's home and for whom the employee is financially responsible or where the presence of the employee is needed. No doctor's note is

required. An employee may use these days as personal days. Such leave may be used in increments of not less than one-half (1/2) hour at a time.

# Section 4 <u>Unused Short-Term Sick/Personal Leave Carryover and Payment at Termination</u>

Short-term sick/personal days will not accumulate from year to year. At the end of the sick leave year, all unused sick/personal days will roll over into extended sick leave. Upon termination, employees will be expected to pay back any and all short-term sick days used that were not previously earned, at a rate of one and one-quarter  $(1^1/4)$  days for every quarter not worked. If an employee terminates and has unused short-term sick leave, the employee will be paid at a rate of one and one-quarter  $(1^1/4)$  days for every quarter worked in the benefit year provided the employee gives fourteen (14) calendar days written notice to the employee's Program Manager.

The Employer shall maintain a record of sick leave accrual, sick leave taken, and the balance of sick leave allowance available for the individual employees.

# Section 5 Extended Sick Leave Accumulation

Eligible employees will be credited with one (1) day of extended sick leave per month after an initial 6 month period of employment is completed. Unused extended sick leave will carry over from year to year and may accumulate to a maximum of two hundred forty (240) days.

### Section 6 Extended Sick Leave Utilization

Unlike short-term sick leave, extended sick leave is intended to provide employees with protection during periods when the employee is under a doctor's care at home or is hospitalized. Extended sick leave is to be used during periods of personal injury, illness or maternity until IMRF disability benefits begin.

An employee may utilize extended sick leave for himself/herself prior to utilizing short-term sick leave if the employee has a serious health condition and is under a doctor's care at home or in the hospital. In addition, an employee may use up to three (3) extended sick leave days during a fiscal year to care for a spouse, the employee's parents and employee's children (biological and adopted). A doctor's certification is required to support the request for extended sick leave. All doctor's notes must be on either a physician's stationary or documentation that displays the physician's address, phone number and a signature.

Prior to a leave of absence, and the Executive Director's approval, an employee may choose to reserve any of the remaining sick days provided in Section 1 to be used subsequent to the leave.

### Section 7 Sick or Funeral Leave Earned Prior to December 1, 1989

Employees who earned and accumulated sick and funeral pay under the policy in effect prior to December 1, 1989, can carry this time forward and use it for any purpose appropriate under that policy. Under the policy, employees could accumulate up to thirty (30) sick or funeral days. Uses included personal illness or injury, funeral leave, maternity, serious illness in the immediate family, three to one (3:1) conversion for vacation, one-third (1/3) payment at termination or full

payment at retirement when receiving an IMRF pension. The sick and funeral leave earned prior to December 1, 1989, may be carried over from year to year. Employees must use these days prior to using the short-term sick/personal days described in Section 1.

# Section 8 Payment for Unused Extended Sick Leave

No payment for unused extended sick leave is made at termination. Retiring employees under IMRF qualify for up to one year of additional pension service for unused extended sick leave at the rate of one month for every twenty (20) days or fraction thereof. To qualify for this pension credit, the effective date of the pension must be within sixty (60) days of termination. This additional pension service credit applies solely to employees retiring with an IMRF pension.

Converted extended sick leave cannot be used to meet the requirements of a minimum of eight (8) years for an IMRF pension or thirty-five (35) years for a non-discounted pension under age sixty (60).

# Section 9 Sick Day Abuse Sanctions

The Employer shall not discipline an employee for legitimate use of sick days. For the purposes of the provisions contained in this Article, "abuse" of sick days or sick leave is the utilization of such for reasons other than those stated in this Article.

Upon sufficient evidence of the abuse of such sick leave, the employee shall not be paid for such leave.

In addition, abuse of sick leave may subject the employee to disciplinary action pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. All employees agree to cooperate fully with the Employer in verifying illness, and shall provide reasonable proof of illness upon request if the Employer has reasonable grounds to suspect abuse.

# Section 10 Sick Leave Call In

It is each employee's responsibility to adhere to the standard work week and time schedule in accordance with the rules and regulations of the department. Occasionally, an absence is unavoidable and, naturally we don't want employees on the job if they are too ill to work. The County expects employees to return to work as soon as commensurate with good health, safety and reasonable considerations. Whenever you are unable to be on the job, you should obtain permission from your department head or supervisor in advance whenever possible. If for any reason you are unable to report for work at the regular time, it is your responsibility to call your department no later than 0830. If an emergency or illness arises before the normal quitting time, permission must be obtained from the supervisor or department head before departing.

# ARTICLE 17. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

# Section 1 Use of Feminine Pronoun

The use of the feminine pronoun in this or any other document is understood to be for clerical convenience only, and it is further understood that the feminine pronoun includes the masculine pronoun.

### Section 2 Notification of Leave Balance

For each pay period, employees shall be given a statement of all leave balances.

# Section 3 Evaluations

The Union and the Employer encourage periodic evaluation conferences between the employee and his/her supervisor. The written evaluation done once a year on the anniversary of the employee's hire date by the employee's supervisor shall be discussed with the employee and the employee shall be given a copy immediately after completion. The employee shall sign the evaluation as recognition of having read it but such signature shall not constitute agreement with the evaluation. The employee's immediate supervisor and the Division Director shall sign the evaluation.

Employees are not entitled to Union representation at performance evaluations. The Employer will not impose discipline at performance evaluations.

### Section 4 Copies of the Agreement

Each employee covered by this Agreement shall receive a copy of the Agreement which the Employer shall have printed.

### Section 5 Meeting Place

All meetings or hearing or other proceedings to which the parties have control over the meeting place shall be held in the Employer's office in Kane County, Illinois. This provision shall not apply to Union meetings, which shall not be held in the Health Department Offices except as permitted by Article 20, Section 2.

#### Section 6 Job Descriptions

Within ninety (90) days of the execution of this Agreement, employees shall have a copy of his/her current job description which shall include principle duties and responsibilities. When requirements are revised and the duties and responsibilities remain essentially unchanged, incumbents in these positions who qualified under previous requirements for the class shall be considered qualified.

Any time an employee has concerns about meeting deadlines with current and/or added job responsibilities, she may request a meeting with her Program manager to examine work schedule, work load and time management skills.

# Section 7 <u>Union Communication</u>

The Union shall communicate in writing to the Employer any changes in their executive committee and stewards within five (5) business days after such changes occur.

### Section 8 Employees Involvement Committee

The employees involvement committee will seek to improve the quality of service provided to the public and/or quality of work life for employees. Employees will foiin a committee with representatives from each of the programs and divisions, up to a maximum of ten (10) employees. A chair, co-chair, and recorder will be selected by the committee. The employees will participate on the committee without loss of pay. Meetings will be held on a monthly basis for no more than 1'/2 hours.

The recorder will take minutes of the meetings and give a copy to the Executive Director and Union representative. The committee will not take action on matters pertaining to wages, hours or working conditions of employment.

If employees reach a consensus on any issue they want to discuss with management, they will forward the issues to their Union representative to be discussed at the next Labor/Management Committee meeting.

# Section 9 Holiday Dress Code

The Employer agrees to relax its dress code standards on the day preceding a County designated holiday.

# ARTICLE 18. LEAVES OF ABSENCE

# Section 1 Leaves of Absence

POLICY - Leaves of absence may be granted to maintain continuity of service and to protect the employer-employee relationship in instances where circumstances require an employee's absence. Leaves are granted on each individual case and at the discretion of the department head. Leaves of absence are without pay.

A leave of absence will not be granted for the purpose of trying another job. When a department head requests a leave of absence, the appropriate County Board committee will review the request. Failure to return at the end of an approved leave may result in termination.

An employee that has been granted a leave of absence is NOT permitted to engage in employment outside of their position with Kane County. The County Board or elected official may

grant an exception for employees who are providing humanitarian relief because of a local or national emergency or catastrophic event.

### Section 2 Types of Leaves of Absence

(A) Family and Medical Leave

Eligible employees may be granted up to 12 work weeks for a family or medical leave for one or more of the following reasons:

- 1. Birth Leave for birth of a child of an employee and to provide care for the child following birth.
- 2. Placement Leave for placement of a child with an employee for adoption or foster care.
- 3. Personal Illness for a serious health condition when an employee is unable to perform their job.
- 4. Family Illness for an employee to care for their son, daughter, spouse or parent who has a serious health condition.
- 5. Because of any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the spouse, or a son, daughter, or parent of the employee is a covered military member on active duty (or has been notified of an impending call or order to active duty) in the Armed Forces in support of a contingency operation.
- 6. To care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness if the employee is the spouse, son, daughter, parent or next of kin of the service member.

# Section 3 Eligibility

Employees may be eligible for a leave of absence if they have worked for at least 12 months and for at least 1,250 hours during the year preceding the start of the leave of absence.

### Section 4 Expiration of Entitlement

Subject to the policy statement above, an employee taking leave due to the birth or placement of a child, the personal illness of the employee, a family illness or a qualifying exigency, may be eligible for up to 12 work weeks of leave a year that is based on a rolling 12-month period measured backward from the first date leave is used. In other words, each time an employee takes a leave, the remaining leave for which the employee may be eligible would be any balance of the 12 work weeks that has not been used during the immediately preceding 12 months. (For example: if an employee has taken 8 weeks of leave during the past 12 months, an additional 4 weeks of leave could be taken. If an employee used 4 weeks beginning February 1, 2008, 4 weeks beginning June 1, 2008 and 4 weeks beginning December 1, 2008, the employee would not be entitled to any

additional leave until February 1, 2009. However, on February 1, 2009, the employee would be entitled to 4 weeks of leave; on June 1 the employee would be entitled to 4 additional weeks, etc.).

# Section 5 Service Member Family Leave

An eligible employee who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent or next of kin of a covered service member shall be entitled to a total of 26 work weeks of leave during a single 12-month period to care for the service member.

# Section 6 Combined Leave Total

During the single 12-month period described in the preceding paragraph, an eligible employee and spouse who both work for the County shall be entitled to a combined total of 26 work weeks of leave for the birth or placement of a child, for the personal illness of the employee, for a family illness or to care for the covered service member.

# Section 7 Leave Taken Intermittently or on a Reduced Schedule

Leave for the birth or placement of a child may not be taken by an employee intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule unless the employee and the department head agree. Leave in order to care for a spouse, son, daughter or parent with a serious health condition or because of an employee's serious health condition or to care for a covered service member may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary.

# Section 8 Foreseeable Leave

- (A) For the birth or placement of a child When the necessity for leave is foreseeable based on an expected birth or placement, the employee shall provide the department head with not less than 30 days' notice, before the date the leave is to begin, of the employee's intention to take leave, except that if the date of the birth or placement requires leave to being in less than 30 days, the employee shall provide such notice as is practicable.
- (B) In order to care for a spouse, son, daughter or parent with a serious health condition or because of an employee's serious health condition or to care for a covered service member When the necessity for leave is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment, the employee:
  - 1. shall make a reasonable effort to schedule the treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the operations of the department, subject to the approval of the health care provider of the employee, son, daughter, spouse or parent, as appropriate and
  - 2. shall provide the department head with not less than 30 days' notice, before the date the leave is to begin, of the employee's intent to take leave, except that if the date of the treatment requires leave to begin in less than 30 days, the employee shall provide such notice as is practicable.

(C) In any case in which the necessity for leave due to active duty of the family member is foreseeable, the employee shall provide such notice to the department head as is reasonable and practicable.

A request for a leave of absence shall be supported by a complete and sufficient medical certification issued by the health care provider of the eligible employee, or of the son, daughter, spouse or parent of the employee, or of the next of kin of an individual in the case of service member family leave. The County via a human resource professional or a management official may contact the health care provider for purposes of clarification and authentication of the medical certification after the employee has been given an opportunity to cure any deficiencies in the certification. Under no circumstances may the employee's direct supervisor contact the employee's health care provider.

In any case in which the department head has reason to doubt the validity of the certification provided, the department head may require, at the County's expense, that the employee obtain the opinion of a second health care provider designated or approved by the County; however, the selected health care provider may not be employed on a regular basis by the County. Pending receipt of the second medical opinion, the employee is provisionally entitled to the benefits of leave. If the certifications do not ultimately establish the employee's entitlement to FMLA leave, the leave shall not be designated as FMLA leave and may be treated as paid or unpaid leave under the County's established leave policies.

The first time an employee requests leave because of a qualifying exigency arising out of the active duty or call to active duty status of a covered military member, a department head may require the employee to provide a copy of the covered military member's active duty orders or other documentation issued by the military that indicates that the covered military member is on active duty or call to active duty status in support of a contingency operations, and the dates of the covered military member's active duty service. This information need only be provided once, unless a different active duty or call to active duty status occurs.

Upon return to work from a family or medical leave, the employee is entitled to be restored to their original or equivalent position which involves the same or substantially similar duties and responsibilities with equivalent pay, benefits or other terms and conditions of employment. An employee is entitled to such reinstatement even if the employee has been replaced or his or her position has been restructured to accommodate the employee's absence.

As a condition of restoring an employee whose leave was occasioned by the employee's own serious health condition that made the employee unable to perform the employee's job, the County may require the employee to obtain and present certification from the employee's health care provider that the employee is able to resume work. An employee has the same obligation to participate and cooperate in the fitness for duty certification process as in the initial certification process.

The County may seek fitness-for-duty certification only with regard to the particular health condition that caused the employee's need for medical leave. The County may require that the certification specifically address the employee's ability to perform the essential functions of the employee's job as long as the department head provides the employee with a list of the essential

functions of the employee's job at the same time that the department head provides notice to the employee that the leave is designated as FMLA-qualifying. The department head may contact the employee's health care provider for purposes of clarifying and authenticating the fitness-for-duty certification. The department head may not delay the employee's return to work while contact with the health care provider is being made, unless the department head has failed to give notice to the employee that a fitness for duty certification to return to work that addresses the employee's ability to perform the essential functions of the employee's job is required. In circumstances where a fitness-for-duty certification is required, the supervisor shall present the certification to the Human Resources Director before the employee shall be allowed to return to work.

If State or local law or the terms of a collective bargaining agreement govern an employee's return to work, those provisions shall be applied.

# (A) Military Leave

Any full time employee, who is a member of any reserve component of the U.S. Armed Forces or Illinois State Militia (National Guard) shall be granted leave from his or her County employment for any period actively spent in military service, including: basic training; annual training, or special or advance training. During leaves for annual training (typically 14-15 days, but can be longer), the employee shall continue to receive his or her regular compensation as a County employee. During leaves for basic training and up to 60 days of special or advanced training, if the employee's compensation for military activities is less than his or her compensation as a County employee, he or she shall receive his or her regular compensation as a County employee minus the amount of his or her base pay for military activities.

However, when the Armed Forces of the United States of America are engaged in or involved in active hostilities, eligible employees who are called to service during said hostilities shall receive the difference, if any, between the salary they would have received from Kane County and the salary they receive from the United States for a term of up to five (5) years unless the above period is extended by law in which case the employee shall continue to receive the benefits as stated.

Military leaves will be granted to all eligible full-time and part-time employees when they are called to leave their positions to enter military service. Seniority will be restored as required by state or federal law. The employee will be restored to his or her same or similar position by making application within 90 calendar days after discharge or hospitalization continuing after discharge.

For all Military Leaves, employees should provide their supervisor with a copy of their written orders, including any subsequent changes within 30 days of the change or as soon as reasonably practical.

#### (B) Family Military Leave

Eligible employees will be granted 30 days of unpaid military leave during the time Federal or State deployment orders are in effect. Employees are required to give at least a 14 days' notice of the intended date upon which the family military leave will commence if leave will consist of 5 or more consecutive work days. The leave may not be taken if the employee has not exhausted all

accrued vacation leave, personal leave, compensatory leave, and any other leave that may be granted to the employee, except sick leave and disability leave. The employee must consult with their supervisor to schedule the leave so as not to unduly disrupt the operations of the employer.

For all Family Military Leaves, employees should provide their supervisor with a copy of the written orders.

# (C) Personal Leave

May be granted or denied at the discretion of the department head based on the facts of each individual case. The reason for this type of leave must be of a nature involving a serious family problem or some similar circumstance. The guidelines listed under the "Rules, Regulations and Procedures" section of this policy must be adhered to in all cases.

#### (D) Educational Leave

May be granted at the discretion of the department head without pay to eligible employees who wish to continue their education provided the course of study is beneficial to the department.

# (E) Workers' Compensation Leave

All employees experiencing an occupational disability due to an accident or illness arising out of and in the course of their employment may be placed on a workers' compensation leave. Participating employees should apply for IMRF disability benefits if eligible (see Workers' Compensation). Employees shall comply with the policy for on the job injuries and illness.

# (F) Administrative Leave

A standing committee of the Kane County Board or Kane County Chairperson may place an employee on administrative leave of absence pending a determination of the employee's employment status for a maximum of thirty (30) days. A leave of absence under this subsection shall be with pay and shall not be considered a discharge or suspension. A leave of absence under this subsection shall not affect the employee's fringe benefits.

### (G) Victim's Economic Security and Safety Act (VESSA) Leave

An employee who is a victim of domestic or sexual violence or who has a family or household member who is a victim of domestic or sexual violence may take up to a total of 12 work weeks of leave from work during any 12-month period to address the domestic or sexual violence, as detailed in VESSA. This may include seeking medical attention or counseling for injuries or psychological trauma, obtaining victim services, relocating, seeking legal assistance or participating in a related court proceeding. Neither this section nor VESSA creates additional rights for an employee to take leave that exceeds the unpaid leave time under, or is in addition to unpaid leave time permitted by, the federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993.

Notice and Certification — The employee shall provide the employer with at least 48 hours' advance notice of the employee's intention to take a leave under VESSA, unless providing such notice is not practicable. The employer may require the employee to provide certification to the

employer. When an unscheduled absence occurs, the employee shall provide notice as soon as possible, and shall provide certification to the employer in accordance with the provisions of VESSA.

#### (H) School Visitation Leave

Eligible employees that have been employed for at least six (6) consecutive months may take up to a maximum of eight (8) hours during any school year to attend school conferences or classroom activities related to the employee's children if the conference or classroom activities cannot be scheduled during non-work hours. An employee may not take more than four (4) hours of school visitation leave in one day, and the leave may not be taken if the employee has not exhausted all accrued vacation leave, personal leave or any other type of leave, except for sick or disability leave. The employee must provide their supervisor with at least 7 days advance notice. In emergency situations, no more than 24 hours' notice is required. The employee must consult with their supervisor to schedule the leave so as not to unduly disrupt the operations of the employer.

# Section 9 Rules, Regulations and Procedures

A department head may require, or an employee may elect, that accrued sick days, accrued vacation and, if applicable, personal days and compensatory time be used during the leave of absence. It is understood that if an employee on an approved FMLA leave has accrued a minimum of three (3) weeks of vacation per year, then that employee may reserve upon request up to a one (1) week block of vacation for later use in accordance with the agreement.

#### (A) Extended Leave of Absence

Any leave over 12 work weeks in duration, except leave to care for a qualified service member, is considered an extended leave of absence. An employee needing to be off work for more than 12 consecutive work weeks must petition the department head for an extended leave, which may be granted at the department head's discretion based upon the operational needs of the department. Employees in this extended period must contact their department head at least 30 calendar days prior to their expected return to work.

### (B) Healthcare Coverage During a Leave of Absence

Group hospitalization coverage will continue for up to six (6) months. The employee portion of the payment for this coverage must be received in the Human Resource office no later than the 1st of each month during the leave of absence. A limited continuation option is available to eligible employees after this period under COBRA, a limited extension of health insurance coverage.

# (C) Vacation, Sick Pay and Holiday Pay

Sick pay credit and vacation time will not continue to accrue after the last day paid on any authorized leave of absence. Employees will be paid for holidays which fall during the period they are receiving pay from the County. The use of any leave will not result in the loss of any employment benefit that accrued prior to the start of an employee's leave.

### (D) Effect of Leave on Satisfactory Performance Salary Increase Eligibility

Employees under Job Class have been assigned a date which establishes eligibility for a satisfactory performance increase. The employee's SPI eligibility dates will be extended one (1) month for each month or any portion of a month taken beyond three (3) months (90 calendar days) from the last day paid. The SPI eligibility date is always the first day of the month in which the return occurs. (Does not apply to military leave).

### Section 10 Procedure

- (A) A "Request for Leave of Absence" form should be completed by the employee defining the reason for the leave, its duration, and the amount of vacation, sick pay, and if applicable, compensatory time to be used during the leave (if any).
- (B) This request should be submitted to the supervisor or department head, who after recommending approval or disapproval distributes the form according to the routing indicated.

### Section 11 IMRF Leave of Absence Authorization and Disability Benefits

Employees who have a medical certification of a disability which may extend for 30 calendar days or more could be eligible for disability benefits under the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund. To be eligible, an employee must have 12 months or more of service credit with IMRF. Pregnancy is included as a disability under IMRF if the employee is eligible and claims should be submitted in the same manner as other disability claims. The Kane County Human Resources Department should be contacted for the forms for application.

Employees participating under IMRF and on a leave of absence without pay or disability pay under IMRF (i.e. family illness, placement leave) will not be protected for death or disability benefits during the unpaid period. A Benefit Protection Leave of Absence Authorization should be filed with IMRF before the leave commences. Death and disability benefits are reinstated immediately upon returning to work. Employees may establish service credits for retirement (not to exceed twelve months) for this leave by paying the employee contributions which would have been paid if actually working plus interest. The County Board must approve the acceptance of Employer paid IMRF obligations. Forms are available in Kane County Human Resource Department.

### Section 12 Worker's Compensation

The Worker's Compensation law provides protection for employees experiencing occupational disabilities through accidents or by exposure to disease arising out of and in the course of employment.

(A) When an employee suffers an on-the-job injury or exposure, even though no medical attention is required, a "Report of Injury" form must be completed by the Employer and sent to the Human Resource Department as

- soon as possible. If medical attention was required as a result of the injury or exposure, a claim will then be filed with the insurance coordinator.
- (B) All expenses involved with the treatment of the exposure or injury are covered by the Illinois Worker's Compensation Act. That Act provides payment of sixty-six and two-thirds of the employee's wages for lost time at work after a three-day waiting period. If the employee is off work for more than fourteen days because of a job related injury or exposure, then the employee will be compensated for the waiting period. In addition to this partial payment of wages pursuant to the Illinois Worker's Compensation Act (hereinafter referred to as "the Act"), employees with more than one year of service with the County will also receive a minimal amount of disability through IMRF.

The Employer, in addition to compliance with the Act, shall pay an additional one third of the average weekly wage to employees for the first thirty days that the employee is totally disabled. This is a voluntary payment by the Employer and by accepting such payments employees shall recognize and will assist the Employer in enforcing its subrogation rights.

### Section 13 Jury Duty

Court leave shall be granted to employees who are called to jury duty or are required to be absent from work because of subpoena from any legislative, judicial, or administrative tribunal. Time away from work shall be granted for such purposes. All compensation received for court or jury shall be remitted by the employees to the County Auditor, to be returned to the County Treasurer from which the original payroll warrant was drawn. The County feels that by volunteering to appear as a witness, an employee may create the impression that the County favors one litigant to the detriment of the other. Therefore, to avoid any suspicion of favoritism, County employees are instructed not to appear as a witness unless properly subpoenaed.

### Section 14 Funeral Pay

In the event of a death in an employee's immediate family, the employee will be allowed up to three days leave with pay for the time actually lost. Immediate family members (including step and adopted) are defined as including the employee's children, father, mother, current spouse, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparents, and grandchildren. Also, immediate family includes the employee's current spouse's grandchildren. In the case of an employee's civil union partner that resides with the employee, immediate family includes his/her father, mother, brother, sister, children and grandchildren. These days will not be deducted from sick pay. Employees must notify their immediate supervisor of the death, relationship to the deceased and expected time of absence. Any additional time off beyond three days may be granted at the sole discretion of the Employer or her designee and will be deducted from the any accrued time the employee has available for use.

If the employee needs funeral leave for persons not referenced above, they must present a "Request for Time Off form to the Employer. Permission may be granted on an individual basis

at the discretion of the Employer. The Employer's discretion shall not be exercised in an unreasonable manner.

### ARTICLE 19. UNION RIGHTS

### Section 1 Union Activity During Working Hours

Employees shall be allowed necessary and reasonable time off with pay during regularly scheduled working hours as specifically established by this Agreement. Prior to participating in Union activity authorized by this Agreement, the employee shall submit a request to the Employer for approval.

### Section 2 Access To Premises By Union Representatives

The Employer agrees that local representatives and officers and AFSCME staff representatives shall have reasonable access to the premises of the Employer, giving at least two hours' notice upon their arrival to the Executive Director or her designee. Such visitations shall be for the reason of administration of this Agreement and shall not interfere with the operations of the Health Department. By mutual agreement with the Employer in emergency situations, Union staff representatives or Local Union representatives may call a meeting during work hours to prevent, resolve or clarify a problem.

### Section 3 Time Off for Union Activities

Local union representatives shall be allowed up to four (4) days off with pay per fiscal year with the Executive Director's approval for legitimate Union business such as Union meetings, state or area wide Union committee meetings, trainings, state or international conventions, provided such representatives give at least 30 days' notice, if possible, to the Division Director of such absence and shall be allowed such time off if it does not substantially interfere with the operating needs of the Employer.

Such time off shall not be detrimental in any way to the employee's record. Additional time off may be permitted according to the terms of this agreement if the employee has any other accrued time available for use.

### Section 4 Union Bulletin Boards

The Employer shall provide bulletin boards and/or space at the work location. The Employer also will provide a bulletin board for the union.

### Section 5 Information Provided To Union

The Employer will advise the Union of: New hires, promotions, layoffs, transfers, leaves, returns from leave, suspensions, discharges, and terminations. .

The Employer shall supply the Union with a bargaining unit list electronically in Excel at an email address designated by the Union, at least once per month (unless otherwise mutually

agreed by the Parties), which list shall include the following information: employee's name, address, job title, worksite location, work telephone numbers, identification number if available, date of hire, work email address, any home and personal cellular telephone numbers on file with the employer, and any personal email addresses on file with the employer. In addition, the employer must provide the union the same information as above for all new hires within 10 days of the date of hire. Consistent with applicable law, the Union shall use the list exclusively for bargaining unit representation purposes and shall not disclose any information contained in the list for any other purpose.

Further, at the request of the Union, but no more than semi-annually, whichever is sooner, the Employer shall furnish the Union a current seniority roster applicable under the seniority provisions of this Agreement.

### Section 6 Union Orientation

New Hires – The Union shall conduct Union Orientation for each new bargaining unit employee during the employee's first two weeks of employment in the bargaining unit (unless the Parties mutually agree to an alternate date) at a time mutually agreeable to the parties that does not impede normal operations. The Employer shall allow the Union up to one (1) hour without loss of pay or benefit time to any new participating bargaining unit employee and one current Union representative for the Union Orientation pursuant to this Section.

The Employer shall inform the Union of all such hiring of new bargaining unit members, and the Union shall inform the Employer of the Union representative who will carry out the Union orientation pursuant to the Section.

### Section 7 <u>Distribution Of Literature</u>

During employee's non-working hours, he/she shall be permitted to distribute Union literature to other non-working employees in non-work areas and in working areas during non-work hours.

### Section 8 Union Space on Premises

The Employer will provide the Union space for a computer outlet, desk and filing cabinet in the Health Department's office locations.

### ARTICLE 20. WAGES

### Section 1 Wage Schedule

Employees shall be compensated in accordance with the terms of Appendices A and B and attached to this Agreement. The attached revised wage schedule shall be considered a part of this Agreement.

### Section 2 Pay Period

The frequency of pay periods has been set by the Kane County Board Employees will be paid on a bi-weekly schedule of twenty-six (26) times annually. Each payroll period shall consist of fourteen (14) calendar days, so that the bi-weekly rate of pay of each employee shall be 1/26th of the employee's annual salary. In a year in which 27 pay periods shall occur, the biweekly rate of pay for each employee shall be 1/27th of the annual salary. When a payday falls on Saturday, Sunday or a holiday, the paycheck is distributed the preceding workday.

### Section 3 Step Promotions/Demotions

- (A) Union employees will receive a 2 STEP increase in salary for each promotion. When promotions are granted, the employee's current salary will be identified on the salary grid or closest to their salary on the promoted Grade. They will be offered a two-step increase on the new Grade as the promotion salary.
- (B) Union employees will receive a 2 STEP decrease in salary on the appropriate Grade for each voluntary down grade in classification.

### ARTICLE 21. TEMPORARYASSIGNMENT

The Employer may temporarily assign an employee to perform the duties of another employee. Absent an emergency situation or unanticipated business need situation, prior to temporarily assigning employees, the Employer shall post the temporary assignment opportunity for five (5) working days and seek volunteers to perform the necessary work provided the existing employees presently possess the necessary skills for the position. Employees who are assigned to perform a significant number of duties of another employee from the start to the end of the entire period shall be paid the greater of the following:

- (A) The pay of the employee whose duties the assigned employee is performing, or
- (B) The current pay of the assigned employee plus ten percent (10%).

Employees who are temporarily assigned shall be adequately trained in the duties they are assuming.

### ARTICLE 22. INSURANCE

### Section 1 Medical, Vision and Dental Coverage

- (A) The parties agree that the Employer shall provide a comprehensive health insurance program for employees to participate in, at their option, through the County of Kane's ("Kane County" or the "County") county-wide program. For each year of this Agreement, employees will contribute through payroll deduction the employee premium amount (as determined each year by the Kane County Board and in accordance with the parameters detailed in paragraph (B) of this Section) for the Kane County health insurance plan option chosen by the employee. Employees who elect to participate in any health insurance plan offered through Kane County are bound by the policies, guidelines and policy amounts defined within the respective plan chosen. The health insurance benefits for 2022, as provided by the County, are summarized in Appendix C.
- (B) Premium costs are shared by the employee and the Employer. Employee contributions are made through payroll deduction, and a pre-tax deduction Section 125 Plan is currently available at the time of enrollment. For December 1, 2021 through November 30, 2024, the overall aggregate cost of the County's health insurance programs will be shared by the County and the aggregate of employees participating in the various programs based on an overall aggregate rate of eighty-three percent (83%) borne by the County and seventeen percent (17%) borne by the aggregate of the participating employees. Individual premium rates and percentage contribution levels will vary across plans and will be based on an employee's plan selection each year, but the overall aggregate percentage rates borne by the County and the participating employees shall remain the same through November 30, 2024.
- (C) The County reserves the right to self-insure, change carriers and engage in cost containment measures during the term of this Agreement.
- (D) The parties agree to continue the implementation of a Wellness Plan component for Employees and spouses covered by the County's health insurance plans. Participation in the Wellness Plan has been defined by the County as participating in an annual health evaluation which is to be limited to completing an assessment, providing a blood sample and receiving a health evaluation report. Currently, no other additional action on the part of any employee or spouse is required by the County. The Employer agrees that participation (or non-participation) in the Wellness Plan shall not be used in any way to initiate or support an employment action of any kind.

Participation in the Wellness Plan shall not require or constitute any waiver of an individual's right to privacy under HIPAA, or other applicable laws. The County currently requires that employees and/or their spouses who choose not to participate shall continue to pay an additional \$50 per employee and/or spouse per month toward health insurance premiums.

(A)

### Section 2 Future Plans

Should the County adopt plans or policies which affect Employee's insurance benefits (including what is commonly referred to as flexible benefit program), employees of the Employer shall have the option to participate in the same plans or programs in the same manner as other County Employees.

In addition, in the event the County agrees to a lower overall contribution for employees who participate in County plan(s), the lower overall contribution rate shall apply to employees covered by this Agreement.

### Section 3 Life Insurance

The County will provide information concerning any available additional life insurance through IMRF and at the request of the employee shall make such necessary deductions from the employee's paycheck.

## Section 4 Health Care Continuation Coverage for Retirees, Medicare Eligible Retirees and Disabled Employee

### (A) Retirees

The County shall pay 10% of the cost of continued medical insurance benefits under the same terms and coverage for the non-Medicare eligible retired employee as the employee received for the 12 months preceding retirement.

Employees retiring under regular IMRF must be at least 55 years of age with at least eight (8) years of service.

In order to be eligible for the 10% premium reduction, an employee must have been employed by the Employer for 15 or more consecutive years.

Retired employees who wish to take advantage of this medical insurance must pay 90% of the premium for either single or dependent coverage. The premium is due on the 1st of each month and must be submitted to Human Resources in order for coverage to be maintained.

### (B) Medicare Eligible Retirees, Disabled Employees and Surviving Spouses

(C) Kane County offers a reduced benefit PPO health care plan to Medicare eligible retirees, disabled employees and surviving spouses. The PPO plan

includes a separate deductible of \$500.00 for outpatient drugs to be paid at 80% (coinsurance does not go towards the outpatient prescription maximum). The full amount of the premium that must be paid is established by the County Board each yRetirees -- Annual Open Enrollment

Retired employees may elect to change medical insurance plans during the annual open enrollment period for active county employees each year.

### ARTICLE 23. VACANCIES

### Section 1 Determination of Vacancies

The Employer shall solely determine when a vacancy exists and whether or not to fill the vacancy.

### Section 2 Posting

Whenever a job vacancy exists, other than a temporary vacancy as defined below, in any job classification or as a result of the development or establishment of new job classifications, a notice of such vacancy shall be posted in an expeditious manner on the Kane County website for a minimum of ten (10) working days and sent via e-mail to all KCHD employees. Such notice shall include the job title, work hours, a brief job description, and the pay rate. Temporary vacancies are defined as job vacancies that may periodically develop in any job classification that do not exceed 90 consecutive days plus an additional ninety (90) consecutive days extension based upon an incumbent employee returning from a leave of absence. Job openings that remain open for more than 180 consecutive days at a time shall not be considered temporary job openings.

During this period, employees who wish to apply for the vacant job, including employees on layoff, may do so by contacting the Executive Director or designee.

Furthermore, job posting will be used to encourage the principle of promoting from within. If an employee is denied a promotion the Union may raise the issue with the Executive Director or designee.

### Section 3 Selection

The Employer shall be solely responsible for selecting persons to fill vacancies. In making the selection, the Employer shall consider factors, which include but are not limited to: experience, skill, ability, qualifications, seniority, evaluations, training and other factors the Employer deems relevant to the vacancy. The Employer agrees that before hiring from outside the Department to fill bargaining unit positions, it will first consider internal qualified applicants who are interested and when there is substantial equality between an outside and inside applicant preference will be given to the inside applicant.

### Section 4 Job Assignment

A program vacancy shall be posted in accordance with Section 2 of this Article. The employee will be selected in accordance with Section 3 of this Article. Where the Employer desires to make a permanent change in the office location of an employee, the Employer shall seek volunteers. If there are no volunteers, the person with the least seniority in the affected program will be selected to transfer. If the employee refuses the transfer, the employee will be terminated.

### Section 5 Temporary Reassignment

Should the Employer wish to temporarily transfer an employee from one of fice to another, the procedure identified in Section 4 above, will be utilized. The affected employee(s) will receive mileage reimbursement if they use their personal vehicle from their regularly assigned work site to the temporary work site, unless a county vehicle is provided for their use. Employee(s) will adhere to their regularly scheduled work hours (i.e., if employee would normally work at Elgin office from 8:30-4:30, the employee will be required to work at Aurora office from 8:30-4:30).

### ARTICLE 24. HOURS OF WORK

### Section 1 Hours/Overtime

- (A) Work Week The work week is defined as one-hundred and sixty-eight (168) hours period beginning at 0001 hours on Sunday and ending at 2359 hours the following Saturday. The normal work week shall consist of thirty-five (35) hours beginning on Monday and ending on Friday.
- (B) Overtime Overtime is defined as all pre-authorized work in excess of thirty-five (35) hours per work week. Overtime between 35 and 40 hours shall be paid at the straight time rate. Overtime in excess of forty (40) hours per week shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>) times an employee's base rate of pay. Time spent on any paid time off whatever the reason (i.e., sickness, personal, vacation, funeral, authorized leave, comp time) shall not be considered hours worked in computing overtime. If the Program Manager is unavailable, the employee should receive permission from the Division Director.
- (C) Mandatory Training or Meetings Employees attending authorized mandatory training approved by the Employer shall be paid in accordance with the provisions of Section la and lb, above.
- (D) No Pyramiding Compensation shall not be paid more than once for the same hours under any provision of this Agreement.

### Section 2 General Provisions for All Employees

(A) "The Work Day and the Work Week" - The normal work day shall consist of seven consecutive hours to be broken by an unpaid meal period and two

- fifteen (15) minute rest periods, one in the morning and one in the afternoon, subject to the operational needs of the office.
- (B) "Meal Periods" Work schedules shall provide for the work day to be broken by an uninterrupted, unpaid meal period of one (1) hour. Employees shall have the right to leave the work site during such periods. When due to operational needs, an employee is required to work through their meal periods by their Program Manager; the employee will be paid for the meal time.

### Section 3 Time/Attendance Log

- (A) The Employer shall maintain a time/attendance log at each office location. Employees at each office will be required to sign in. Employees will be required to sign out. All paid overtime must be approved and with the knowledge of the employee's Program Manager.
- (B) Field employees will turn in a weekly schedule every Friday. CHS III Environmental Health Practitioners will turn in a weekly schedule every Monday.
  - If any unplanned changes occur in the schedule, the employee's Program Manager or designee will be notified. When starting the day in the field, notification will be done by the schedule submitted by the employee. If the day concludes in the field, the employee will notify their home office by phone between 4:00-4:25 p.m. When the day starts or ends in the office, the log will be utilized.
- (C) The log will be reviewed by management on a regular basis. If a review of the log reveals a pattern of tardiness, employees may be counseled. If the problem continues, the employee may be docked until the problem has been corrected over a reasonable period and/or it may be addressed through corrective and progressive discipline.

### Section 4 Scheduling Practices

Where a permanent change in the normal work schedule affecting bargaining unit employees is sought by the Employer, except in emergencies, the Employer shall notify the Union concerning such changes within forty-five (45) calendar days prior to the effective date of the changes and shall provide an opportunity to discuss said changes with the Union. In addition, the Employer shall notify the affected employees twenty-eight (28) calendar days prior to the change.

### Section 5 Overtime Procedure

There will be one rotation list each for the Finance/Administrative Division and the Environmental Division. The Personal Health Division will maintain one list in the Elgin office and one list in the Aurora office. Each employee will be listed by classification seniority.

When an activity/event creates overtime in the Environmental Division, the sanitarian assigned to the territory in which the activity/event will occur, will automatically be the first employee chosen from the rotation list. The sanitarian will be responsible for coordinating the event/activity, including enlisting other employees to work the event/activity.

Overtime will be distributed as equally as possible among employees who normally perform the work in the division in which the overtime is needed. When overtime is needed in any week, the Employer will select the first person qualified to perform the work from the rotation list in the affected division. If that employee refused the overtime, their name will be placed at the bottom of the list for that division. The Employer will continue down the list until enough employees are selected to work the overtime.

If a sufficient number of employees to work overtime is not obtained, or in the event of natural disasters, acts of God or departmental emergencies (e.g., off site clinics), the Employer maintains the right to declare that overtime is mandatory. The Employer will select the next person qualified to perform the work from the rotation list in the affected division. The Employer will give the employee 24 hours' notice, if possible of the requirement to work overtime. If that employee refuses the overtime for an illegitimate reason (to be determined on a case-by-case basis), the employee will receive an oral-written reprimand and their name will be placed at the bottom of the rotation list. If the employee refuses the overtime for a legitimate reason (to be determined on a case-by-case basis), the employee's name will be placed at the bottom of the rotation list.

The Union will be furnished overtime records in the event of a bona fide dispute regarding the provisions of this Article, showing the number of overtime hours worked by each employee.

### Section 6 Alternative Schedules

Alternative schedules and job sharing may be utilized if agreed by the Employer and the employee(s) involved. Subject to the operational needs of the Employer, the request may be granted. If and when an alternate schedule is denied, the Union can elect to bring the issue to the Labor Management Meeting to discuss the reasons why the employee was denied.

### Section 7 Call-In Pay

An employee called in to work on their day off or outside their previously scheduled work hours, including a scheduled weekend day to work a health fair, community education event or other non-educational event, shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours pay at their regular rate of pay up to forty hours and one and one-half (1%) their regular rate of pay thereafter. Work schedules will not be changed because of call-in time in order to avoid overtime pay.

### Section 8 Compensatory Time

All pre-authorized work performed in excess of thirty-five (35) hours per week shall be paid according to Section 1B of this Article. Employees shall choose whether they will be compensated with compensatory time or pay prior to the end of the two (2) week pay period. Employees may accumulate up to twenty one (21) hours of compensatory time. After the maximum accumulation has been reached, overtime shall be paid in accordance with the overtime

provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. Compensatory time off may be used in not less than one-half (Y2) hour increments.

### Section 9 Travel Time

All time spent in travel for required work-related purposes as determined in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act. For example: time traveling from home to the employee's designated first work site is not compensable. By contrast, after the work day begins, time spent traveling between assignments is compensable time.

### Section 10 Mileage Reimbursement

Employees who travel on County business using their own vehicle shall be reimbursed for the travel expense in accordance with the County Policy (Section 2-72). It is understood that commuting miles (travel miles to and from home to employee's primary office) are considered round trip commuting miles which are not eligible for reimbursement. Employees shall comply with the policy on Driving Vehicles while on County Business.

### Section 11 Stand-By Pay

All time spent in Stand-By Status will be compensated in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act provided the employee is required and expressly designated by the Employer to remain in this status for a designated period of time. No employee shall be disciplined for not responding to a call when not on Stand-By.

### ARTICLE 25. SUBCONTRACTING

### Section 1 General Policy

It is the general policy of the Employer to continue to utilize employees to perform work for which they are qualified to perform. The Employer reserves the right to contract out any work that it deems necessary in the interest of economy, improved work product or emergency.

### Section 2 Notice and Discussion

Absent an emergency situation, prior to the Employer changing its policy involving the overall subcontracting of work in a bargaining unit area, when such change amounts to a significant deviation from past practice resulting in loss of work of bargaining unit employees, the Employer shall notify the Union thirty (30) days in advance and offer the Union an opportunity to discuss and participate in considerations over the desirability of such subcontracting or work, including means by which to minimize the impact of such employees.

Prior to subcontracting of bargaining unit work, the Employer, the Union, and the proposed sub-contractor shall meet to discuss the employment of employees subject to layoff The Employer will request that the sub-contractor hire laid off employees.

### ARTICLE 26. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Except as specifically limited by the express provisions of this Agreement, the Employer exclusively retains traditional and inherent rights of manage all affairs of the Employer's Office, as well as those rights set forth in the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act. Such management rights shall include but are not limited to the following:

- (A) To plan, direct, control and determine all operations and services of the Employer's Office;
- (B) To supervise and direct employees;
- (C) To establish the qualifications for employment and to decide which applicants will be employed;
- (D) To establish and amend reasonable work rules, policies, regulations and work schedules and to assign work as the Employer deems necessary. Such work rules and schedules shall be posted in a place and manner as mutually agreeable to the Employer and the Union;
- (E) To hire, promote, demote, transfer, schedule and assign employees to positions and to create, combine, modify and eliminate positions within the Employer's Office;
- (F) To suspend, discharge and take such other disciplinary action against employees for just cause (probationary employees without cause);
- (G) To establish reasonable work and productivity standards and, from time to time, amend such standards;
- (H) To lay off employees;
- (I) To maintain efficiency of the Employer's Office operations and services;
- (J) To determine methods, means organization and number of personnel by which such operations and service shall be provided;
- (K) To take whatever action necessary to comply with all applicable state and federal laws;
- (L) To create, change or eliminate methods equipment and facilities for the improvement operations;
- (M) To determine the kinds and amounts of services to he performed as it pertains to operations and the number and kind of classifications to perform such services;

- (N) To contract out for goods and/or services;
- (O) To take whatever actions if necessary to carry out the functions of the Employer's Office in emergency situations.

The Employer's failure to exercise any right, prerogative, or function hereby reserved to it, or the Employer's exercise of any such right, prerogative, or function in a particular way, shall not be considered a waiver for the Employer's right to exercise such right, prerogative, or function or preclude it from exercising the same in some other way not in conflict with the express provisions of this Agreement.

### ARTICLE 27. COMPLETE AGREEMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS

### Section 1 Complete Agreement

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which preceded this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining. The understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Employer and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waive the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to:

- (A) any subject matter or matter specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement; and
- (B) subjects or matters that arose as a result of the parties proposals during bargaining but which were not agreed to.

### Section 2 Maintenance of Standards

The Employer agrees that if during the term of this Agreement, the Employer enters into any new agreement with any union or employee group considered to be a county department providing for increased fringe benefits greater than those provided herein (fringe benefits are defined as health and life insurance and tuition reimbursement) the Employer shall notify the Union and upon request negotiate with the Union concerning the application of the fringe benefit to the bargaining unit.

### ARTICLE 28. HEALTH AND SAFETY

### Section 1 General Duty

The Employer shall provide a safe and healthy workplace and shall comply with all required applicable laws.

### Section 2 Advanced Step Filing

Where the Union believes that a serious health and safety issue requires immediate attention, a grievance may be filed directly to Step 3 of the grievance procedure.

### Section 3 Personal Protective Clothing Equipment

All personal protective clothing and protective equipment required by the Employer shall be furnished and maintained by the Employer without cost to the employees.

### Section 4 Unsafe Work

The Employer will create a task force that will draft a policy and procedures for safety, and involve staff in the process for input. This process will start on or before February 26, 2007.

### Section 5 Lead Program

Employees involved in the Lead Program are able to obtain venous blood lead levels at Aunt Martha's at the Health Department's expense.

### ARTICLE 29. EMPLOYEE BLOOD DONATION

### Section 1 Usage

Full time employees with at least six (6) consecutive months of service are allowed 1 hour of leave with pay every 56 days to participate in blood donation. Employees must give a 15 day advance notice to the appropriate department head or elected official that they wish to take the leave. A written certification from the blood bank or hospital is required to verify the date of the blood donation.

### ARTICLE 30. TERMINATION

This Agreement shall be effective December 1, 2021 and shall continue in full force and effect until midnight November 30, 2024, and thereafter for one year, unless not more than one hundred and twenty (120) days, but not less than sixty (60) days prior to November 30, 2024, or any subsequent November 30 either party gives written notice to the other of its intention to amend or terminate this Agreement.

In the Event that either party desires to terminate this agreement, written notice must be given to the other party not less than ten (10) days prior to the desired termination date which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth in the preceding paragraph. The Agreement shall remain in force during the term of re-negotiations unless terminated by the above appropriate written notice.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties2022.	hereto have set their hands this day of
FOR THE COUNTY:  Corinne Pierog  Kane County Board Chairman	11/17/2022 Date
FOR THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT	
Michael Isaacson Executive Director	11/21/2022 Date
Matthew Lange Staff Representative of the American Federation of State County and Municipal Employees, Council 31, on behalf of Local	17/19/2022 Date

### APPENDIX A

- (A) Effective December 1, 2021, employees who were actively employed on that day will receive a one-time equity adjustment increase in their base salary to bring their base salary levels to the amounts referenced in Appendix B based on their job titles and number of completed years of service;
- (B) Effective December 1, 2022, each employee who was on the payroll as of that date will receive a three percent (3%) across the board wage increase;
- (C) Effective December 1, 2023, each employee who is on the payroll as of that date will receive a three percent (3%) across the board wage increase.

### APPENDIX B ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE

### KANECOUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

6/21/2022

Job Title	Startin	roposed g-80% of Mid KCHD /21/2022	Proposed Midpt-100% KCHD 6/21/2022		Proposed MAX-120% of Mio KCHD 6/21/2022	
Administrative Assistent	\$	16.37	\$	20.46	\$	24.55
Community Health Initiatives Coordinator		\$25.10	\$	31.38	\$	37.66
Community Health Practitioner	\$	22.18	\$	27.73	\$	33.28
Emergency Response Coordinator		\$25,10	\$	31.38	\$	37.66
Environmental Health Practioner I		\$22.18	\$	27.73	\$	33.28
Environ, Health Practioner II (Req. LEHP)	\$	24.10	\$	30.12	\$	36.14
Environmental Health Team Lead	\$	25.92	\$	32.40	\$	38.88
Epidemiologist	\$	27.11	\$	33.89	\$	40.67
Popluation Health Planner		\$25.10	\$	31.38	\$	37.66
Public Health Associate	\$	15.06	\$	18.83	-	22.60
Public Health Nurse I		\$22.58	\$	28.23	\$	33.88
Public Health Nurse II (Req. BSN degree)		\$26.10	\$	32.ഒ	\$	39.16
Quality & Performance Coordinator		\$27.11	\$	33.89	\$	40.67
Disease Surveillance			1			
Practitioner		\$22.58	\$	28.23	\$	33.88
Facilities & Logistics Coordinator		\$18.07	\$	22.59	\$	27.11
Lead Risk Assessor		\$15.82	\$	19.77	\$	23.72
Receptionist		\$13.06	\$	16.32	\$	19.58

#### EQUITY ADJUSTMENT ONE TIME ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE

1yr	2 yrs	3 yrs	4 yrs	5 yrs.	6 yrs	7 yrs	8 yrs	9 yrs	10yrs	11 yrs.	12 yrs.	13yrs	14 yrs.	15yrs.	16 yrs	17 yrs.	18 yrs	19yrs	20yrs & 1
82%	84%	86%	88%	90%	92%	94%	96%	98%	100%	102%	104%	106%	108%	110%	112%	114%	116%	118%	120%
\$16.78	\$17.19	\$17.60	\$ 18.00	518.41	\$18.82	\$19.23	\$19 64	\$ 20 05	\$20.46	\$ 20.87	\$21.28	\$ 21.69	\$2210	\$22.51	\$22.92	\$23:32	\$23.73	\$24.14	\$ 24.5
\$25.73	\$26.36	\$26,99	\$2761	\$28.24	\$28.87	\$29.50	\$30.12	\$30.75	\$31.38	\$32 01	\$32.64	\$33.26	\$ 33.89	\$34.52	\$ 35.15	\$3-5.77	\$36.40	\$37.03	\$ 37.6
\$22.74	\$23 29	\$23.85	\$24.40	\$ 24 96	\$25.51	\$2607	\$26 😥	\$2718	\$27.73	\$28.28	\$28.84	\$29 39	\$29.95	\$30.50	\$31 06	\$31 61	\$32.17	\$3272	\$ 33 2
\$2573	\$26.36	\$ 26.99	\$27 61	\$28.24	\$28.87	\$29.50	\$3012	\$3075	\$31,38	\$32.01	\$32.64	\$33.26	\$33 89	\$34.52	\$35.15	\$35.77	\$ 36.40	\$37.03	\$ 376
\$22.74	\$23 29	\$23,85	\$24 40	\$ 24 96	\$25.51	\$26.07	\$ 26.62	\$27.18	\$27.73	\$2828	\$28.84	\$29.39	\$29.95	\$30.50	\$ 31 06	\$31 61	\$32,17	\$32.72	\$ 33.2
\$2470	\$25.30	\$25.90	\$26.51	\$27,11	\$27.71	\$28.31	\$ 28.92	\$29.52	\$30.12	5 30.72	\$31.32	\$31 93	\$32.53	\$33.13	\$33.73	\$34.34	\$34.94	\$35.54	\$ 36.1
-	-	-		\$29.16	-	-	-		-				_		_	-		-	_
\$27.79	\$28.47	529.15	\$ 29.82	\$30.50	\$31.18	\$31.86	\$32 53	\$33 21	\$33.89	\$34.57	\$35.25	\$ 35 92	\$36.60	\$37 28	\$37.96	\$38 63	\$39.31	\$3999	\$ 40.6
\$2573	\$2636	\$26.99	\$27.61	\$28.24	\$28.87	\$29.50	\$3012	\$30 75	\$ 31.38	\$32.01	\$32 64	\$33.26	\$33.89	\$34 52	\$35 15	\$35.77	\$36.40	\$37.03	\$ 376
\$15 44	\$15.82	\$ 16:19	\$16.57	\$1695	\$17.32	\$17.70	\$18.08	\$18.45	\$18 83	\$1921	\$19 58	\$19.96	\$20.34	\$20 71	\$21.09	\$21.47	\$21.84	\$22 22	\$ 22.6
\$23.15	\$23.71	\$24.28	\$ 24 84	\$25.41	\$25.97	\$26.54	\$27 10	\$27 67	\$ 28.23	\$2879	\$29 36	\$29.92	\$30.49	\$31.05	\$31.62	\$32 18	\$32 75	\$33.31	\$ 33.8
\$2676	\$ 27.41	\$ 28 06	\$2871	\$29.37	\$30.02	\$30.67	\$3132	\$31 98	\$32.63	\$33 28	\$33.94	\$34.59	\$35.24	\$35.89	\$36 55	\$37.20	\$37.85	\$38.50	\$ 39.1
\$27.79	528.47	\$29.15	\$2982	\$30.50	\$31.18	\$31.86	\$32 53	\$33.21	\$33.89	534.57	\$35.25	\$35.92	\$36 60	\$37.28	\$37.96	\$38.63	\$39.31	\$39.99	\$ 40 6
\$23 15	\$23.71	\$24.28	\$ 24 84	\$25.41	\$29.97	\$26.54	\$2710	\$27.67	\$ 28.23	\$ 28.79	\$29.36	\$29 92	\$30.49	\$31.05	531.62	\$32 18	\$32 75	\$33 31	\$ 33.8
\$18.52	\$18.98	\$19.43	\$19.88	\$20.33	\$20.78	\$21 23	\$21.69	\$22 14	\$22.59	\$23.04	\$23.49	\$ 23.95	\$24.40	\$24,85	\$25.30	\$25.75	\$ 26.20	\$26.66	\$ 27.1
				\$17.79									\$21.35						
\$13.38	\$13.71	\$ 14.04	\$14.36	\$14.69	\$15.01	\$15.34	\$15.67	\$15.99	\$16.32	\$16.65	\$16.97	\$ 17.30	\$17 63	\$17.95	\$1828	\$18 60	\$18.93	\$19.26	\$ 195

### **APPENDIX C** CHANGES IN HEALTH PLAN FEATURES

Summary of Benefits and Coverage: What this Plan Covers & What You Pay For Covered Services Kane County: PPO Non-Union Active Plan

Coverage Period: 01/01/2022 - 12/31/2022 Coverage for: Individual/Family | Plan Type: PPO

The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health <u>plan</u>. The SBC shows you how you and the <u>plan</u> would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this <u>plan</u> (called the <u>premium</u>) will be provided separately. This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, call 1-800-295-0593 or at <a href="https://www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as <u>allowed amount</u>, <u>balance billing</u>, <u>coinsurance</u>, <u>copayment</u>, <u>deductible</u>, <u>provider</u>, or other underlined terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at <a href="https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-qlossary/">www.healthcare.gov/sbc-qlossary/</a> or call 1-855-756-4448 to request a copy.

Important Questions	Answers	Why This Matters:				
What is the overall deductible?	For In-Network: \$750 Individual/\$2,250 Family For Out-of-Network: \$1,500 Individual/\$4,500 Family	Generally, you must pay all of the costs from <u>providers</u> up to the <u>deductible</u> amount before this <u>plan</u> begins to pay. If you have other family members on the <u>plan</u> , each family member must meet their own individual <u>deductible</u> until the total amount of <u>deductible</u> expenses paid by all family members meets the overall family <u>deductible</u> .				
Are there services covered before you meet your deductible?	Yes. Certain preventive care, services lhat charge a <u>copay</u> , <u>prescription drugs</u> , and emergency room services are covered before you meet your <u>deductible</u> .	This <u>plan</u> covers some items and services even if you haven't yet met the <u>deductible</u> amount. But a <u>copayment</u> or <u>coinsurance</u> may apply. For example, this <u>plan</u> covers certain <u>preventive services</u> without <u>cost sharing</u> and before you meet your <u>deductible</u> . See a list of covered <u>preventive services</u> at <a href="https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/">https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/</a> .				
Are there other <u>deductibles</u> for specific services?	Yes. \$300 deductible for Out-of-Network hospital admission. There are no other specific deductibles.	You must pay all of the costs for these services up to the specific <u>deductible</u> amount before this <u>plan</u> begins to pay for these services.				
What is the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limi</u> tfor this <u>plan</u> ?	For In-Network: \$3,000 Individual/\$9,000 Family For Out-of-Network: \$6,000 Individual/\$18,000 Family Prescription drug expense limit: \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family	The <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> is the most you could pay in a year for covered services. If you have other family members in this <u>plan</u> , they have to meet their own <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> until the overall family <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> has been met.				
What is not included in the out-of-pocket limit?	Premiums, balance-billing charges and health care this plan doesn't cover.	Even though you pay these expenses, they don't count toward the <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> .				
Will you pay less if you use a network provider?	Yes. See www.bcbsil.com or call 1-800-295-0593 for a list of <u>network</u> <u>providers</u> .	This plan uses a provider network. You will payless if you use a provider in the plan's network. You will pay the most if you use an out-of-network provider, and you might receive a bill from a provider for the difference between the provider's charge and what your plan pays (balance billing). Be aware, your network provider might use an out-of-network provider for some services (such as lab work). Check with your provider before you get services.				
Do you need a <u>referral</u> to se ea specialist?	No.	You can see the <u>specialist</u> you choose without a <u>referral</u> .				

Page 1 of 8

### All <u>copayment</u> and <u>coinsurance</u> costs shown in this chart are after your <u>deductible</u> has been met, if a <u>deductible</u> applies.

		What Yo	u Will Pay	1. 1	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	In-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information	
	Primary care visit to treat an injury or illness	\$30 <u>copay</u> /visit; <u>deductible</u> does not apply	40% coinsurance	Virtual Visits: \$30/visit; deductible does not apply. See your benefit booklet* for details.	
If you visit a health care provider's office	Specialist visit	\$50 <u>copay</u> /visit; <u>deductible</u> does not apply	40% coinsurance	None	
or clinic	Preventive care/screening/ immunization	No Charge; <u>deductible</u> does not apply	40% coinsurance	You may have to pay for services that aren' preventive. Ask your provider if the services needed are preventive. Then check what your plan will pay for.	
If you have a test	Diagnostic test (x-ray, blood work)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	Preauthorization may be required; see you	
	Imaging (CT/PET scans, MRIs)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	benefit booklet* for details.	

 $<sup>^{\</sup>star}$  For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document al  $\underline{\text{www.bcbsil.com}}$ .

Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	What Yo In-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	u Will Pay  Out-of-Network Provider  (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
	Generic drugs	\$10 copay/prescription (retail) \$20 copay/prescription (mail order); deductible does not apply	\$10 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail); <u>deductible</u> does not apply	30-day supply at Retail 90-day supply at Mail Order Rx <u>Out-of-Pocket</u> Expense Limit: \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family
If you need drugs to treat your illness or condition	Preferred brand drugs	\$40 copay/prescription (retail) \$80 copay/prescription (mail order); deductible does not apply	\$40 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail); <u>deductible</u> does not apply	For <u>Out-of-Network provider</u> , you are responsible for 50% of the eligible amount after the <u>copay</u> .  Payment of the difference between the cost
More information about prescription drug coverage is available at www.bcbsil.com.	Non-preferred brand drugs	\$60 copay/prescription (retail) \$120 copay/prescription (mall order); deductible does not apply	\$60 <u>copay/prescription</u> (retail); <u>deductible</u> does not apply	of a brand name drug and a generic may be required if a generic drug is available.  Certain women's preventive services will be covered with no cost to the member. For a full list of these prescriptions and/or services, please contact Customer Service.
	Specialty drugs	\$60 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail); <u>deductible</u> does not apply	Not Covered	Specialty drug coverage based on group policy. Prior authorization may be required. Specialty retail limited to a 30-day supply.
If you have outpatient	Facility fee (e.g., ambulatory surgery center)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	Preauthorization may be required.
surgery	Physician/surgeon fees	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	None

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

Common	Total Control of the		u Will Pay	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other	
Medical Event	Services You May Need	in-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Important Information	
	Emergency room care	\$500 <u>copay/visit;</u> deductible does not apply	\$500 copay/visit; deductible does not apply	Copay waived if admitted.	
If you need immediate medical attention	Emergency medical transportation	20% coinsurance	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Preauthorization may be required for non- emergency transportation; see your benefit booklet* for details.	
	Urgent care	\$30 copay/visit; deductible does not apply	40% coinsurance	None	
If you have a hospital stay	Facility fee (e.g., hospital room)	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	40% coinsurance	\$300 deductible per admission Out-of- Network providers. Preauthorization required.	
	Physician/surgeon fees	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	None	
If you need mental health, behavioral health, or substance	Outpatient services	\$30 <u>copay/</u> office visit; <u>deductible</u> does not apply; 20% <u>coinsurance</u> for other outpatient services	40% coinsurance	PCP copay applies to psychotherapy visit only. Preauthorization may be required; see your benefit booklet* for details. Virtual Visits: \$30/visit; deductible does not apply. See your benefit booklet* for details.	
abuse services	Inpatient services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	\$300 <u>deductible</u> per admission <u>Out-of-Network providers</u> , <u>Preauthorization required</u> .	

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	In-Network Provider	U Will Pay Out-of-Network Provider	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
	Office visits	(You will pay the least) \$30 copay/visit; deductible does not apply	(You will pay the most) 40% coinsurance	Copay applies to first prenatal visit (per pregnancy). Cost sharing does not apply for preventive
If you are pregnant	Childbirth/delivery professional services	20% coinsurance	40% <u>coinsurance</u>	services. Depending on the type of services, a copayment, coinsurance, or deductible may apply. Maternity care may include tests and services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound).
	Childbirth/delivery facility services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	\$300 <u>deductible</u> per admission <u>Out-of-Network providers</u> .
	Home health care	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	Preauthorization may be required.
	Rehabilitation services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	
	Habilitation services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	Preauthorization may be required.
If you need help	Skilled nursing care	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	\$300 deductible per admission Out-of-Network providers. Preauthorization may be required.
recovering or have other special health needs	Durable medical equipment	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	40% coinsurance	Benefits are limited to items used to serve a medical purpose. <u>Durable Medical Equipment</u> benefits are provided for both purchase and rental equipment (up to the purchase price). <u>Preauthorization</u> may be required.
	Hospice services	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	40% coinsurance	\$300 <u>deductible</u> per admission <u>Out-of-Network providers</u> , <u>Preauthorization</u> may be required.

 $<sup>^{\</sup>star}$  For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	In-Network Provider	u Will Pay Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
If your child needs dental or eye care	Children's eye exam	Not Covered	Not Covered	None
	Children's glasses	Not Covered	Not Covered	None
	Children's dental check-up	Not Covered	Not Covered	None

Excluded Services & Other Covered Services:		
Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (Ch	neck your policy or plan document for more informat	tion and a fist of any other excluded services.)
Acupuncture     Dental care (Adult)	Long term care     Routine eye care (Adult)	Routine foot care (with the exception of person with diagnosis of diabetes)     Weight loss programs
Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to	these services. This isn't a complete list. Please see	your <u>plan</u> document.)
Bariatric surgery     Chiropractic and Osteopathic manipulation limited to 15 visits per calendar year)     Cosmetic surgery (only for correcting congenital deformities or onditions resulting from accidental injuries, scars, tumors, or diseases)	Hearing aids for children 1 per ear, every 24 months, for adults up to \$2,500 per ear every 24 months)     Infertility treatment     Most coverage provided outside the United States. See <a href="https://www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a>	Non-emergency care when traveling outside the U.S. Private-duty nursing (with the exception of inpatient private duty nursing)

 $<sup>^{\</sup>star}$  For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those agencies is: the <u>plan</u> at 1-800-295-0593, U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform, or Department of Health and Human Services, Center for Consumer Information and Insurance Oversight, at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or www.cciio.cms.gov. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance Marketplace, For more information about the Marketplace, visit www.HealthCare.gov or call 1-800-318-2596.

Your Grievance and Appeals Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your plan for a denial of a claim. This complaint is called a grievance or appeal. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical claim. Your plan documents also provide complete information to submit a claim, appeal, or a grievance for any reason to your plan. For more information about your rights, this notice, or assistance, contact: Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Illinois at 1-800-295-0593 or visit www.bcbsil.com, or contact the U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or visit <a href="www.dol.uov/ebsa/healthreform">www.dol.uov/ebsa/healthreform</a>. Additionally, a consumer assistance program can help you file your <a href="mailto:appeal">appeal</a>. Contact the Illinois Department of Insurance at (877) 527-9431 or visit <a href="http://insurance.illinois.gov">http://insurance.illinois.gov</a>.

#### Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes plans, health insurance available through the Marketplace or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicaid, CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of Minimum Essential Coverage, you may not be eligible for the premium tax credit.

### Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

#### Language Access Services:

Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-295-0593.

Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-295-0593.

Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助,请拨打这个号码1-800-295-0593.

Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-295-0593.

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

Page 7 of 8



This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this <u>plan</u> might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> charge, and many other factors. Focus on the <u>cost sharing</u> amounts (<u>deductibles, copayments</u> and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded services</u> under the <u>plan</u>. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might pay under different health <u>plans</u>. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage.

Peg is Having a Bab (9 months of <u>in-network</u> pre-natal hospital delivery)		Managing Joe's type 2 Dia (a year of routine in-network sere controlled candition)		Mia's Simple Fractu ( <u>in-network</u> emergency room visit up care)	THE CONTRACT OF THE PARTY OF TH
■ The <u>plan's</u> overall <u>deductible</u> ■ <u>Specialist copeyment</u> ■ Hospital (facility) <u>coinsurance</u> ■ Other <u>coinsurance</u>	\$750 \$50 20% 20%	■ The plan's overall <u>deductible</u> ■ <u>Specialist consyment</u> ■ Hospital (facility) <u>coinsurance</u> ■ Other <u>coinsurance</u>	\$750 \$50 20% 20%	■ The <u>plan's</u> overall <u>deductible</u> ■ <u>Specialist copayment</u> ■ Hospital (facility) <u>coinsurance</u> ■ Other <u>coinsurance</u>	\$750 \$50 20% 20%
This EXAMPLE event includes servi Specialist office visits (prenatal care) Childbirth/Delivery Professional Servic Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services Diagnostic tests (ultrasounds and bloo Specialist visit (anesthesia)	es	This EXAMPLE event includes service Primary care physician office visits (includes education) Diagnostic tests (blood work) Prescription drugs Durable medical equipment (glucose medical)	luding	This EXAMPLE event includes se Emergency room care (including me supplies) Diagnostic test (x-ray) Durable medical equipment (cruche Rehabilitation services (physical the	edical
Total Example Cost	\$12,700	Total Example Cost	\$5,600	Total Example Cost	\$2,800
In this example, Peg would pay:  Cost Sharing		In this example, Joe would pay:  Cost Sharing		In this example, Mia would pay:  Cost Sharing	
Deductibles	\$750	Deductibles	\$750	Deductibles	\$750
Copayments	\$30	Copayments	\$1,000	Copayments	\$500
Coinsurance	\$2,200	Coinsurance	\$30	Coinsurance	\$200
What isn't covered		What isn't covered		What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$60	Limits or exclusions	\$20	Limits or exclusions	\$0
The total Peg would pay is	\$3,040	The total Joe would pay is	\$1,800	The total Mia would pay is	\$1,450

The  $\underline{\textit{plan}}$  would be responsible for the other costs of these EXAMPLE covered services.

### BlueCross BlueShield of Illinois

lilyou, or nomenne you are helperg, have oueskone, you have the repit to get help and information in your fenguage litting one.
To speak to an interpretor, call the oustoner service marker on the block of your member and, if you are not a mamber, or den't have a card, call 855 710-6984.

تعریة Arabc	ل کار لینی از شان سدهم نیسته البینه المق فی المصول علی فلساعده و المعاومات الصرور به باعث من دور به ناشخه الشخت افی متر مدل علی رد دسته فصلاته المتازر علی مایر متابعه عضویات دان آب بای عصوات او المتاز المتاز علی مایر متابعه عضویات دان آب بای عصوات او المتاز المتاز المتاز علی مایر متابعه عضویات دان آب بای عصوات او المتاز المتاز المتاز علی مایر متابعه عضویات دان آب بای عصوات او المتاز
禁體中文 Chrese	如果实,变仅1在标的的对象。就此名疑問,包有權利免費以供的母語獲得幫助和訊整。治如一位關鍵員。結於電讯在您的會員卡特施的客戶帶積度試驗器。如果是不是會員 该沒有會員主 結論實 855 7℃ 5682。
Français	wars, ou but 3. Indicent is the contrain dusfor an advanged on some and a substitution of the contrained on the contrain
Deutsch German	Fax solder, grade net Schalter inger to de tecenhedas Recht köder zwicht de de zubensehn ihrer Spische de habet im in einer Demedate du sproden nier liebte de zubensehlanden auf de Rucksdelle Nei Stignetschilanden. Fahr de ver Ne post sind oder zene Majlassoarte besteren habet de de zubensehlanden eine Stignetschilanden.
EALTH KO Grank	Εύν εστές η ελπούς που βοηθότε έχτι ερώπερες, έχειν το διούμμενοι λόμος βοηθώνα κοι πληροφορίες στη γιώσσα σύς χωρός χρέωση. Εία νεκελήσετε στε ένα διεργημέα, καλ ότι τον αρθού εξεπηρέτησης πελιπών περισφόρετε στο πίσω με σος γις καρτίας μελού, συς. Επι δεντέρτε μέλος η δεν έχετε είρπο, καλιπία τον εριθώύ 855-710-8564.
ું જાતા ગુજરાતી	જો તમને અકલા તમે મદદ કરી રહ્યા હૈય મેવી કોઇ બીજી વ્યક્તિને ધેસ.બી.બેમ, કુલાધિયા સાથે વાત કરવા માટે. તમારા સભ્યપદના કાર્ડની પાછળ આપેલ ગ્રાહક સેવા નંબર પર કોલ કરો. જો અપ સભ્યપદ ના ધરાવતા હોવ. અથવા આપની પાસે કાર્ડ નથી તો 855-710-6984 નંબર પર કોલ કરો
हिंदी Hind	यदि आपके. या आच जिसकी सहायता कर रहे हैं उसके, पश्न हैं तो अपको अपको अपको अपको अपको का सहायता और उातकवरी प्राप्त करने का अधिकार है। कियो अनुवादक से बात करने के लिए, अपने सदस्य कर्ड के पीछे दिए गए गहक सेवा नंबर पर करेंक करें। यदि अप सदस्य नहीं हैं, या आपके पास कर्फ नहीं हैं, तो 955-710.6964 पर कोस करें।
Italiano Italian	Se to qualconome size autando evele formende hai il dintrodi observe auti de informazioni nata hai lingua gialunamente. Per partire con un interpreta, publici samure il senzo cherti al numero portato sul lapo posterore de festra l'essera di socio. Se non se sobio o non possicio una lessera, publichamare inumero 855-/10-6864.
p 0.00 Korean	역 - 조망리 취임 등도 되었는 당시 없다면 되었는 제품으로 그는 이 <b>부리가 보를 취</b> 하는 역이 되면를 하고 하는 학교로 다른 회복 이를 되면 지원 등로 기계를 보는 기계를 보고 한다. 전화하다에 출 회장이 가지면 다른 기계를 보고 1 <b>865719084</b> 근임 전대수 되지고.
Dinê Navaju	That m, el deadlago fallat histoanimiwoligii, no 'diffidjes, ta'isla bee nanbeet, el tha miti'e nino a'disensel, Ata' natoc'i beh'j' hadeedzin ninzmgo el kwe'e da'inishin iko anditalwoligii beh'j' hadulish, bee néshozimi bine'tigé 'bita''. Koji auh naultoonni hadi'eegéé él dostago bee néshoziniga oligipa koji 'bettaini'. 855.716.6984.
Poisk Fotoh	Jess Ty us anobal ktorepomages z manie jestelić cupre em ce fram do uzystvina bezikamej chomacji. pomoży we wkaryim języku. Any porzumewiał z Nyzerzem, z adzeron pad jeuner podeny na oderodo karty członiowienie Jeżes nie jestelić cupre em No nie masz przy sobie karty z adzeron poz niema 35 5 710-4664.
Pyconia Pusitan	Если у выс нали человета которому вы помогаетс, всычным вопросы, у вас есть повеси на бистичную паношь и выдырывацию предестивленную на вашем языко чуббы готоворить с переводником гозорине в отдел обструмением ключителя по телефону, указанному на отов ней клосием ввшем завления учествены. Есля вы не являетель учественыем или у востей карточны, позвочите по телефону воздания учествены. В телефону воздания и повершения в почения в по
Español Spanish	fillusted o adjuter la quientist -d lesta apudands cenagriquistas, sane derecto a obtener ajuda e información en su ultimo atin costa arguno. Para hadiar con un interpete comunicipas econ el número del Servicia di la figura en al terrorso desu tarjeta de membro o usad no acimiento a no posee unatarjeta, sume al 855-710-6681.
Tagalog Tagalog	Kung dawi ciang sang sang sapapagan pagasahangan da may mga tarung inayawandi sa kang masabahang liling at mpomisyon sa yong sa mang watang bayad. Ugang matupaga sapasahan waki lumanag sa numera ng serbayo para sa kustuma sa wad ngiyong kaid ag nayantru. Kung itaw ay hara lumanag sa numera ng serbayo para sa kustuma sa wad ngiyong kaid ag nayantru. Kung itaw ay hara lumg mgamera, lu kaya ay waang kuru timawag sa \$55-710-5984.
ردو Cretu	گر اپناکو یہ کسی پیسے بڑے کو بھی گی ب خت کر رہے ہوں کوئی سوال ہو بیتان ہے ہو ، اپ کر اپنی رہان میں خت شد اور مطوحہ حصل کرنے کہ بھی ہے، صوحہ سے بٹ کرنے کے لیے ، کستر سروس سر پر کال گرونی جو مہ کئے کان کی بشتا پر رہے ہے، گر آپ سور بھی پین با آپ کے پاس کونہ میں ہے وہ 1654 کا رائے ۔ کال کریں۔
Tion, Vid. Victorinese	Néu quý vị hoặc người mô quy vị giúp đỡ có bắt kỳ cầu hội nào quý vị có quyền được hỗ trợ và nhân thông họi kháng ngôi ngữ của trình mên phi. Để nói chuyên với thông điện viên, gọi số dịch vũ khách hàng nâm ở phía sau the nội viên của quy vi. Như quy vị thong phải là thị viên hoạc thông gọi số 855-710 6884.

bcbsil.com

#### Health care coverage is important for everyone.

We provide free communication aids and services for anyone with a disability or who needs language assistance. We do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, gender identity, age or disability.

To receive language or communication assistance free of charge, please call us at 855-710-6984.

If you believe we have failed to provide a service, or think we have discriminated in another way, contact us to file a grievance.

Office of Civil Rights Coordinator 300 E. Randolph St. 35th Floor Chicago, Illinois 60601 Phone: TTY/TDD: 855-664-7270 (voicemail) 855-661-6965 855-661-6960

Fax: Email: CivilRightsCoordinator@hcsc.net

You may file a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights, at:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services

Phone: 800-368-1019
TTY/TDD: 800-537-7697
Complaint Portal: http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html 200 Independence Avenue SW Room 509F, HHH Building 1019 Washington, DC 20201



The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health <u>plan</u>. The SBC shows you how you and the <u>plan</u> would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this <u>plan</u> (called the <u>premium)</u> will be provided separately. This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, call 1-800-295-0593 or at <a href="https://www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as <u>allowed amount</u>, <u>balance billing, coinsurance, copayment</u>, <u>deductible, provider</u>, or other underlined terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at <a href="https://www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as <u>allowed amount</u>, <u>balance billing, coinsurance, copayment</u>, <u>deductible, provider</u>, or other underlined.

Important Questions	Answers	Why This Matters:
What is the overall deductible?	For In-Network: \$750 Individual/\$2,250 Family For <u>Out-of-Network</u> : \$1,500 Individual/\$4,500 Family	Generally, you must pay all of the costs from <u>providers</u> up to the <u>deductible</u> amount before this <u>plan</u> begins to pay. If you have other family members on the <u>plan</u> , each famil member must meet their own individual <u>deductible</u> until the total amount of <u>deductible</u> expenses paid by all family members meets the overall family <u>deductible</u> .
Are there services covered before you meet your deductible?	Yes. Certain reventive care, services that charge a <u>copay</u> , <u>prescription drugs</u> , and emergency room services are covered before you meet your <u>deduclible</u> .	This plan covers some items and services even if you haven't yet met the <u>deductible</u> amount. But a <u>copaymenter coinsurance</u> may apply. For example, this <u>plan</u> covers certain <u>preventive services</u> without <u>cost sharing</u> and before you meet your <u>deductible</u> . See a list of covered <u>preventive services</u> at <a href="https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/">https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/</a> .
Are there other <u>deductibles</u> for specific services?	Yes. \$300 <u>deductible</u> for <u>Out-of-Network</u> hospital admission. There are no other specific <u>deductibles</u> .	You must pay all of the costs for these services up to the specific <u>deductible</u> amount before this <u>p'an</u> begins to pay for these services.
What is the <u>out-of-pocket</u> i <u>mit</u> for this <u>plan</u> ?	For In-Network: \$2,750 Individual/\$8,250 Family For Out-of-Network: \$5,500 Individual/\$14,250 Family Prescription drug expense limit: \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family	The <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> is the most you could pay in a year for covered services. If you have other family members in this <u>plan</u> , they have to meet their own <u>out-of-pocket limits</u> until the overall family <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> has been met.
What is not included in the out-of-pocket limit?	Premiums, balance-billing charges and health care this plan doesn't cover.	Even though you pay these expenses, they don't count toward the <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> .
Will you pay less if you use a <u>network provider</u> ?	Yes. See www.bobsil.com or call 1-800-295-0593 for a list of network providers.	This plan uses a provider network. You will pay less if you use a provider in the plan's network. You will pay the most if you use an out-of-network provider, and you might receive a bill from a provider for the difference between the provider's charge and what your plan pays (balance billing). Be aware, your network provider might use an out-of-network provider for some services (such as lab work). Check with your provider before you get services.
Do you need a referral to see a specialist?	No.	You can see the specialist you choose without a referral

Page 1 of 8

### All <u>copayment</u> and <u>coinsurance</u> costs shown in this chart are after your <u>deductible</u> has been met, if a <u>deductible</u> applies.

Man Land Town	What		u Will Pay	
Common Services Yo Medical Event	Services You May Need	In-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
	Primary care visit to treat an injury or illness	\$30 <u>copay</u> /visit; <u>deductible</u> does not apply	40% coinsurance	Virtual Visits: \$30/visit; deductible does not apply See your benefit booklet* for details.
	<u>Specialist</u> visit	\$50 <u>copay</u> /visit; <u>deductible</u> does not apply	40% coinsurance	None
or clinic	Preventive care/screening/ immunization	No Charge; <u>deductible</u> does not apply	40% coinsurance	You may have to pay for services that aren' <u>preventive</u> . Ask your <u>provider</u> if the services needed are <u>preventive</u> . Then check what your <u>plan</u> will pay for.
If you have a test	Diagnostic test (x-ray, blood work)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	Preauthorization may be required; see your benefit booklet* for details.
	Imaging (CT/PET scans, MRIs)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	beliefit bookiet for details.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\textit{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\textit{www.bcbsil.com}}$ .

Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	In-Network Provider	u Will Pay Out-of-Network Provider	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
	Generic drugs	\$10 copay/prescription (retail) \$20 copay/prescription (mail order); deductible does not apply	\$10 copay/prescription (retail); deductible does not apply	30-day supply at Retail 90-day supply at Mail Order Rx <u>Out-of-Pocket</u> Expense Limit: \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family
If you need drugs to treat your illness or condition More information about prescription drug coverage is available at www.bcbsil.com.	Preferred brand drugs	\$40 copay/prescription (retail) \$80 copay/prescription (mail order); deductible does not apply	\$40 <u>copay/prescription</u> (retail); <u>deductible</u> does not apply	For <u>Out-of-Network provider</u> , you are responsible for 50% of the eligible amount after the <u>copay</u> .  Payment of the difference between the cost
	Non-preferred brand drugs	\$60 copay/prescription (retail) \$120 copay/prescription (mail order) deductible does not apply	\$60 <u>copay/prescription</u> (retail); <u>deductible</u> does not apply	of a brand name drug and a generic may be required if a generic drug is available.  Certain women's <u>preventive services</u> will be covered with no cost to the member. For a full list of these prescriptions and/or services. please contact Customer Service.
	Specialty drugs	\$60 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail); <u>deductible</u> does not apply	Not Covered	Specialty drug coverage based on group policy. Prior authorization may be required. Specialty retail limited to a 30-day supply.
If you have outpatient surgery	Facility fee (e.g., ambulatory surgery center)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	Preauthorization may be required.
	Physician/surgeon fees	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	None

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\text{www.bcbsil.com}}$ .

Common		What You Will Pay		Limitations, Exceptions, & Other
Medical Event S	Services You May Need	In-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Important Information
	Emergency room care	\$250 <u>copay</u> /visit; <u>deductible</u> does not apply	\$250 copay/visit; deductible does not apply	Copay waived if admitted.
attention	Emergency medical transportation	20% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	Preauthorization may be required for non- emergency transportation; see your benefit booklet* for details.
	<u>Urgent care</u>	\$30 <u>copay/visit;</u> deductible does not apply	40% coinsurance	None
stay	Facility fee (e.g., hospital room)	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	S300 <u>deductible</u> per admission <u>Out-of-</u> <u>Network providers</u> , <u>Preauthorization</u> required.
	Physician/surgeon fees	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	None
if you need mental health, behavioral health, or substance	Outpatient services	\$30 copay/office visit; deductible does not apply; 20% coinsurance for other outpatient services	40% <u>coinsurance</u>	PCP <u>copay</u> applies to psychotherapy visit only. <u>Preauthorization</u> may be required; see your benefit booklet* for details. Virtual Visits: \$30 <u>copay</u> /visit; <u>deductible</u> does not apply. See your benefit booklet* for details.
abuse services	Inpatient services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	\$300 <u>deductible</u> per admission <u>Out-of-Network providers</u> , <u>Preauthorization</u> required.

 $<sup>^{\</sup>bullet}$  For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\text{www.bcbsil.com}}.$ 

Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	What Yo In-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	U Will Pay Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information	
If you are pregnant Chi	Office visits	\$30 copay/visit; deductible does not apply	40% coinsurance	Copay applies to first prenatal visit (per pregnancy). Cost sharing does not apply for preventive	
	Childbirth/delivery professional services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	services. Depending on the type of services, a copayment, coinsurance, or deductible may apply. Maternity care may include tests and services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound).	
	Childbirth/delivery facility services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	\$300 <u>deductible</u> per admission Out-of-Network providers.	
	Home health care	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	Preauthorization may be required.	
	Rehabilitation services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance		
If you need help recovering or have other special health needs	Habilitation services	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	Preauthorization may be required.	
	Skilled nursing care	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	\$300 deductible per admission Out-of-Network providers. Preauthorization may be required.	
	Durable medical equipment	20% coinsurance	40% coinsurance	Benefits are limited to items used to serve a medical purpose. <u>Durable Medical Equipment</u> benefits are provided for both purchase and rental equipment (up to the purchase price). <u>Preauthorization</u> may be required.	
	Hospice services	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	40% coinsurance	\$300 <u>deductible</u> per admission <u>Out-of-Network providers</u> . <u>Preauthorization</u> may be required.	

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com.</u>

Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	What Yo in-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	U Will Pay Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
	Children's eye exam	Not Covered	Not Covered	None
If your child needs dental or eye care	Children's glasses	Not Covered	Not Covered	None
	Children's dental check-up	Not Covered	Not Covered	None

### Excluded Services & Other Covered Services:

Acupuncture     Dental care (Adult)	Long term care     Routine eye care (Adult)	<ul> <li>Routine foot care (with the exception of person with diagnosis of diabetes)</li> <li>Weight loss programs</li> </ul>
Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to	these services. This isn't a complete list. Please see	your plan document.)
<ul> <li>Bariatric surgery</li> <li>Chiropractic care (Chiropractic and Osteopathic manipulation limited to 15 visits per calendar year)</li> <li>Cosmetic surgery (only for correcting congenital deformities or conditions resulting from accidental injuries, scars, tumors, or diseases)</li> </ul>	Hearing aids for children 1 per ear, every 24 months, for adults up to \$2,500 per ear every 24 months)     Infertility treatment     Most coverage provided outside the United States. See <a href="https://www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a>	<ul> <li>Non-emergency care when traveling outside the U.S.</li> <li>Private-duty nursing (with the exception of inpatient private duty nursing)</li> </ul>

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\text{www.bcbsil.com}}$ .

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those agencies is: the <u>plan</u> at 1-800-295-0593, U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or <u>www.doi.o.gov/ebsa/healthreform</u>, or Department of Health and Human Services, Center for Consumer Information and Insurance Oversight, at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <u>www.coi.o.cms.gov</u>. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the <u>Health Insurance Marketplace</u>. For more information about the <u>Marketplace</u>, visit <u>www.HealthCare.gov</u> or call 1-800-318-2596.

Your <u>Grievance</u> and <u>Appeals</u> Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your <u>plan</u> for a denial of a <u>claim</u>. This complaint is called a <u>grievance</u> or <u>appeal</u>. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical <u>claim</u>. Your <u>plan</u> documents also provide complete information to submit a <u>claim</u>, <u>appeal</u>, or a <u>grievance</u> for any reason to your <u>plan</u>. For more information about <u>your rights</u>, this notice, or assistance, contact: Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Illinois at 1-800-295-0593 or visit <u>www.bcbsi.com</u>, or contact the U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or visit <u>www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform</u>, Additionally, a consumer assistance program can help you file your <u>appeal</u>. Contact the Illinois Department of Insurance at (877) 527-9431 or visit <u>http://insurance.illinois.gov</u>.

#### Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes <u>plans</u>, health insurance available through the <u>Marketplace</u> or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicaid, CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of <u>Minimum Essential Coverage</u>, you may not be eligible for the <u>premium</u> tax credit.

#### Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

#### Language Access Services:

Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-295-0593.

Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-295-0593

Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助,请拨打这个号码1-800-295-0593.

Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwot ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-295-0593.

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

Page 7 of 8

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the plan or policy document at www.bcbsil.com.



This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this <u>plan</u> might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> charge, and many other factors. Focus on the <u>cost sharing</u> amounts (<u>deductibles, copayments</u> and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded services</u> under the <u>plan</u>. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might pay under different health <u>plans</u>. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage.

#### Peg is Having a Baby (9 months of <u>in-network</u> pre-catal care and a hospital delivery)

The plan's overall deductible	\$750
Specialist copayment	\$50
<ul> <li>Hospital (facility) coinsurance</li> </ul>	20%
■ Other coinsurance	20%

#### This EXAMPLE event includes services like: Specialist office visits (prenatal care) Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services Diagnostic lests (ultrasounds and blood work) Specialist visit (anesthesia)

Total Example Cost	\$12,700
In this example, Peg would pay:	
Cost Sharing	
<u>Deductibles</u>	\$750
Copayments	\$30
Coinsurance	\$2,000
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$60
The total Peg would pay is	\$2,810

### Managing Joe's type 2 Diabetes (a year of minine in-natwork care of a wellcontrolled condition).

\$750
\$50
20%
20%

# This EXAMPLE event includes services like: Primary care physician office visits (including disease education) Diagnostic tests (blood work) Prescription drugs Durable medical equipment (glucose meter)

Total Example Cost	\$5,600
In this example, Joe would pay:	
Cost Sharing	
Deductibles	\$750
Copayments	\$1,000
Coinsurance	\$30
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$20
The total Joe would pay is	\$1,800

### Mia's Simple Fracture

Specialist copayment	\$50
Hospital (facility) coinsurance	20%
Other coinsurance	20%
This EXAMPLE event includes servic	
supplies)	-
Diagnostic test (x-ray)	
Durable medical equipment (crutches)	
Rehabilitation services (physical therap)	r)
Total Example Cost	\$2,800
Total Example Cost	\$2,8

■ The plan's overall deductible

1	\$750
1	\$400
1	\$200
	SO
	\$1,350

The <u>plan</u> would be responsible for the other costs of these EXAMPLE covered services.

Page 8 of 8

\$750

if you or someone you are helping, have questions, you have the right 10 get help and information in jourisinguage, at no cours. To specific transfer each, call this customer pervious problem for the back of your member cand, if you are not a member, or don't have a qual, can 855.7 (0.9564).

لعربية عظمة	ل کار اتنان الدین سخص سناعته استاد فلیک فلیل فلم محمول علی فلمناعه والمعفومید السروروية رئيلگ من باري فية عكنة الشخب إلى مترجو فوري، اصبل على وابوجمية فصلاد استكار على ظهر علقة عضويك. فان ابر لكن عضواء او كنت لا نبت عظامة وقسل على 855 71050 857
製給中文 Chines#	如果您,就您在供编制的影象。對此有時間,"有相對免費以先的可認獲得累励和訊金。治統一任報課員,這投稿印在这必需其卡負面的客戶提務包括領國。如果多不是查員,或沒有 審員卡,請致或357/85961
Français French	Si will be the design of quarters for the second of the se
Deutsch Gennan	Fals to cook ensure dam Schriffer Programation history is day Point Köstersselfe and Monador on a time. Proving transfer for interested to the receivable from Magningue into a Fals Sie van Higgert and admirer en Magninia inner south, little Sie 1916 Pag 110 F184 as
Eklaviko Greek	Εύν τους η αύπικος που βοηθύτε έντε υθωήγεις, έντε ταδικεικών να λύβτιι βοήθει» και πλεροφορίες στη γλώστα σος χωρίς μεδωση. Γα να μλήστα θε έναν δυργήνει, καλέστι τον αρθιμά εξυπηρέπτσης πελαγών που ακαγράφεται το πιστωμέρος της καργεχείλους, πος. Εάνιθεν εστε μέλος ή δεν έχει ενάλισε είν μοθμο 855-710-6864
ાત્રકાણ ગુજરાતી	જો તમને અથવા તમે મદદ કરી રહ્યા ક્ષેય એવી કોઈ બીજી વ્યક્તિને એસ. ડ્રાંથોએમ. ફુલ્માંથેયા સાથે વાત કરવા માટે. તમારા સભ્યપદના કાર્ડની પાઇળ આપેલ ગાહક સેવા નંબર પર કાલ કરો. જો અપ સભ્યપદ ના ધરાવતા ક્ષેય. અશ્વના આપની પાસે કાર્ડ નથી તો 855-710-6984 નબર પર કૌલ કરો.
रिंदी hadi	यदि आपने, चा आग जिसकी सहायता कर रहे हैं उसके. एक हैं, तो आपको अपनी आपने आप में ति शुष्क सहायता और आनमदी बापन करने वब आधिकार हैं। किसी अनुवादक से बात करने के सिए, अवने सदस्य कर है के पीछे दिए यए गहक सेवा नवर पर कॉस करें। यदि आप सदस्य नहीं हैं, यो अपने पास काई नहीं हैं, तो 955 710 6884 पर कोल करें।
ilakaro Italian	Sease quaramente site, autamate avere domande, hie if de fite de obtenere auto e informaçion nece auto le gua gratu tamente. Per seriere con un miscrierte, puo chamare is serieza cienti al numero oporado sul tato postenore della 1. e les serie di socio. Se non sel socio o non possigdi una les serie, puos chiemare il numero 855 / 10 8984.
р⊒.h Korean	등을 위한 또는 구한가 없는 사회의 응원이 있다면 가하는 무용한 1개위 등본과 정도를 위한다면 네는 종를 수 있는 소리가 있습니다. 화생 하는 동안의 없답답을 사비스 번호로 전화도로 받는 회사에 다른 사이트로 가는 역한 고시에 866구(34984-25로 인원주요) 시교
Cine Navigo	Far ni, či djedago tákti bláz i za waligi, nafidlikitgas te sta beená ahkistjí taz nakjeníka aldodivol. Ala habeli bodh ji hodecedah muzango a kwele da mishgi aka midzalwoligu Elshiji kaz falla bee acciorani bane dogi skali. Ka snat sadtova na hadulicejo er dostaga bee nečtovniga adago kon hadula h 855-710-4981.
Polish Polish	ledik Ty luc asabbi. More pomejast, mese jak efawkalapihania mace priawada uzyskanki bezpletnej informacji i pomocy we własnym jęcyku. Aby porcznewnaż damaczem, ziedowół pod numer podany na cowodok kartyczionkowskie, Jejnik nej esteś czonkiem lub nie mesz przy sobe leinty, zaczwóń pod kumer 855-7406984.
Pycowii Fussian	Есни у вас или чиловия, клюсуму вы личилляль, вознагли вопрози, у вас есть почва набисплатную печновы и информацию, проурстваленную на вышем языке. Чтобы, поговорить с переводимом, позвоем в вотим, обструмаемен отненное по телефону, укаженову на обратной стороне вашкий картоны участвев. Если вы не велетиско-участивация из у вас нег картоных, ръзвоните по таменому обструмаемен.
Español Spanish	Susted o alguen a Quen untadesta aputandu tiene preguntas, tene derecho a obtener apuda e información en su dion a sincreto, agun? Paráhithar con un interprise camuniquese con el número del Servico al Cuento que figura en el reverso de su tancin de micricio. Luciad no en recordo centrado o figura en el reverso de su tancin de micricio. Luciad no en recordo a obtener a las jetus inme al 85 / 710 //564
Tagulog	kung waw io zag kung taong isang tahunungan ay may mga tanang, may karasikan kang makkina ng tukng at expermasyon sa iyon) wwa nang selang bayad. Upang makipag usad sa isang tagasalin wilita Jumaway se numayo ng saribnyo para sa tustori or sa kaoding nyong karding ingembro. King waw ay hindi isang miyembro, a kaya ay waking kardi, tumawag sa 855713-6644
ارجر 17mbu	گر کیا کرد ، ناکس ایسے فرد کو حص کی ایسا تھا گر رہنے ہیں اگر ہی ہوت ہو ہو اپنی اس حق ملت اور مخودات خصل کرنے کا حق ہے محمد میں انداز کرنے کی اور جو جو اس میں اور کا گراہی جو جو کے گئر اگر ہی جو جو کے گراہی جو جو کے گراہی ہو جو کے گراہی ہو جو کے گراہی کی کرد کی ہوت ہے کہ 15 کی ہوت ہے جہ 17 کی کرد کی کرد کی ہوت ہے ہے گئر کی ہوت ہے جہ 17 کی ہوت ہے ہوتا ہے جہ 17 کی ہوت ہوتا ہے جو کہ 17 کی ہوتا ہوتا ہے جو کہ 17 کی ہوتا ہے جو کہ انداز کرد ہوتا ہے جو کہ بھر ہوتا ہے جو کہ بھر کرد ہوتا ہے جس کرد ہوتا ہے جو کہ بھر کرد ہوتا ہے جو کہ ہوتا ہے جو کہ بھر کرد ہوتا ہے جو کہ ہوتا ہے جو کہ بھر کرد ہوتا ہے جو کہ بھر کرد ہوتا ہے جو کہ ہ
Viernamese	Nếu quy vị hoặc người mà quý vị giúp đỡ có bắt kỳ chu hỏi nào quy -i, co quyền được nỗ trợ và nhận thông Lo bàng ngôn ngữ của mình miền phí. Đề nói chưyện với thông gich viên, gọi số ở ch vụ khách hàng nàm ở phía sau thể hỏi viên của xuý vị. Nếu quý vị không yiếu sa Mô linh hóng ao thả, gọi số 855 710-5984.

bcbsil.com

## Health care coverage is important for everyone.

We provide free communication aids and services for anyone with a disability or who needs language assistance. We do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex. gender identity, age or disability.

To receive language or communication assistance free of charge, please call us at 855-710-6984.

If you believe we have failed to provide a service, or think we have discriminated in another way, contact us to file a grievance.

Office of Civil Rights Coordinator 300 E. Randolph St. 35th Floor Chicago, Illinois 60601

Phone: TTY/TDD:

Fax: Email:

855-664-7270 (voicemail) 855-661-6965 855-661-6960 CivilRightsCoordinator@hcsc.net

You may file a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights, at:

U.S. Dept of Health & Human Services 200 Independence Avenue SW Room 509F, HHH Building 1019 Washington, DC 20201

Phone: 800-368-1019
TTY/TDD: 800-537-7697
Complaint Portal: https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/oprtal/lobby.jsf
Complaint Forms: http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html

The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health <u>plan</u>. The SBC shows you how you and the <u>plan</u> would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this <u>plan</u> (called the <u>premium)</u> will be provided separately. This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, call 1-800-892-2803 or at <a href="https://www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, balance billing, coinsurance, copayment, deductible, provider, or other underlined terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at <a href="https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-clossary/">www.healthcare.gov/sbc-clossary/</a> or call 1-855-756-4448 to request a copy.

Important Questions	Answers	Why This Matters:
What is the overall deductible?	\$0	See the Common Medical Events chart below for your costs for services this <u>plan</u> covers.
Are there services covered before you meet your deductible?	No.	You will have to meet the <u>deductible</u> before the <u>plan</u> pays for any services.
Are there other deductibles for specific services?	, No.	You don't have to meet <u>deductibles</u> for specific services.
What is the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limit</u> for this <u>plan</u> ?	\$1,500 Individual/\$3,000 Family Prescription drug expense limit: \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family	The <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> is the most you could pay in a year for covered services. If you have other family members in this <u>plan</u> , they have to meet their own <u>out-of-pocket limits</u> until the overall family <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> has been met.
What is not included in the out-of-pocket limit?	Premiums, balance-billing charges, and health care this plan doesn't cover.	Even though you pay these expenses, they don't count toward the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limit</u> .
Will you pay less if you use a <u>network provider</u> ?	Yes. See www.bcbsil.com or call 1-800-892-2803 for a list of participating providers.	This <u>plan</u> uses a <u>provider network</u> . You will pay less if you use a <u>provider</u> in the <u>plan's network</u> . You will pay the most if you use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> , and you might receive a bill from a <u>provider</u> for the difference between the <u>provider's</u> charge and what your <u>plan</u> pays ( <u>balance billing</u> ). Be aware, your network crovider might use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> for some services (such as lab work). Check with your <u>provider</u> before you get services.
Do you need a Referral to see a specialist?	Yes.	This <u>plan</u> will pay some or all of the costs to see a <u>specialist</u> for covered services but only if you have a <u>Referral</u> before you see the <u>specialist</u> .

## All <u>copayment</u> and <u>coinsurance</u> costs shown in this chart are after your <u>deductible</u> has been met, if a <u>deductible</u> applies.

Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	What Y  Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	ou Will Pay  Non-Participating  Provider  (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
If you visit a health	Primary care visit to treat an injury or illness	\$30 <u>copay</u> /visit	Not Covered	Services or supplies that are not ordered by your Primary Care Physician or Women's Principal Health Care Provider, except emergency and routine vision exams, are not covered.
care <u>provider's</u> office or clinic	Specialist visit	\$50 copay/visit	Not Covered	Referral required.
or orning	Preventive care/screening/ immunization	No Charge	Not Covered	You may have to pay for services that aren't neventive. Ask your provider if the services needed are preventive. Then check what your plan will pay for.
If you have a test	Diagnostic test (x-ray, blood work) imaging (CT/PET scans, MRIs)	No Charge	Not Covered Not Covered	Referral required.  Referral required.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

Set Ularian No.		What Y	ou Will Pay	The second secon	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Importan Information	
	Generic drugs	\$10 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail) \$20 <u>copay</u> /prescription (mail order)	Not Covered	Dispensing limit may apply to certain drugs.  Payment of the difference between the cost a brand name drug and a generic may be required if a generic drug is available.  Certain women's <u>preventative services</u> will tovered with no cost to the member. For a flist of these prescriptions and/or services, please contact Customer Service.  30-day retail/90-day mail.  RX <u>Out-of-Pocket</u> Expense Limit:  \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family.	
If you need drugs to treat your illness or condition	Preferred brand drugs	\$40 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail) \$80 <u>copay</u> /prescription (mail order)	Not Covered		
More information about prescription drug coverage is available al www.bcbsil.com.	Non-preferred brand drugs	\$60 <u>copay/prescription</u> (retail) \$120 <u>copay/prescription</u> (mail order)	Not Covered		
	Specialty drugs	Applicable copay	Not Covered	Coverage based on group policy. Prior <u>authorization</u> may be required. Specialty retail limited to a 30-day supply.	
If you have outpatient	Facility fee (e.g., ambulatory surgery center)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
surgery	Physician/surgeon fees	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
	Emergency room care	\$500 copay/visit	\$500 copay/visit	Copay waived if admitted.	
If you need immediate medical attention	Emergency medical transportation	No Charge	No Charge	Ground transportation only.	
	Urgent care	\$30 <u>copay</u> /visit	Not Covered	Must be affiliated with member's chosen medical group or referral required.	

 $<sup>^{\</sup>star}$  For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\text{www.bcbsil.com}}$ .

	What You Will Pay				
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)    Non-Participating   Provider		Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information	
If you have a hospital	Facility fee (e.g., hospital room)	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Referral required.	
stay	Physician/surgeon fees	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
If you need mental health, behavioral	Outpatient services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Unlimited visits. Referral required.	
health, or substance abuse services	Inpatient services	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Unlimited days. Referral required.	
	Office visits	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Copay applies for the 1st prenatal visit only. Cost sharing does not apply for preventive services. Depending on the type of services. COPAYMENT may apply. Matemity care may include tests and services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound).	
If you are pregnant	Childbirth/delivery professional services	No Charge	Not Covered		
	Childbirth/delivery facility services	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Referral required.	
	Home health care	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
	Rehabilitation services	S30 copay/visit	Not Covered	60 visits combined for all therapies.	
If you need help	Habilitation services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Referral required.	
recovering or have	Skilled nursing care	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Excludes custodial care. Referral required.	
other special health needs	Durable medical equipment	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.  Benefits are limited to items used to serve a medical purpose. Durable Medical Equipment benefits are provided for both purchase and rental equipment (up to the purchase price).	
	Hospice services	No Charge	Not Covered	Inpatient copay may apply. Referral required.	

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\text{www.bcbsil.com}}$ .

THE STREET	NAME OF TAXABLE PARTY.	What You Will Pay		
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
If your child needs	Children's eye exam	No Charge	Not Covered	Limited to one exam every 12 months at participating providers.
dental or eye care	Children's glasses	Not Covered	Not Covered	None
	Children's dentel check-up	Not Covered	Not Covered	None

## Excluded Services & Other Covered Services:

Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (Ch	eck your policy or plan document for more informati	on and a list of any other excluded services.)
Custodial care	Long term care	<ul> <li>Private-duty nursing</li> </ul>
Dental care (Adult)	<ul> <li>Non-emergency care when traveling outside the U.S.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Routine foot care (with the exception of person with diagnosis of diabetes)</li> </ul>
Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to  Acupuncture	these services. This isn't a complete list. Please see  • Chiropractic care	your plan document.)  Routine eye care (Adult)
Acubuncture	Citiloptactic care	Noutille eye cale (Addit)
Bariatric surgery     Cosmetic surgery (only for correcting congenital)	<ul> <li>Hearing aids (for children 1 per ear every 24 months for, adults up to \$2500 per ear every 24</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Weight loss programs (except when non- medically supervised)</li> </ul>

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those agencies is: the <u>plan</u> at 1-800-892-2803, U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or <a href="https://www.doi.gov/ebsa/healthreform">www.doi.gov/ebsa/healthreform</a>, or Department of Health and Human Services, Center for Consumer Information and Insurance Oversight, at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.cciic.cms.nov">www.cciic.cms.nov</a>. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the <a href="health Insurance Marketplace">Health Insurance Marketplace</a>, visit <a href="health Insurance-www.healthCare.gov">www.healthCare.gov</a> or call 1-800-318-2596.

Your <u>Grievance</u> and <u>Appeals</u> Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your <u>plan</u> for a denial of a <u>claim</u>. This complaint is called a <u>grievance</u> or <u>appeal</u>. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical <u>claim</u>. Your <u>plan</u> documents also provide complete information to submit a <u>claim</u>, <u>appeal</u>, or a <u>grievance</u> for any reason to your <u>plan</u>. For more information about your rights, this notice, or assistance, contact: Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Illinois at 1-800-892-2803 or visit <u>www.bobsil.com</u>, or contact the U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or visit www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform. Additionally, a consumer assistance program can help you file your <u>appeal</u>. Contact the Illinois Department of Insurance at (877) 527-9431 or visit <a href="https://insurance.illinois.cov">https://insurance.illinois.cov</a>.

#### Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes <u>plans</u>, health insurance available through the <u>Marketplace</u> or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicard, CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of <u>Minimum Essential Coverage</u>, you may not be eligible for the <u>premium tax credit</u>.

## Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

#### Language Access Services:

Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-892-2803. Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-892-2803.

Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助,请拨打这个号码 1-800-892-2803.

Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-892-2803.

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

Page 6 of 7



This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this <u>plan</u> might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> charge, and many other factors. Focus on the <u>cost sharing</u> amounts (<u>deductibles, copayments</u> and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded services</u> under the <u>plan</u>. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might pay under different health <u>plans</u>. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage.

## Peg is Having a Baby {9 months of <u>in-network</u> pre-natal care and a hospital delivery)

■ The plan's overall deductible	\$0
■ Specialist copayment	\$50
Hospital (facility) copayment	\$250
M Other	\$0

#### This EXAMPLE event includes services like: Specialist offi e visits (prenatal care) Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services Diagnostic tests (ultrasounds and blood work) Specialist visit (anesthesia)

Total Example Cost

In this example, Peg would pay:	
Cost Shanng	
Deductibles Copayments Coinsurance	\$0 \$300 \$0
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions The total Peg would pay is	\$60 <b>\$360</b>

\$12,700

## Managing Joe's type 2 Diabetes (a year of routine in-network care of a wellcontrolled condition)

■ The plan's overall deductible	\$0
Specialist copayment	\$50
■ Hospital (facility) copayment	\$250
■ Other	\$0

# This EXAMPLE event includes services like: Primary care physician office visits (including disease education) Diagnostic tests (blood work) Prescription drugs Durable medi al equipment (glucose meter)

Total Example Cost

n this example, Joe would pay: Cost Shanng	
Deductibles	\$0
Copayments	\$1,000
Coinsurance	\$0
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$20
The total Joe would pay is	\$1,020

\$5,600

## Mia's Simple Fracture (<u>in-network</u> emergency room visit and follow up care)

■ The plan's overall deductible	\$0
Specialist copayment	\$50
<ul> <li>Hospital (facility) copayment</li> </ul>	\$250
■ Other	\$0

# This EXAMPLE event Includes services like: Emergency room care (including medical supplies) Diagnostic test (x-ray) Durable medical equipment (crutches) Rehabilitation services (physical therapy)

n this example, Mia would pay: <u>Cost Sharing</u>	
Deductibles	50
Copayments	\$600
Coinsurance	\$0
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$0
The total Mia would nay is	\$600

Total Example Cost \$2,800

The  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  would be responsible for the other costs of these EXAMPLE covered services.

## BlueCross BlueShield of Illinois

if you arsomeding you are helping have questions, you have the light to get helpind in formation in your language at a local. To speciation thinkey rolls, call the distribution assession number on the back of your new hor land, if you are initial member, or local thinke according 555 710-5584.

Arapic Search	ل کان شرک او نری شهمار تساعده استاد المساق می قنصسول علی افسساعاد و اندانوست الصار ور به العث من بوز آنه نگفته التدمیت می منوجه عروانی، اتصال علی ام سماخسنده السکور علی طهر بطاقه عصوبات این کان عصواه اور کند کار خات بطاقه، مصل علی 855710-5444
無體中文 Chinese	如果你。或述正在協助的對象,對此有疑問,然有得利免費以此的可時獲得幫助和訊料。治路一位轉譯具,結發電点在半的會員卡負面的客戶機務電訊號結。如果怎不是會員,或沒有 會員主,這該電影等710-6884。
Français Francé	Took on one of the forest test the son the daylor, and design states the substance of the post of the
Deutsch German	Fair is obtriemand dem littler Flaben laben haber is dissilier kolonisse Hindus mometoren in et uprashadu en biete Umrint erven Duhrebotherzu su edhen, rufen ille bite die Kundenservale nurmen auf der Ruckselle förer Mitgliedsvalle auf Ervic Sie von Mitglied i madden avvo Mitgliedsvalle bardeter zu rufen. Siellette 555 711 6984 en
Elliqveri Greek	Εύν κατις ή κότισος, πουβοργατε έςτης ερωήσες, έχετε το θετοίωμο να λάβετιβούβεια το πλερόφορες επηγλώσσα σας χωρίς χρέωση. Για να μιθήσετε σε έναν δερμηνέα κολέστε την αρνιμέ έξι πηρότησης πελατών πουμναγγραμικώ ανα πιστωμέρο, της εδρίτος μέδος σας. Ευτένε είστεμέδος ή δεν εχειτεκορίτα, καλέστε την οριθμοβ\$5.710 8994.
ુજરાતી ઉલ્લામ	જો તમને અદવા તમે મદદ કરી રહ્યા દેख યેવી કેઇ બીજી વ્યક્તિને એસ.બી.એમ. કુશાયિયા સાથે વાત કરવા માટે, તમાસ સભ્યપદના કાર્ડની પાછળ આપેલ ગ્રાફક સેવા નંબર પર કોલ કરી. જો આપ સભ્યપદ ના પરાવતા ઠીવ, અથવા આપની પાસે કાર્ડ નથી તો 855-710-6984 નંબર પર કોલ કરો
ਵਿੱਟੀ Hiro	यदि आपके, या आप जिसकी शतायता कर रहे हैं उसके, प्रश्त हैं तो आपको अपको अपको अपको श्राम में निःशुरूक सहायता और जनकरी एप्पल करने का अधिकार हैं। किसी अनुवादक से बात करने के लिए. अपने सदस्य कराई के पीछे दिए गए बाहफ सेवा नबर पर कॉल करे। यदि आप सदस्य नहीं हैं, या आपके पास कार्ड नहीं हैं, तो 555 710 5864 पर कॉल करें।
takano ualiar	Set to quastone the star authrito every district his is district district and the district district and the district district and the district dist
k-orean	한병 소리적인 회사 기름이 되었는 요국 그 나는 회에서는 되었다고 전혀 보고 보고 되고 하게 하고 수 있는 이 비가 되었다고 요구 되는 한병에 있는 그 날 씨는 중 보증성 한 45년(4)는 기계에 가는
Cine Navajo	The third decades bit the man had not not all this decreated beautiful transfer enter of decoded, third beautiful hades of this high hades of this high hades of the high hades of the high hades of the high hades of the high had had a second had been continued to had \$55.716.6984.
Poss Pon.	Little Ty Lic doctor from general matin inhibitories pytanic made prison docurs in an despot registering for made in was in many mystering for made in the second made of the second mad
Paroni Rus an	Есги у восиль четовека измусиму выхомискаетсявсьниям выпровы, у васесть правоча бисплатную почацыя информацию, почасствиванным вышем часобы похоруеть с перевыдияюм, почасным вышем на именты почасным вышем частным вышем на стоим участным. Если выше частным участным вышем на стоим участным. Если выше частным участным именты вышем на прочим, голобыми почастным вышем на прочим вышем на прочим вышем вышем на прочим вышем вышем на прочим вышем вышем вышем на прочим вышем
Espuñol Spanish	Label o expent of them setted table apratimate facility progressive. Here despits a observary place in normal of emits discount of each deputs. Plans habber on, or informate company error or el número del Servicio al Criente que figura en el rorseso de cu tarpata de membro. Si asted ne estimante de poses unatrejata, home vidistante in 1954.
Tagalog Tagalog	Kung ikawa, olanti sang taongkyong shutuunga, uy mayinga tanong, intay karapalan kang makakuha ng tuking at enpamasyon sa yong wikib nang watang bayaa. Upang malipang usab sa kwang tagawan wikis, ilimawag sa rutnelu ng selbnyo parasia kitalomer sa likod ng iyong kedi non-pantine. Kiting duwah ni hula ilimang miyumtino o kaya ay watengkaid, birnawag sa 355 710 8,884.
Urds:	گر ۔ کی ناکسی بہتے اور کو جس کی اب شد کر ر ۔ بور، کو بی برسی ہوں ۔ اس مؤسقہ بھسل کر ہے کہ کے بی برسی کے لی کے کو کئی پشتا و ادرج ہے۔ گر اب سند و بیدانوں ا ان کے باتی کارہ نہر ہے اور 1584 50 کارکس
Lamp Vest Vietnamesa	Nếu quý vị hoặc người mà quy vị giúp đó có bắt kỳ cáu hỗi nào, củy vị có quyển được hỗi trợ và nhận thống sin bằng ngôi ngữ của minh miễn phi. Để nói chuyển với thông điện viên, gọi só dịch vụ khách hiện nhữ y hàm ở phía sau the hội viện của quy vi. Nêu Quy vị hìng phía là bì viện hoặc không có hội, gọ sẽ 655 110-6584.

bcbsil.com

## Health care coverage is important for everyone.

We provide free communication aids and services for anyone with a disability or who needs language assistance. We do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, gender identity, age or disability.

To receive language or communication assistance free of charge, please call us at 855-710-6984.

If you believe we have failed to provide a service, or think we have discriminated in another way, contact us to file a grievance.

Office of Civil Rights Coordinator 300 E. Randolph St. 35th Floor Chicago, Illinois 60601

Phone: 855-664-7270 (voicemail)
TTY/TDD: 855-661-6965
Fax: 855-661-6960
Email: CivilRightsCoordinator@hcsc.net

You may file a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights, at:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services 200 Independence Avenue SW Room 509F, HHH Building 1019 Washington, DC 20201

Phone: 800-368-1019
TTY/TDD: 800-537-7697
Complaint Portal: https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf
Complaint Forms: http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html

The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health <a href="mailto:plan">plan</a>. The SBC shows you how you and the <a href="mailto:plan">plan</a> would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this <a href="mailto:plan">plan</a> (called the <a href="mailto:premium">premium</a> will be provided separately. This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, call 1-800-892-2803 or at <a href="mailto:www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as <a href="mailto:alone-default-state-a

Important Questions	Answers	Why This Magare:
What is the overall deductible?	\$0	See the Common Medical Events chart below for your costs for services this <u>plan</u> covers.
Are there services covered before you meet your deductible?	No.	You will have to meet the <u>deductible</u> before the <u>plan</u> pays for any services.
Are there other deductibles for specific services?	No.	You don't have to meet <u>deductibles</u> for specific services.
What is the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limit</u> for this <u>plan</u> ?	\$1,500 Individual/\$3,000 Family <u>Prescription druo</u> expense limit: \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family	The <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> is the most you could pay in a year for covered services. If you have other family members in this <u>plan</u> , they have to meet their own <u>out-of-pocket limits</u> until the overall family <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> has been met.
What is not included in the out-of-pocket limit?	<u>Premiums</u> , balance-billing charges, and health care this <u>plan</u> doesn't cover.	Even though you pay these expenses, they don't count toward the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limit</u> .
Will you pay less if you use a <u>network provider</u> ?	Yes. See www.bcbsil.com or call 1-800-892-2803 for a list of participating providers.	This <u>plan</u> uses a <u>provider</u> network. You will pay less if you use a <u>provider</u> in the <u>plan's network</u> . You will pay the most if you use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> , and you might receive a bill from a <u>provider</u> for the difference between the <u>provider</u> 's charge and what your <u>plan</u> pays ( <u>balance billing</u> ). Be aware, your <u>network provider</u> might use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> for some services (such as lab work). Check with your <u>provider</u> before you get services.
Do you need a Referral to see a specialist?	Yes.	This <u>plan</u> will pay some or all of the costs to see a <u>specialist</u> for covered services but only if you have a <u>Referral</u> before you see the <u>specialist</u> .

## All <u>copayment</u> and <u>coinsurance</u> costs shown in this chart are after your <u>deductible</u> has been met, if a <u>deductible</u> applies.

What You Will Pay				
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
If you visit a health	Primary care visit to treat an injury or illness	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Services or supplies that are not ordered by your <u>Primary Care Physician</u> or Women's Principal Health Care <u>Provider</u> , except emergency and routine vision exams, are not covered.
care <u>provider's</u> office or clinic  Specialist visit  Preventive care/screening/immunization	<u>Specialist</u> visit	\$50 copay/visit	Not Covered	Referral required.
	No Charge	Not Covered	You may have to pay for services that aren't preventive. Ask your provider if the services needed are preventive. Then check what your plan will pay for.	
If you have a test	Diagnostic test (x-ray, blood work)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.
,	Imaging (CT/PET scans, MRIs)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.

 $<sup>^{\</sup>star}$  For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\text{www.bcbsil.com}}$ .

DESCRIPTION OF A CONTRACTOR	ON THE RESIDENCE OF THE PARTY O	What Y	ou Will Pay		
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)  Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)		Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information	
	Generic drugs	\$10 copay/prescription (retail) \$20 copay/prescription (mail order)	Not Covered	Dispensing limit may apply to certain drugs.  Payment of the difference between the cost of	
If you need drugs to treat your illness or condition	Preferred brand drugs	\$40 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail) \$80 <u>copay</u> /prescription (mail order)	Not Covered	a brand name drug and a generic may be required if a generic drug is available.  Certain women's preventative services will be covered with no cost to the member. For a full	
More information about prescription drug coverage is available at www.bcbsil.com.	Non-preferred brand drugs	\$60 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail) \$120 <u>copay</u> /prescription (mail order)	Not Covered	list of these prescriptions and/or services, please contact Customer Service.  30-day retail/90-day mail.  RX <u>Out-of-Pocket</u> Expense Limit; \$500 Individual \$1,500 Family.	
	Specialty drugs	Applicable copay	Not Covered	Coverage based on group policy. Prior authorization may be required. Specialty retail limited to a 30-day supply.	
If you have outpatient	Facility fee (e.g., ambulatory surgery center)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
surgery	Physician/surgeon fees	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
If you need immediate medical attention	Emergency room care	\$250 copay/visit	\$250 copay/visit	Copay waived if admitted.	
	Emergency medical transportation	No Charge	No Charge	Ground transportation only.	
	Urgent care	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Must be affiliated with member's chosen medical group or referral required.	

 $<sup>\</sup>mbox{\ensuremath{^{\circ}}}$  For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\text{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\text{www.bcbsil.com}}.$ 

9 7 6000		What Y	ou Will Pav	THE PARTY OF THE P	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information	
If you have a hospital	Facility fee (e.g., hospital room)	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Referral required.	
stay	Physician/surgeon fees	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
If you need mental health, behavioral	Outpatient services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Unlimited visits. Referral required.	
health, or substance abuse services	Inpatient services	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Unlimited days. Referral required.	
If you are pregnant	Office visits	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Copay applies for the 1st prenatal visit only. Cost sharing does not apply for preventive services. Depending on the type of services, a copayment may apply. Maternity care may include tests and services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound).	
	Childbirth/delivery professional services	No Charge	Not Covered		
	Childbirth/delivery facility services	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Referral required.	
	Home health care	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
If you need help recovering or have other special health needs	Rehabilitation services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	60 visits combined for all therapies. <u>Referral</u> required.	
	Habilitation services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered		
	Skilled nursing care	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Excludes custodial care. Referral required.	
	Durable medical equipment	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.  Benefits are limited to items used to serve a medical purpose. <u>Durable Medical Equipment</u> benefits are provided for both purchase and rental equipment (up to the purchase price).	
	Hospice services	No Charge	Not Covered	Inpatient copay may apply. Referral required.	

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

NAME OF THE OWNER.	NOT THE PARTY OF T	What Y	ou Will Pay	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
If your child needs	Children's eye exam	No Charge	Not Covered	Limited to one exam every 12 months at participating providers.
dental or eye care	Children's glasses	Not Covered	Not Covered	None
	Children's dental check-up	Not Covered	Not Covered	None

## Excluded Services & Other Covered Services:

Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (Ch	ck your policy or <u>plan</u> document for more information and a list of any	other excluded services.)

- Custodial care
- Dental care (Adult)

- Long term care
- Non-emergency care when traveling outside the U.S.
- Private-duty nursing
- Routine foot care (with the exception of person with diagnosis of diabetes)

## Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to these services. This isn't a complete list. Please see your plan document.)

- Acupuncture
- Bariatric surgery
- Cosmetic surgery (only for correcting congenital deformities or conditions resulting from accidental injuries, scars, tumors, or diseases)
- Chiropractic care
- Hearing aids (for children 1 per ear every 24 months for, adults up to \$2500 per ear every 24 months)
- Infertility treatment

- Routine eye care (Adult)
- Weight loss programs (except when nonmedically supervised)
- Most coverage provided outside the United States. See <a href="https://www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a>

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

Yeur Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those agencies is: the plan at 1-800-892-2803, U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or <a href="https://www.dol.cov/ebsa/healthreform">www.dol.cov/ebsa/healthreform</a>, or Department of Health and Human Services, Center for Consumer Information and Insurance Oversight, at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or <a href="https://www.ccib.crms.cov">www.ccib.crms.cov</a>. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the <a href="health Insurance Marketplace">Health Insurance Marketplace</a>, visit</a> <a href="hwww.HealthCare.gov">www.HealthCare.gov</a> or call 1-800-318-2596.

Your <u>Grievance</u> and <u>Appeals</u> Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your <u>plan</u> for a denial of a <u>claim</u>. This complaint is called a <u>grievance</u> or <u>appeals</u>. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical <u>claim</u>. Your <u>plan</u> documents also provide complete information to submit a <u>claim</u>, <u>appeal</u>, or a <u>grievance</u> for any reason to your <u>plan</u>. For more information about your rights, this notice, or assistance, contact: Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Illinois at 1-800-892-2803 or visit <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>, or contact the U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or visit www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform. Additionally, a consumer assistance program can help you file your <u>appeal</u>. Contact the Illinois Department of Insurance at (877) 527-9431 or visit <a href="http://insurance.illinois.gov">http://insurance.illinois.gov</a>.

## Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes plans, health insurance available through the Marketplace or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicaid, CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of Minimum Essential Coverage, you may not be eligible for the premium tax credit.

### Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

### Language Access Services:

Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-892-2803. Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-892-2803. Chinese (皇文): 如果讀要中文的帮助,请拨打这个号码 1-800-892-2803.

Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-892-2803.

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

Page 6 of 7



This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this <u>plan</u> might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> charge, and many other factors. Focus on the <u>cost sharing</u> amounts (<u>deductibles, copayments</u> and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded services</u> under the <u>plan</u>. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might pay under different health <u>plans</u>. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage.

\$0

## Peg is Having a Baby (9 months of <u>in-network</u> pre-natal care and a hospital delivery)

■ The plan's overall deductible	\$0
✓ Specialist copayment	\$50
<ul> <li>Hospital (facility) copayment</li> </ul>	\$250
■ Other	\$0

## This EXAMPLE event includes services like: <u>Specialist</u> office visits (*prenatal care*) Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services Diagnostic lests (ultrasounds and blood work) Specialist visit (anesthesia)

Total Example Cost	\$12,700
In this example, Peg would pay:	
Deductibles	\$0
Copayments	\$300
Coinsurance	\$0
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$60
The total Peg would pay is	\$360

## Managing Joe's type 2 Diabetes (a year of routine in-network care of a well-controlled condition)

<ul> <li>Specialist copayment</li> <li>Hospital (facility) copayment</li> <li>Other</li> </ul>	\$50 \$250 \$0
This EXAMPLE event includes services like: <u>Primary care physician</u> office visits (including	

■ The plan's overall deductible

## disease education) Diagnostic tests (blood work) Prescription drugs Durable medical equipment (glucose meter) Total Example Cost \$5,600

\$0
\$1,000
\$0
\$20
\$1,020

## Mia's Simple Fracture (<u>in-network</u> emergency room visit and follow up care)

■ <u>Specialist copayment</u> ■ Hospital (facility) <u>copayment</u> ■ Other	\$50 \$250 \$0
This EXAMPLE event includes service. Emergency room care (including medic	
supplies) Diagnostic test (x-ray)	

supplies)
Diagnostic test (x-ray)
Durable medical equipment (crutches)
Rehabilitation services (physical therapy)

■ The plan's overall deductible

Total Example Cost	\$2,800
In this example, Mia would pay:	
Cost Sharing	
Deductibles	\$0
Copayments	\$500
Coinsurance	\$0
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$0
The total Mia would pay is	\$500

The plan would be responsible for the other costs of these EXAMPLE covered services.

\$0

il you, or stimuorie you are helping, have questions, you have the right to get help and information in your carry age, at on cost. To speak to an interveter, call the customersex wo number contre back of you member can't if you are not a marrist at or durit have a card, call \$56,710,4664.

لمريدة Arabic	ان کان آپ او لرای تنخص نمانه الدیل فی انحصول علی العمد اماة و الدهاورت بعدو ورود المثل بن جرابایة کافه البحاث نی سرحاوری، العمل واقی در جاید تا الماکار علی فایو بجای عبدویات این الماکان عملواً، او قبت لا بنت بطخه، فتسل علی 1968-1988
繁體中文 Chruse	如果您。或您正在晚的的时候,对此有疑问。您有提利免费以来的母亲提得莫防和抵急。治核一位群席員、持效電池在京的會員卡負面的客戶服務電話號碼。如果您不是會員,或沒有會員士,結紮電影系710-6664
Français French	Si zous, ou que que nição voya fice en minimá actor, avez des questions, voya avez de questions, voya avez de distributor de la secretividad actor máis a aminimativa. Pour parier a un interprete composed le numbro du service distributorique auxierso de voite carin de membre. Si zous nie les paramentaires de voite si ravez pas de certe, vou fun composer le 655-710.4 vid.
Deutsch Gennan	Firm in stangarded not the Properties of the America of the Recht kostences if the indicator of a natural process of the indicator of the America of the Recht of the America of
Ellarum à Grauk	Εθν ματέλ μαπόνο, που βονοίτε έντα εγωτήσεις, έχετε το βναίμοι να λεβείς βοήθεια και πληροφέρεις στη γνώσο αυξωμής χόνωση Γκανο μλλησείε σε έναν δερμηνία, κολέστετον αρμήν έξυπηρέτησης πελιούν που αναγρώφεται στο πικωμέρος της κορτας μέλου, σες. Ενετέκε έστε μέλος ή ένεξειε κάρει πολέστε τος μοθώ 855 *10.6884.
એ ફ્રાફ્ટકલ જેવેલાથા	જો તમને અશવા તમે મદદ કરી રહ્યા લેય એવી ક્રેઈ બીજી વ્યક્તિને એસ.બી.એમ. કુલાધિશા સાથે વાત કરવા માટે, તમરસ સભ્ર-પદના કાર્ડની પાછળ આપેલ ગ્રાફક સેવા નંબર પર ક્રોલ કરી. જો બાપ સભ્યપદ ના ધરાવતા હોવ, અથવા આપની પાસે કાર્ડ નક્ષી તો 855-710-6984 નંબર પર ક્રોલ કરો.
likel Hindi	यदि आपके. या आप जिसकी सहायता कर रहे हैं उसके, पश्त हैं, तो आपको अपनी आपा में नि.शुल्क सहायता और आतक्तरी पाप्त करने का अधिकार है। किन्ती अनुवादक से बात करने के लिए, अपने सदस्य कार्ड के पीछ दिए गए गहरू सेवा नंबर कर कींस करें। यदि आप सदस्य महीं हैं, या आपके पास कार्ड नहीं हैं, तो 255-710 5984 पर करेंस करें।
itakano Italian	Salu o quacumo che sita andando shake dismando, hai il dinno di openiore auto e informacioni neva tu alimpi agraturiamente. Perpantare editi univi atoptote, pudi chiamare è sanczio cienti al numero ripohato sull'aro postenore delle fue l'asser acti socio. Se non sersocio o non possissi, una l'essera a pudi chiamare è numero 855-716-5384
s 2 s Konsan	한국 취장 없는 권하는 출발 단점이 교육이 한 변경하는 분유 기구(表), 동안 학생들 취장기 없어요 발을 취 있는 중인 학교회(10) 회영 경실 문문로 학교의 전부의 문학로 학회자실원 3. 회장의 이번 시작된 학교에 없는 자연 855 795494 학교 전환호대학
Dire Navajo	Parm er deodago la da bita ania (we' qui, na hilikalgo, te' ida bec neabasor a' Carnuk'e nia a' dostwol. Ma' baba' b' b' [' ladeoste thinin zingere (we' esta' mishgi aki ordatabor qui bech']' (welnin), bec nechozing bioc' log' bitasi. No arata rasansoso in hada' cépar ér doculas, bec nechozini, admis kon' bechinh 855-710-6980.
Poliski Poliski	Jest Ty lub crudes, librar purvages, mace inherchance priams, made praws do constante berplaine informace intrody ne washiyin pedyku Aby pontantamace tumacemi carbanin pod rumar pustanija a colombia mace programace na na mace programace programace na na mace programace programace na na mace programace na na mace programace programace na na mace programace na
Руссии Fussian	Есть у вас или челолька, испрову вы помогиеля, возначитиво проси у выс есть права на беспланную плини, вы информацию, полдоставленную на эзыкамиры, ч. Члюбы голожирить и паравадыном, гозвоните в отдел отделяющих вышем из регуста в дели вы не являетось учложнения из верий изотерчи, подволяето тенефаку (указанном) на образнения изотерчи, подволяет по тенефаку объебить на негуста вышем изотерчи изотерчи.
Español Spanish	Sublided algularin a quam usand dalla ayudando lane proguntas. Tenre derecho a chionici ayuda e intomocon en su disona sin coa in alguno. Para nabbar con un interprete comuniquese con el número de Senvico al Cuerte que figura en el novemo de sutaneta de mombro. Si usand no as mandero o no posebura bryeta, kame al 855-710 8644.
Fagaleg Tagaleg	Run) man and song song yong terutungan ay mga tarung mga tarung mga tarung may sikapaka i kak danakishi ng Laung at mpomosyon sa jenoy waka nung walang beyag beyag besag dasan dasang bigasad-lama, bunawag sa nunwen ngserbaya pad sa kuskumer sa ikuding iyong kading myendha ining kasa ng mgembri, a kaya ay wakang karu, tumawag sa 855 710 6984
اربو دوانا	گر اپ کی ہیے ہے گر جان کی اداسہ کر ریا ہے۔ کہ بار کی بار کی پار کی ہی کہ ہی ہے۔ کہ بار کی ہی جا ہے۔ کہ ہی کہ ہی کے کرنا کی پشاہر ہر تاریخ، اگر آپ سنو چربھی، یا با کے بند کہ جو اپنے در 168 کی بٹر شال کرت
tion g Việt Vietoprnisse	Não quy trihodo người nhiều người nhiện chủ yết giá dò có bắt kỳ cầu họ mào quý vị có quyền được hỗ trợ và nhàn thông là bằng ngôn ngô của minh tinển phí. Để nói chuyện với thông dịch wen, gọi pódịch vụ khách nàng tiểm ở phia sau thiế hỏ, vên của quý lị khếu quy vị không phatia thể viện hoặc không có the gọi số 857-104884.

bcbsil.com

## Health care coverage is important for everyone.

We provide free communication aids and services for anyone with a disability or who needs language assistance. We do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, gender identity, age or disability.

To receive language or communication assistance free of charge, please call us at 855-710-6984.

If you believe we have failed to provide a service, or think we have discriminated in another way, contact us to file a grievance.

Office of Civil Rights Coordinator 300 E. Randolph St. 35th Floor Chicago, Illinois 60601

855-664-7270 (voicemail) 855-661-6965 855-661-6960 Phone: TTY/TDD:

Fax: Email: CivilRightsCoordinator@hcsc.net

You may file a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights, at:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services 200 Independence Avenue SW Room 509F, HHH Building 1019 Washington, DC 20201

Phone: 800-368-1019
TTY/TDD: 800-537-7697
Complaint Portal: https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.isf
Complaint Forms: https://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html



The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health <u>plan</u>. The SBC shows you how you and the <u>plan</u> would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this <u>plan</u> (called the <u>premium</u>) will be provided separately. This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, call 1-800-892-2803 or at <a href="https://www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, balance billing, coinsurance, copayment, deductible, provider, or other terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at <a href="https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/">www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/</a> or call 1-855-756-4448 to request a copy.

Important Questions	Answers	Why This Matters
What is the overall deductible?	\$0	See the Common Medical Events chart below for your costs for services this <u>plan</u> covers.
Are there services covered before you meet your deductible?	No.	You will have to meet the <u>deductible</u> before the <u>plan</u> pays for any services.
Are there other deductibles for specific services?	No.	You don't have to meet <u>deductibles</u> for specific services.
What is the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limit</u> for this <u>plan</u> ?	\$1,500 Individual/\$3,000 Family Prescription drug expense limit: \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family	The <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> is the most you could pay in a year for covered services. If you have other family members in this <u>plan</u> , they have to meet their own <u>out-of-pocket limits</u> , until the overall family <u>out-of-pocket limits</u> , until the overall family <u>out-of-pocket limits</u> .
What is not included in the out-of-pocket limit?	Premiums, balance-billing charges, and health are this plan doesn't cover.	Even though you pay these expenses, they don't count toward the <u>out-of-pocket</u> limit.
Will you pay less if you use a network provider?	Yes. See <a href="https://www.bcbsil.com">www.bcbsil.com</a> or call 1-800-892-2803 for a list of <a href="participating">participating</a> <a href="providers">providers</a> .	This <u>plan</u> uses a <u>provider network</u> . You will pay less if you use a <u>provider</u> in the <u>plan's network</u> . You will pay the most if you use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> , and you might receive a bill from a <u>provider</u> for the difference between the <u>provider's</u> charge and what your <u>plan</u> pays ( <u>balance billing</u> ). Be aware, your <u>network provider</u> might use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> for some services (such as lab work). Check with your <u>provider</u> before you get services.
Do you need a Referral to see a specialist?	Yes.	This <u>plan</u> will pay some or all of the costs to see a <u>specialist</u> for covered services but only if you have a <u>Referral</u> before you see the <u>specialist</u> .

## All <u>copayment</u> and <u>coinsurance</u> costs shown in this chart are after your <u>deductible</u> has been met. if a <u>deductible</u> applies.

THE REAL PROPERTY.	THE RESIDENCE OF THE PARTY OF T	What You Will Pay			
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Importan Information	
Primary care visit to treat an injury or illness  If you visit a health care provider's office or clinic  Specialist visit		\$30 <u>copay</u> /visit	Not Covered	Services or supplies that are not ordered by your <u>Primary Care Physician</u> or Women's Principal Health Care <u>Provider</u> , except emergency and routine vision exams, are not covered.	
	<u>Specialist</u> visit	\$50 copay/visit	Not Covered	Referral required.	
	Preventive care/screening/ immunization	No Charge	Not Covered	You may have to pay for services that aren't preventive. Ask your provider if the services needed are preventive. Then check what your plan will pay for.	
If you have a test	Diagnostic test (x-ray, blood work)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
	Imaging (CT/PET scans, MRIs)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	

 $<sup>^{\</sup>star}$  For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

(DIOLEGE AMA)	DIT STANSANDULUS	What Y	ou Will Pay	CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Importan Information
If you need drugs to treat your illness or condition	Generic drugs	\$10 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail) \$20 <u>copay</u> /prescription (mail order)	Not Covered	Dispensing limit may apply to certain drugs.  Payment of the difference between the cost of
	\$40 copay/prescription (retail) \$80 copay/prescription (mail order)	Not Covered	a brand name drug and a generic may be required if a generic drug is available.  Certain women's preventative services will be covered with no cost to the member. For a full	
More information about prescription drug coverage is available at www.bcbsil.com	Non-preferred brand drugs	\$60 copay/prescription (retail) \$120 copay/prescription (mail order)	Not Covered	please contact Customer Service.  30-day retail/90-day mail.  RX <u>Out-of-Pocket</u> Expense Limit: \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family.
	Specialty drugs	Applicable copay	Not Covered	Coverage based on group policy. Prior authorization may be required. Specialty retail limited to a 30-day supply.
If you have outpatient	Facility fee (e.g., ambulatory surgery center)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.
surgery	Physician/surgeon fees	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.
	Emergency room care	\$500 copay/visit	\$500 copay/visit	Copay waived if admitted.
medical attention train	Emergency medical transportation	No Charge	No Charge	Ground transportation only.
	<u>Urgent care</u>	\$30 <u>copay</u> /visit	Not Covered	Must be affiliated with member's chosen medical group or referral required.

 $<sup>^{*}</sup>$  For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the  $\underline{\textit{plan}}$  or policy document at  $\underline{\textit{www.bcbsil.com}}$ .

Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	What Y Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	ou Will Pay Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information	
If you have a hospital	Facility fee (e.g., hospital room)	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Referral required.	
stay	Physician/surgeon fees	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
If you need mental health, behavioral	Outpatient services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Unlimited visits. Referral required.	
health, or substance abuse services	Inpatient services	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Unlimited days. Referral required.	
If you are pregnant C	Office visits	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Copay applies for the 1st prenatal visit only. Cost sharing does not apply for preventive services. Depending on the type of services, a copayment may apply. Matemity care may	
	Childbirth/delivery professional services	No Charge	Not Covered	include tests and services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound).	
	Childbirth/delivery facility services	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Referral required.	
	Home health care	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.	
If you need help recovering or have other special health needs	Rehabilitation services	\$30 <u>copay</u> /visit	Not Covered	60 visits combined for all therapies.	
	Habilitation services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Referral required.	
	Skilled nursing care	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Excludes custodial care. Referral required.	
	Durable medical equipment	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.  Benefits are limited to items used to serve a medical purpose. Durable Medical Equipment benefits are provided for both purchase and rental equipment (up to the purchase price).	
	Hospice services	No Charge	Not Covered	Inpatient copay may apply. Referral required.	

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

TO SHOULD WANTE	the second section is the	What You Will Pay		BOOK STEEL S	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Importan Information	
If your child needs	Children's eye exam	No Charge	Not Covered	Limited to one exam every 12 months at participating providers.	
dental or eye care	Children's glasses	Not Covered	Not Covered	None	
	Children's dental check-up	Not Covered	Not Covered	None	

## **Excluded Services & Other Covered Services:**

 Cosmetic surgery (only for correcting congenital deformities or conditions resulting from accidental injuries, scars, tumors, or diseases)

Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (CI	eck your policy or plan document for more informati	ion and a listof any other excluded services.)
Custodial care	Long term care	Private-duty nursing
Dental care (Adult)	<ul> <li>Non-emergency care when traveling outside the U.S.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Routine foot care (with the exception of person with diagnosis of diabetes)</li> </ul>
Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to	these services. This isn't a complete list. Please see	your <u>plan</u> document.)
Acupuncture	Chiropractic care	<ul> <li>Routine eye care (Adult)</li> </ul>
<ul><li>Bariatric surgery</li><li>Cosmetic surgery (only for correcting congenital</li></ul>	Hearing aids (for children 1 per ear every 24 months for, adults up to \$2500 per ear every 24	<ul> <li>Weight loss programs (except when non- medically supervised)</li> </ul>
deformities or conditions resulting from	months)	<ul> <li>Most coverage provided outside the</li> </ul>

Infertility treatment

Most coverage provided outside the United States. See www.bcbsil.com

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those agencies is: the plan at 1-800-892-2803, U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform, or Department of Health and Human Services, Center for Consumer Information and Insurance Oversight, at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or www.cciio.cms.gov. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance Marketplace, For more information about the Marketplace, visit www.HealthCare.gov or call 1-800-318-2596.

Your Grievance and Appeals Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your plan for a denial of a claim. This complaint is called a grievance or appeal. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical claim. Your plan documents also provide complete information to submit a claim, appeal, or a grievance for any reason to your plan. For more information about your rights, this notice, or assistance, contact: Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Illinois at 1-800-892-2803 or visit www.bcbsil.com, or contact the U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or visit www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform. Additionally, a consumer assistance program can help you file your appeal. Contact the Illinois Department of Insurance at (877) 527-9431 or visit http://insurance.illinois.gov.

## Does this olan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes plans, health insurance available through the Marketplace or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicard, CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of Minimum Essential Coverage, you may not be eligible for the premium tax credit.

#### Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

## Language Access Services:

Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-892-2803.

Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-892-2803.

Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助, 请拨打这个号码 1-800-892-2803.

Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-892-2803.

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

Page 6 of 7



This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this <u>plan</u> might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> charge, and many other factors. Focus on the <u>cost sharing</u> amounts (<u>deductibles</u>, <u>copayments</u> and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded services</u> under the <u>plan</u>. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might pay under different health <u>plans</u>. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage.

## Peg Is Having a Baby (9 months of <u>in-network</u> pre-natal care and a hospitol delivery)

■ The plan's overall deductible	\$0
Specialist copayment	\$50
Hospital (facility) copayment	\$250
Other	\$0

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: Specialist office visits (prenatal care) Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services Diagnostic tests (ultrasounds and blood work) Specialist visit (anesthesia)

**Total Example Cost** 

Cost Sharing	
Deductibles	\$0
Copayments	\$300
Coinsurance	\$0
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$60
The total Peg would pay is	\$360

\$12,700

## Managing Joe's type 2 Diabetes (a year of routine in-network care of a wellcontrolled condition)

The plan & overall deductible	ΨU
Specialist copayment	\$50
Hospital (facility) copayment	\$250
■ Other	\$0
This EXAMPLE event includes services like	:

This EXAMPLE event includes services like:

Primary care physician office visits (including disease education)

Diagnostic tests (blood work)

Prescription drugs

Durable medical equipment (glucose meter)

**Total Example Cost** 

In this example, Joe would pay:		
Cost Sharing		
Deductibles	-	\$0
Copayments	i	\$1,000
Coinsurance		\$0
What isn't covered		
Limils or exclusions		\$20
The total Joe would pay is		\$1,020

\$5.600

### Mia's Simple Fracture (<u>in-network</u> emergency room visit and follow up care)

■ The plan's overall deductible	\$0
■ Specialist copayment	\$50
Hospital (facility) copayment	\$250
■ Other	\$0

This EXAMPLE event includes services like:

Emergency room care (including medical supplies)
Diagnostic test (x-ray)
Durable medical equipment (crutches)
Rehabilitation services (physical therapy)

**Total Example Cost** 

In this example, Mia would pay: <u>Cost Sharing</u>		
Deductibles		\$0
Copayments	1	\$600
Coinsurance	-	\$0
What isn't covered		
Limits or exclusions	1	\$0
The total Mia would pay is		\$600

The <u>plan</u> would be responsible for the other costs of these EXAMPLE covered services.

\$2,800

flyon, we are year are helway, his equenting that the marks gethelp and information in your anguage at no cust To speak to an interprete, call the outlinear service number untire back of your members and flyour members are for the production of the production

تعزبية Arabic	ن كان تيك أو لان شمص بساعه سنده فتيك العن في المصول على المساعاة والمطومات تصور به يأحك من نول فية تكافة المحمل في عراجه لوريء تصل على وقد مدية الصلاء السكور على طهر بشافة عصوبتك. فان لديكل عصواه أو كمنا لا سلام تعدية فقصل على 1984-1987 BESTON
策略中文 Christa	如果您,或您正在協助的對數 對此有疑問,您有權利免責以您的用頭獲得幫助和訊整。 含語一位翻譯員,結實監印在史的會員卡為面的客戶幾稱灌溉破匯。 如果非不是會員 或沒有 會員中,請發散 855-710 6864。
Français French	Sinour ou quirkquund e vous étir de dudier and destursions, vous evez le rendificterur de fade et a function dans votre langue à audum colx. Pour parûr a un manyirée, composez le numero du service clent midque ou versode votre caste de membre. Si vois n'ées pas membreou vivous n'avez par de corte, voullez composer le 855 716-6584.
Deutsch German	Fails the coding product, dem Cie herten. Flageth haben troben (Lie das Recht, Indienform inter Ender Todinformationen, Indien Spranhez des Relationen (Lie mit einem Ticknetsund zu sprechen, sofen Tiel note die Kuntensun
Ekknyusá Greek	Εόν επική ελποκό, που δοηθόπ έχε η ερώπησες έχετε το διταίωμα να λάξετε βοήθε αι και πλεροφορικέ στη γέωσα σας χωρές χνέωση. Για να μιλήστε τα έναν διερμήκαι καλέστε τον ορίθμο εξυπημέπισης πελαιών που αναγραφεία στο πίσω μερος της κόρτας μέλους σας. Εάν δεν έντε μέλος η δεν έχετε κάρτα, καλέστε τον αριθμο 855 210 6884.
ગુજરાતી ઉપાથક	જો તમને અથવા તમે મદદ કરી રહ્યા હોય એવી કોઈ બીજી વ્યક્તિને એમ બી યેમ, દુલાધિયા સાથે વાત કરવા માટે તમારા સભ્યપદળા કાર્ડળી પાઇગ બાપેલ ગાઢક સેવા નંબર પર કોલ કરો. જો આપ સભ્યપદ ના ધરાવતા હોવ. અથવા આપની પાસે કાર્ડ નથી તો 855-710-6984 નંબર પર કોલ કરો.
保計 Fns	यदि आपके, या आप जित्रकी सहायता कर रहे हैं उसके प्रका हैं, तो आपको अभनी आभा में जिल्हाका सहायता और जानकरी प्राप्त बस्ते पर अधिकार है। किसी अनुवादक से बात करने के लिए, अपने सदस्य कार्ड के पीछे दिए गए सहक सेवा मंबर पर कॉस करे। यदि आप सदस्य नहीं हैं, या अपके पास कार्ड महीं हैं, तो 855712-5% पर कॉल करें।
itakano Itakan	Se to quatomo che atu autombo avete dominite tita a dintto di cheriere di uti i interiori pornato sultano gratultamente. Per pultare con un interrete i con chi anvera il secolo di con con possida una tessera, puer chiamare il numero 655-7104 894.
E PUI Koroan	문학 등장 되고 위한 기반을 가장 마음은 마음인은 위한 문학에 한다는 무료를 한다면 가장 마음에서 영화 수 모든 한 것을 다면 현재 마음 함께서 밝는 기존 사비로 변호되 한 한지 하나, 회장은 하나 마음의 변수의 연수시작 855m 3-884 학교 변화주도시간
Dire Naver	Flas in, et doestage falle bles anne beologie, na hillektige, tolde beene aleese it has believe be a declarated been. And hastely history beened been believe beened by history beened by history beened by night beened by night by beened by night beened by night by beened by night by beened by night by the beened by the beened by the beened by the beened by night by the beened by the be
Polski Polish	Jest Ty is dischal której pomojass, mace jakekowieł cytaria, misce prawi do użyskana bezpiatniej eformocy we włakini in jicył u Aby poromiawiać z ikuniaciam, zudziem just numer podeny z a odenoce karty rzichkowskiej. Jedni nie jednik cztoralem Lib nie mast przy sobie karty z zdziwoń pod numer 855-710 8984.
Pyctowik Russien	Естку вас мях человеча, ногорому вы помогеете, водникли вопросы, у вас есть право на респлатную помощь и книформицию, предоставленную на вашем языке. Чтобы поговорить с переводениюм, подемоте в отадел облуженным клинись по теляформу, указанирам на обратном сторона вашем картонии участника. Ести вы не являетось участником или у вас нет картонах, подемните по телеформу в 55-710-884.
Espandi dannas	Si instad a piguie in aquies i ushad lesta ay ist and a lesse proguntas. There dienethic a observer ally die il informacionen su cuoma similors to aliguno. Para habitat con un interprete co municipie succen el numero de (Swnwed all Dienie que figure en el inverso de cu tagata de membro Si iusteri ne es membro e noi posse unathranta, tamb a (85%) 10,6694
Tisgalog Tagalog	Kung kawa Liang sung tanng yang telukulingan ay may tiga landig, maykarababi kang makakuha ng kilongal angamangalin selayong ikira nang waking bayas. Upang makiping usap sa isang tagasalin wikis, aumanagsar umero ng serbayo para kilikutawagsa 855 710 6 984.
inda #3	و لیا تک یہ انسین فرت کی جب کی آبیا حت کر رہے ہیں اکریں سوال ہیں ہے ہو ، ہیا گئی ہیں ہیں مشت سے اور مطربات حصل تو نے "دی ہے ، سرجہ سے یہ کرنے کے " یہ کسور سروین بنیو اپر کان گرون جو ب نے در کرم ہشت پر انرام ہے۔ اگر آپ ممبور نہیں ہم آپ کے پاس گذرہ بھی سے جو 48 کا 17 گئا پر کا کہ کرا ہے۔
rion Tid Jelnamese	Nếu quy vị, hoặc người mà quy vị quị đới số bắt kỳ cáu có nhai, quy vị sư quyền được hở trợ và nhân thông tị nhàng ngắn trập dùa minh m ổi, phị. Để nói chuyển với thông dich viện gọi số dịch vụ khách hang năm ở phia sau thể nói viện lúa duy lợi. Nếu quy vị không phái là hội, viện họac không cơ thể gui số 853 710 8584

bcbsil.com

## Health care coverage is important for everyone.

We provide free communication aids and services for anyone with a disability or who needs language assistance. We do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, gender identity, age or disability.

To receive language or communication assistance free of charge, please call us at 855-710-6984.

If you believe we have failed to provide a service, or think we have discriminated in another way, contact us to file a grievance.

Office of Civil Rights Coordinator 300 E. Randolph St.

35th Floor Chicago, Illinois 60601

Phone: TTY/TDD: Fax: Email:

855-664-7270 (voicemail) 855-661-6965 855-661-6960

CivilRightsCoordinator@hcsc.net

You may file a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights, at:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services

200 Independence Avenue SW Room 509F, HHH Building 1019 Washington, DC 20201

Phone: 800-368-1019
TTY/TDD: 800-537-7697
Complaint Portal: https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.isf
Complaint Forms: http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html

The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health <u>plan</u>. The SBC shows you how you and the <u>plan</u> would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this <u>plan</u> (called the <u>premium</u>) will be provided separately. This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, call 1-800-892-2803 or at <a href="https://www.bcbs!.com">www.bcbs!.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, <u>balance billing, consurance, copayment, deductible, provider, or other underlined</u> terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at <a href="https://www.bcbs!.com">www.bcbs!.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, <u>balance billing, consurance, copayment, deductible, provider, or other underlined</u> terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at <a href="https://www.bcbs!.com">www.bcbs!.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, <u>balance billing, consurance, copayment, deductible, provider, or other underlined</u> terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at <a href="https://www.bcbs!.com">www.bcbs!.com</a>. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed a copy.

Important Quastions	Argswers	Why This Matters:
What is the overall deductible?	\$0	See the Common Medical Events chart below for your costs for services this plan covers.
Arc there services covered before you meet your deductible?	No.	You will have to meet the <u>deductible</u> before the <u>plan</u> pays for any services.
Are there other deductibles for specific services?	No.	You don't have to meet <u>deductibles</u> for specific services.
What is the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limit</u> for this <u>plan</u> ?	\$1,500 Individual/\$3,000 Family Prescription drug expense limit; \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family	The <u>out-of-cocket limit</u> is the most you could pay in a year for covered services. If you have other family members in this <u>olan</u> , they have to meet their own <u>out-of-pocket limits</u> until the overall family <u>out-of-pocket limit</u> has been met.
What is not included in the out-of-pocket limit?	Premiums, balance-billing charges, and health care this plan doesn't cover.	Even though you pay these expenses, they don't count toward the <u>out-of-pocket</u> <u>limit</u> .
Will you pay less if you use a <u>network provider</u> ?	Yes. See www.bcbsil.com or call 1-800-892-2803 for a list of participating providers.	This <u>plan</u> uses a <u>provider network</u> . You will pay less if you use a <u>provider</u> in the <u>plan's network</u> . You will pay the most if you use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> , and you might receive a bill from a <u>provider</u> for the difference between the <u>provider's</u> charge and what your <u>plan</u> pays ( <u>balance billing</u> ). Be aware, your <u>network provider</u> might use an <u>out-of-network provider</u> for some services (such as lab work). Check with your <u>provider</u> before you get services.
Do you need a Referral to see a specialist?	Yes.	This <u>plan</u> will pay some or all of the costs to see a <u>specialist</u> for covered services but only if you have a <u>Referral</u> before you see the <u>specialist</u> .

## All <u>copayment</u> and <u>coin surance</u> costs shown in this chart are after your <u>deductible</u> has been met, if a <u>deductible</u> applies.

SERVICE DE LA CONTROL DE LA CO	THE REAL PROPERTY.	What Y	ou Will Pay	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
lf you visit a health	Primary care visit to treat an injury or illness	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Services or supplies that are not ordered by your <u>Primary Care Physician</u> or Women's Principal Health Care <u>Provider</u> , except emergency and routine vision exams, are not covered.
care provider's office	Specialist visit	\$50 copay/visit	Not Covered	Referral required.
	Preventive care/screening/ immunization	No Charge	Not Covered	You may have to pay for services that aren't preventive. Ask your provider if the services needed are preventive. Then check what your plan will pay for.
If you have a test	Diagnostictest (x-ray, blood work)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.
1 , 00 110.0 0 1001	Imaging (CT/PET scans, MRIs)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

TO THE STATE OF TH	CONTRACTOR STATE	What Y	ou Will Pay	Manual States of the State of t
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
	Generic drugs	\$10 copay/prescription (retail) \$20 copay/prescription (mail order)	Not Covered	Dispensing limit may apply to certain drugs.  Payment of the difference between the cost of a brand name drug and a generic may be
If you need drugs to treat your illness or condition	Preferred brand drugs	\$40 <u>copay</u> /prescription (retail) \$80 <u>copay</u> /prescription (mail order)	Not Covered	required if a generic drug is available.  Certain women's <u>preventative services</u> will be covered with no cost to the member. For a full
More information about prescription drug coverage is available at	Non-preferred brand drugs	\$60 <u>copay/prescription</u> (retail) \$120 <u>copay/prescription</u> (mail order)	Not Covered	list of these prescriptions and/or services, please contact Customer Service.  30-day retail/90-day mail.  RX <u>Out-of-Pocket</u> Expense Limit:  \$500 Individual/\$1,500 Family.
	Specialty drugs	Applicable copay	Not Covered	Coverage based on group policy. Prior <u>authorization</u> may be required. Specialty retail limited to a 30-day supply.
If you have outpatient	Facility fee (e.g., ambulatory surgery center)	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.
surgery	Physician/surgeon fees	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.
If you need immediate medical attention	Emergency room care	\$250 copay/visit	\$250 copay/visit	Copay waived if admitted.
	Emergency medical transportation	No Charge	No Charge	Ground transportation only.
	<u>Urgent care</u>	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Must be affiliated with member's chosen medical group or referral required.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com.</u>

		What Y	ou Will Pay	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)	Non-Participating Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Importan Information
If you have a hospital	Facility fee (e.g., hospital room)	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Referral required.
stay	Physician/surgeon fees	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.
If you need mental health, behavioral	Outpatient services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Unlimited visits. Referral required.
health, or substance abuse services	Inpatient services	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Unlimited days. Referral required.
If you are pregnant	Office visits	\$30 <u>copay</u> /visit	Not Covered	Copay applies for the 1st prenatal visit only. Cost sharing does not apply for preventive services. Depending on the type of services, a copayment may apply. Maternity care may
	Childbirth/delivery professional services	No Charge	Not Covered	include tests and services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound).
	Childbirth/delivery facility services	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Referral required.
	Home health care	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.
	Rehabilitation services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	60 visits combined for all therapies.
If you need help	Habilitation services	\$30 copay/visit	Not Covered	Referral required.
other special health needs	Skilled nursing care	\$250 copay/admission	Not Covered	Excludes custodial care. Referral required.
	Durable medical equipment	No Charge	Not Covered	Referral required.  Benefits are limited to items used to serve a medical purpose. Durable Medical Equipment benefits are provided for both purchase and rental equipment (up to the purchase price).
	Hospice services	No Charge	Not Covered	Inpatient copay may apply. Referral required.

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

SECTION AND ADDRESS.	CHARLES SOUTH THE PARTY OF THE	What Y	ou Will Pay	
Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	Participating Provider (You will pay the least)		Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
If your child needs	Children's eye exam	No Charge	Not Covered	Limited to one exam every 12 months at participating providers.
dental or eye care	Children's glasses	Not Covered	Not Covered	None
	Children's dental check-up	Not Covered	Not Covered	None

## **Excluded Services & Other Covered Services:**

Services Your Plan Generally Does N	OT Cover (Check your policy or plan document	for more information and a list of any other excluded services.)	
- Custodial care	Long torm pero	Drivete duty presing	

- Dental care (Adult)

- Long term care
- U.S.
- Private-duty nursing
- Non-emergency care when traveling outside the
   Routine foot care (with the exception of person with diagnosis of diabetes)

## Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to these services. This isn't a complete list. Please see your plan document.)

- Acupuncture
- Bariatric surgery
- Cosmetic surgery (only for correcting congenital deformities or conditions resulting from accidental injuries, scars, tumors, or diseases)
- Chiropractic care
- Hearing aids (for children 1 per ear every 24 months for, adults up to \$2500 per ear every 24
- Infertility treatment

- Routine eye care (Adult)
- · Weight loss programs (except when nonmedically supervised)
- Most coverage provided outside the United States. See www.bcbsil.com

<sup>\*</sup> For more information about limitations and exceptions, see the <u>plan</u> or policy document at <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>.

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those agencies is: the <u>plan</u> at 1-800-892-2803, U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or <a href="https://www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform">www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform</a>, or Department of Health and Human Services, Center for Consumer Information and Insurance Oversight, at 1-877-267-2323 <a href="https://www.cciio.cms.gov">www.cciio.cms.gov</a>. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the <a href="https://www.cciio.cms.gov">Health Insurance Marketplace</a>, For more information about the <a href="https://www.dealthcare.gov">Marketplace</a>, For more information about the <a h

Your <u>Grievance</u> and <u>Appeals</u> Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your <u>plan</u> for a denial of a <u>claim</u>. This complaint is called a <u>grievance</u> or <u>appeal</u>. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical <u>claim</u>. Your <u>plan</u> documents also provide complete information to submit a <u>claim</u>, <u>appeal</u>, or a <u>grievance</u> for any reason to your <u>plan</u>. For more information about your rights, this notice, or assistance, contact: Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Illinois at 1-800-892-2803 or visit <u>www.bcbsil.com</u>, or contact the U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-EBSA (3272) or visit www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform. Additionally, a consumer assistance program can help you file your <u>appeal</u>. Contact the Illinois Department of Insurance at (877) 527-9431 or visit <a href="http://insurance.illinois.gov">http://insurance.illinois.gov</a>.

### Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes plans, health insurance available through the Marketplace or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicaid, CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of Minimum Essential Coverage, you may not be eligible for the premium tax credit.

### Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

#### Language Access Services:

Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-892-2803. Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-892-2803.

Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助, 请拨打这个号码 1-800-892-2803. Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-892-2803.

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

Page 6 of 7



This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this <u>plan</u> might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> charge, and many other factors. Focus on the <u>cost sharing</u> amounts (<u>deductibles, copayments</u> and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded services</u> under the <u>plan</u>. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might pay under different health <u>plans</u>. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage.

\$0 \$50 \$250

## Peg is Having a Baby [9 months of in-network pre-natal care and a hospital delivery]

■ The plan's overall deductible	\$0
■ Specialist copayment	\$50
■ Hospital (facility) copayment	\$250
■ Other	\$0

# This EXAMPLE event includes services like: Specialist office visits (prenatal care) Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services Diagnostictests (ultrasounds and blood work) Specialist visit (anesthesia)

Total Example Cost	\$12,700
In this example, Peg would pay:	
Cost Sharing	
Deductibles	\$0
Copayments	\$300
Coinsurance	\$0
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$60
The total Peg would pay is	\$360

## Managing Joe's type 2 Diabetes (a year of routine in-network care of a wellcontrolled condition)

■ The <u>plan's</u> overall <u>deductible</u> ■ <u>Specialist copayment</u> ■ Hospital (facility) <u>copayment</u> ■ Other	
This EXAMPLE event includes services like Primary care physician office visits (including disease education) Diagnostic tests (blood work)	:

## Prescription drugs Durable medical equipment (glucose meter)

Total Example Cost	\$5,600
In this example, Joe would pay:	
Cost Sharing	
Deductibles	\$0
Copayments	\$1,000
Coinsurance	\$0
What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$20
The total Joe would pay is	\$1,020

## Mia's Simple Fracture (உடிஸ்லி emergency room visit and follow up care)

The plan's overall deductible	\$0
■ Specialist copayment	\$50
Hospital (facility) copayment	\$250
Other	\$0

# This EXAMPLE event includes services like: Emergency room care (including medical supplies) Diagnostic test (x-ray) Durable medical equipment (crutches)

Rehabilitation services (physical therapy)

Limits or exclusions

The total Mia would pay is

\$2,800
\$0
\$500
\$0

The <u>plan</u> would be responsible for the other costs of these EXAMPLE covered services.

\$0

\$500

## BlueCross BlueShield of Illinois

if you, or someone you are helping, have quastore, you have the night to get help and information in your language at tho cost.

Teis/peak to an interpretae, pair the outstoniar service number on the back of your member cand if you are not a member, or don't have a cand, call 855-710-8984.

انبرية Aratic	. كار تبك او الذي تصحب مساء طاليا الحق في العصول على المساعد والمطوعات الصرورية بأعداد من مون اية تكلم التحت المراسرجية اوران، اعمل على راي صباء العداد المناور على طهر بعدة عصوبتك على المرتك عصواء ام التراس على 1851-186.
報館中文 Chinese	如果您,或您还在協助的對象,對此有疑問,您有權利免費以外的也納權得某時和訊息。治詢一位難讓到,結改這印在它的會員主貨業的客戶服務耶試號碼。如果您不是會興,或沒有會員主,清致電 855-710 9564。
França's French	Si yous ou quebo, un quo you, étic en bair idader, a vezdes prochos, pous avezde droi duction i de l'eme et l'il formation dans volte la que à autrition. Pour pare la un memprete composez le numerodu service c'ent findique, eu verso de voltre carte de membre. Givous n'étés pas membre ou si yous n'exez pas de date, veux lez cumposer le 855-710-6988
Beutsch German	Field Sign observations, dien Glebether Filiagen haben haben. Lie das Reicht loster isseleites und informationen in the Updathy zu ent stant. Lit inn onem Dehnebuner zu sprüchen, den die beteilte Kunden dervann mittell auf der Reicht (billhoer Mitgliede Sign ober Mitgliede Visioner Filiagen und der Reicht von der Belle der Sign ober Mitgliede Visioner Filiagen und der Reicht von der Belle der Visioner Mitgliede Visioner Filiagen und der Visioner Vis
Ellerv≥a Greek	Εόν τους η κότισος που βοήθατε εχείε έρωπρους, εχείε το διναίωσο να λάβετε βοήθαια και πλέρος οις στη γλώσσο αιος χωρίς χείνα στο πλέρους σε είναν δεριηνέα, ναλέστε τον αρκινό εξπηρέτησης πελαιωντίσια αναιμέρος τη κόρτος μελούς τους. Εάν δεν νέαν τη μέλο, ή δεν έχει είνουπ, καλέστε τον αυθών, 855-110-6984.
લુવેશકા ગુજરાતી	જો તમને અશવા તમે મદદ કરી રહ્યા હ્રેશ એવી ક્રોઈ બીજી વ્યક્તિને એસ બી.એમ. દુભાષિયા સાથે વાત કરવા માટે. તમાસ સલ્યપદના કાર્ડની પાછળ આપેલ ગાઢક સેવા નંબર પર કોલ કરો. જો આપ સભ્યપદ ના ધરાવતા ઠીવ અથવા આપની પાસે કાર્ડ નથી તો 855-710-6984 નંબર પર કોલ કરો
Redi Hind	यदि आपके. या आप जिसकी सहायता कर रहे हें उसके. बक्ज हैं, तो आपके अपनी आणा में निःशतक सहायता और जानकारी पान्त करने का अधिकार है। किसी अनुवादक से बात करने के लिए. अर्चन सदस्य कर्ड के पीछे दिए गए यहक सेवा नंबर पर को लकरें। यदि आप सदस्य महीं हैं, या आपके पास करड़े नहीं हैं, तो 35% (10.69%) पर को लकरें।
italiano Italiani	Se to quaktura one stat sindand excelledomande, his sid into disclanor eaction sindre of media sur largus gratuitamente. Per parlare con un interprete i sud chamere il sensional extensional sur largus sur la terrando sur la parlare con un interprete i sud chamere il sensional extensional exten
E Rorean	트립 면접 마는 그는 그들은 대학의 돌문에 대한민국으로 투자로 하는 현금을 가장 하는 그들고 한 학생들이 말했다. 그는 그는 그 사는 현충 전기를 하는 그는 그 사는 현충 전기를 통해 마는 나가 있는 그는 그 사는 현충 전기를 통해 마는 나가 있는 그는 그 것은 현충 전기를 통해 마는 나가 있는 그는 그 것은 현충 전기를 통해 마는 나가 있는 그는 그를 받으시면 855 70-0984 으로 전혀주십기로
Cinq Navajo	Launi, ei diadago la'da biki antin two'ngu, na'ddilkulga, ta sta bee on sho't l'. Cia mik'e rika h'doalwot. Ata' hance'l bich'a' hadeesdab olimzingo o kwe'e da mushgi akk andaelwo' an bich a' kadaluth, bee acktazum, hund'oo, la kadaluth, kwa aan madteota n'hadal'dogoù di doadago bee nôtheziniga ta'ngoù a la hadaluth 855,710-0984.
Poist:	Jess Ty hitosoba. Now pomigism mane plane wisk pytana mane pramo to uzyska a leziplutnej eformacji i pomocy we wiskinym języku. Aty ponizmawiać z flumiczem i radzwori pod numer pudany na cowocie karty członizwskie, Jezal majiasta członizem kib niemism przy sobie karty i zaczwon pod numer 855-75 1984.
Pyroovin Russian	Еслы у вас или человых копорому вы помочесте, вознили вопросы, у васесть првои за бесплатную помощь и информацию придоставленную на вошем язым. Чтобы патреовичные, с переводныхю, голожится отрязоратурования извентия по тобнифому, указанному наоб разной стирыме вашей картиме учестных. Если выше непленось. Алектичном или у выснет честоми повершения от темформу тоб 2018.
Español panirh	Substitution anguen anguen usted esta agridalid stend projudas, sone brink in a objecter injuda e información en su droma sin construiguro. Para habbar con un interprete normaniquese can el inumér de Germodia. Cuerto que figuro par el revisso de su tarjeto de mientivo. Su credito en membro o no correctiona tarjeto, fame al 855/719-8984.
Tagang Tagalog	Kung karan cung kung sung sung sutung jilay nathang malanda, may karantan ka sij makaunang tukng at ing makaunang maka nang walang tepad Uzang makaunang nasa sanunanang sanunang nag serbaya pada sa kudang nag sanunanang sanunanan na serbaya pada sa kudang nyong karding mayerbad. Kung itaway hadi sang mayerbalis sanunang sa SSS 710 8984
اربر نادانا	۔ از آپ کی باکسی ایسے اور کی میں کی آپ مندکر وبید ہیں کوئی سوال بریش سے تو انچیکر آئیں ترین میں مثلث مند اور معتومات حضر کر دے کہ مل سے دو میں سے دیا گئی کی میں تو انداز کی سے انداز کی سے انداز کی سے تو انداز کی سے تو انداز کی ہیٹ ہیں۔ کا میں سے تو انداز کی ہیٹ ہیں ہیں۔ کی سے تو انداز کی ہیٹ ہیں ہیں ہیں ہیں ہیں۔ کو سے انداز کی ہیٹ ہیں۔ کا میں سے تو انداز کی ہیٹ ہیں ہیں۔ کو بیٹ ہیں ہیں ہیٹ ہیں۔ کو بیٹ ہیں ہیٹ کرنے میں ہیں ہیٹ ہیں ہیٹ ہیٹ ہیں۔ کا میں ہیٹ
Videy Vide Vietralmese	Nêu quy vị hoặc người mà quy vị giáo độ có Nất kỳ cầu họi nào quy vị có quyền được hỗ mở và nhân thông bịn báng ngôn ngữ qua minh miễn phí. Để nói chuyển với thông dịch viên, gọi số dịch vụ shaich hàng năm ở phía sau thể hỏ viên của quý vị. Nêu quy vị không phai tá hội viên hoặc không có thể, gọi số 856 T10-6694

bcbsil.com

## Health care coverage is important for everyone.

We provide free communication aids and services for anyone with a disability or who needs language assistance. We do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, gender identity, age or disability.

To receive language or communication assistance free of charge, please call us at 855-710-6984.

If you believe we have failed to provide a service, or think we have discriminated in another way, contact us to file a grievance.

Office of Civil Rights Coordinator 300 E. Randolph St. 35th Floor Chicago, Illinois 60601

Phone: TTY/TDD: Fax: Email:

855-664-7270 (voicemail) 855-661-6965 855-661-6960

CivilRightsCoordinator@hcsc.net

You may ile a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights, at:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services 200 Independence Avenue S W Room 509F, HHH Building 1019 Washington, DC 20201

Phone: 800-368-1019
TTY/TDD: 800-537-7697
Complaint Portal: https://ocmortal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf
Complaint Forms: http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html